
 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Cabinet 

Date: Tuesday, 23rd November, 2021 
Time: 6.00 pm. 

 
Venue: Floor 1, Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 

Rochdale 
 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 
 
1   Apologies  

 

 To receive any apologies for absence.  
 
2   Declarations of Interest  

 

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 
or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 
those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 
of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

 
3   Minutes  4 - 6 

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held on 21st 
October 2021. 

 

 
4   Urgent Items of Business  

 

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 
which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 
be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

 
5   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press  

 

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 
be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 
6   Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025  7 - 56 

Public Document Pack



 Report of the Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Climate Change 
and Sustainability/ Director of Neighbourhoods. 

 

 
7   Greater Manchester VSCE Accord  57 - 75 

 Report of the Leader of the Council/Cabinet Member for Communities 
and Co-Operation/Director of Public Health. 

 

 
8   Finance Update Report Quarter 2 - 2021/22  76 - 109 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate/Chief 
Finance Officer. 

 

 
9   Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23 for Consultation  110 - 179 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate/Chief Finance Officer  

 

 
10   Revenue Budget Update 2022/23 to 2024/25 and Medium Term 

Financial Strategy  
180 - 196 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate/ Chief Finance Officer. 

 

 
11   Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27  197 - 219 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate/ Chief Finance Officer. 

 

 
12   Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025  220 - 226 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and 
Education/Director of Children’s Services. 

 

 
13   Need for Primary School Places 2022-25  227 - 245 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Children’s Services and 
Education/Director of Children’s Services. 

 

 
14   Fly Tipping Strategy and Action Plan  

 



 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Environment and Facilities/Director 
of Neighbourhoods. 

 

 
15   Exclusion of Press and Public  

 

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 
part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 
Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 
likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 
interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

 
16   Disabled Facilities Grants and Adaptations Provision  246 - 255 

 Report of the Cabinet Member for Adult Care and Wellbeing/ Director 
of Strategic Commissioning (DASS). 

 

 
17   Savings Proposals 2022-23  256 - 290 

 To consider the report of the Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate / Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

Cabinet Members 
Councillor Daalat Ali Councillor Neil Emmott 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Councillor John Blundell 
Councillor Sara Rowbotham Councillor Carol Wardle 
Councillor Rachel Massey Councillor Daniel Meredith 
Councillor Liam O'Rourke Councillor Susan Smith 
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Alison James 
01706 924711/924715 
alison.james@Rochdale.Gov.UK



CABINET 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Thursday, 21st October 2021 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Neil Emmott (in the Chair); Councillors Iftikhar Ahmed, 
Daalat Ali, Rachel Massey, Meredith, O’Rourke, Susan Smith and Wardle. 
  
OFFICERS: S. Rumbelow (Chief Executive), J. Searle (Director of Economy), 
N. Thornton (Director of Resources), S. Hubber (Director of Children’s 
Services), K. Thompson (Interim Director of Public Health), J. Murphy (Chief 
Finance Officer), A. Ibrahim (Assistant Director – Legal, Governance and 
Workforce/Monitoring Officer), D. Bowler (Assistant Director – Place),  
W. Poole (Economy Directorate), M. Brooke (Neighbourhoods Directorate) 
and P. Thompson (Resources Directorate). 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: One member of the public 
 

54 APOLOGIES 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Rowbotham. 
 

55 MINUTES 
Resolved: 
That the Minutes of the meeting of Cabinet held 21st September 2021 be 
approved as a correct record, subject to an amendment to minute 51 (Towns 
Fund – Award of Grant and Update) in that ‘the Cabinet agrees to accept the 
funding offer from the Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local 
Government’ on the condition that the funds will not be for used for 
demolishing any residential properties. 
 

56 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 

57 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS 
The Chair indicated that he had accepted a late item onto the Agenda: 
Upperbanks – Contract Modifications, to be considered as Agenda Item 8. 
 

58 LOWER FALINGE SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT (SPD) 
The Cabinet considered a report of the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Communications/Director of Economy which summarised the outcome of a 
public consultation exercise on the draft Lower Falinge Supplementary 
Planning Document (SPD) and the Council’s response to these. The report 
recommended that the Cabinet adopts the amended SPD in response to the 
outcomes of the consultation. In considering the report, Members were 
advised that the report had previously been submitted to Rochdale North 
Township Committee, on 13th September 2021 and to the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee, on 28th 
September 2021 and the recommendations in the report had been supported 
by Members at these two meetings. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 3



Alternatives considered: 
If the SPD was not adopted it could undermine a co-ordinated place making 
strategy for Rochdale’s Lower Falinge area - instead any proposed re-
development would have to be dealt with through stand-alone planning 
applications. Proposals for investment and development would also have to 
be considered on a piecemeal basis. Rehousing residents within the local 
area, close to their existing home and the Town Centre, would become 
challenging, and housing market failure would not be addressed. There was a 
risk that the opportunity for a significant number of new homes to be built 
within this area, adjacent to the Town Centre, if the SPD was not delivered. 
 
Resolved: 

1. That Cabinet notes the representations received in response to the 
consultation on the draft SPD and agree to the Council’s amendments 
to these, as set out in the Schedule of Comments included within the 
Statement of Consultation. 

2. That Cabinet formally adopts the Lower Falinge Supplementary 
Planning Document SPD. 

3. That Cabinet agrees to delegate authority to the Head of Planning 
(subject to discussion with the Cabinet Member for Economy and 
Communications) to make typographical corrections and any other 
necessary non-material amendments to the Lower Falinge SPD prior to 
the formal publication of the SPD in accordance with the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
Reasons for the resolution: 
The report’s recommendations were presented to allow Cabinet to formally 
approve and adopt the Supplementary Planning Document under regulation 
14 of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012 and section 23 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, 
which will be afforded weight as a material planning consideration. 
Eligible for call-in: No – this matter has already been considered by the 
Communities, Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 

59 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
Resolved:  
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following item of business, in accordance with the provisions of Section 
100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.  
 
Reason for the resolution  
Should the press and public remain during debate on this item there may be a 
disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Part 3 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

60 UPPERBANKS - CONTRACT MODIFICATION 
The Cabinet considered a confidential report of the Cabinet Member for 
Economy and Communications/Director of Economy regarding Upperbanks 
(Rochdale Riverside Phase 2), Build Contract Modifications. 

Page 5



 
Alternatives considered: 
Alternative options were detailed in the submitted report. 
 
Resolved: 
That the recommendation, detailed at paragraph 2.1 of the submitted report, 
be approved. 
 
Reasons for the resolution: 
To support the necessary appointment of a Development Manager.  
Eligible for call-in: 
No – this matter has been exempted from Call-in by the Chairs of the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee and the Communities, 
Regeneration and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 
 

Page 6



 

Report to Planning and Licensing Committee 
 

Date of Meeting 4 November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Climate Change and 
Sustainability 

Report Author Nicola Rogers 

 Public Document  
 

Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025 
 

 
Executive Summary 

1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 

To enable the Council to meet its statutory obligations to adopt and publish a 
Gambling Licensing Policy, in accordance with Section 349 of the Gambling 
Act. 
 
To report on the results of consultation on the Council’s draft Gambling 
Licensing Policy Statement and seek agreement from Members on 
amendments where necessary and to recommend adoption of the Gambling 
Licensing Policy to full Council. 

 
Recommendation 

2. 
 
2.1 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 

Planning and Licensing Committee are recommended to; 
 
Note the response and comments received from the consultation process; 
 
Agree the proposed amendments to the draft policy in response to the 
consultation feedback; and 
 
Recommend that the revised Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-  
2025 be approved by Cabinet on 23 November 2021 for adoption by full 
Council on 15 December 2021.   
 

Reason for Recommendation 
3. Councils have a statutory duty to prepare and publish a statement of principles 

that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under the Gambling 
Act 2005. This is valid for a three year period and therefore the Council is 
required to review its policy statement every three years to meet its statutory 
requirements and adopt and publish a Gambling Licensing Policy Statement. 
The first statement was effective from 31 January 2007, with the current policy 
statement running until 31 January 2022. 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 6



Key Points for Consideration 
4.1.  
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
4.7 

The existing statement of Gambling Licensing Policy has been reviewed and 
updated. This year, the ten Greater Manchester Licensing Authorities have 
agreed to take a common approach to refreshing their Gambling Licensing 
policies and so the draft policy reflects the principles to be adopted across the 
region.  
 
In order to comply with statutory requirements, the Council has consulted with 
the Responsible Authorities under the Act, national bodies, representatives of 
licensees, residents and with representatives of businesses. A list of 
consultees forms part of the draft Gambling Licensing Policy. 
 
The 8 week consultation period ran from 19 July 2021 and concluded on 10 
September 2021. 
 
1 consultation response was received, the contents of which have been 
carefully considered. 
 
The amended draft Gambling Licensing Policy Statement is detailed in 
Appendix 1. 
 
The detail of the consultation comments and the responses to the various 
points raised are detailed in Appendix 2.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
None, the Gambling Act 2005 places a statutory duty on local authorities 
to prepare and publish a Gambling Licensing Policy Statement. The Council 
would be in breach of its statutory duty if it was to take any other action. 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
5. There are no financial implications. 

Page 8



Risk and Policy Implications 
6.1 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 
 
6.4 

The statement of Gambling Licensing Policy sets out the approach that 
will be taken when dealing with permissions it grants and enforces 
thereafter. 
 
The Policy also identifies how the Authority seeks to promote the three 
licensing objectives under the Act, namely:- 
 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being 
 associated with crime and disorder or being used to support crime. 
 

 Ensuring gambling is conducted in a fair and open way. 
 

 Protecting children and other vulnerable people from being harmed 
or being exploited by gambling. 

 
There are no legal implications other than the statutory duty already 
identified in the report. 
 
There are no personnel implications. 

  
Consultation 

 
7. As detailed above in paragraphs 4.2 to 4.6 and Appendix 2. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. None N/A 

 

For Further Information Contact: Nicola Rogers, Tel: 01706 924124, 
nicola.rogers@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 9



DRAFT Gambling 
Licensing Policy 
Statement 2022-2025 
Gambling Act 2005 

 
 

Page 10



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 1

Document Control 
 
Document Title: Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-
2025 – Gambling Act 2005 
 
Summary 
 
Publication Date January 2022 

Related Legislation / Applicable Section 
of Legislation Gambling Act 2005 

Related Policies, Strategies, Guideline 
Documents Statement of Gambling Policy 

Replaces Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2019-2022 

Joint Policy (Yes/No) No 

Name of Partner(s) if joint  

Policy Owner (Name/Position) Nicola Rogers (Head of Public Protection)  

Policy Author (Name/Position) Jahangir Alom (Licensing Operational Manager) 

Applies to Gambling Act 2005 
 
 
Review of Strategy 
 
Last Review Date January 2022 

Review undertaken by Jahangir Alom  

Next Review Date 31 January 2025 
 
Document Approvals 
 
This document requires the following approvals. 
 
Name Title Date of Issue Version Number 

    

    

    

    

Page 11



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 2

Table of Contents  
 

1.   Foreword .............................................................................................................................        4 
2.   Introduction ...........................................................................................................................      6 

Publication of this Policy ...........................................................................................................................7 
Description of the Area .............................................................................................................................8 

3. General principles ................................................................................................................      9 
Other regulatory regimes ..........................................................................................................................9 
Responsible Authorities ............................................................................................................................9 
Public Health and Gambling related harm ..............................................................................................10 
Determining whether a person is an interested part in relation to a premises licence,   or an application 

for or in respect of a premises licence .............................................................................................11 
Exchange of information between the licensing authority and the Gambling Commission (s29 and s30 

of GA2005), and the exchange of information between the licensing authority and other persons 
listed in Schedule 6 of the Act .........................................................................................................12 

Functions of the licensing authority under Part 15 of the GA2005 with respect to the inspection of 
premises and the power under s346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the 
offences specified in that section ....................................................................................................13 

Commenting on a licence application .....................................................................................................14 
Factors that will not be relevant ..............................................................................................................14 
Split Premises .........................................................................................................................................15 
Premises “ready for gambling” ................................................................................................................15 
Applications and plans ............................................................................................................................16 
Tracks .....................................................................................................................................................16 

4. Determining Premises Licences ..........................................................................................    17 
How the Licensing Authority decides whether to grant or refuse an application ....................................17 
How the licensing committee decides what conditions to apply to premises licences ...........................17 
Determining whether to review a licence ................................................................................................18 

5. Relevant factors when considering applications and reviews .............................................    20 
Location of the premises .........................................................................................................................20 
Local risk assessments ...........................................................................................................................22 
Local Area Profile ...................................................................................................................................24 
How the premises will operate consistent with the licensing objectives .................................................24 
Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder 

or being used to support crime: .......................................................................................................25 
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way .................................................................26 
Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling ...........26 
Expectations of operators: Staffing provision .........................................................................................28 
Expectations of operators: Data gathering and sharing .........................................................................28 

Page 12



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 3

Expectation of applicants: Staff Training and Knowledge ......................................................................29 
Expectation of applicants: Gaming machines / layouts ..........................................................................29 

6. Premises-specific considerations ...................................................................………………    31 
Adult Gaming Centres ............................................................................................................................31 
Casinos ...................................................................................................................................................31 
Bingo premises .......................................................................................................................................31 
Electronic bingo gaming machines .........................................................................................................32 
Gaming machines at bingo premises .....................................................................................................32 
'Entertainment’ Bingo ..............................................................................................................................33 
Betting Premises .....................................................................................................................................33 
(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres ..............................................................................................34 
Occasional use notices ...........................................................................................................................35 

7. Permits and other permissions ............................................................................................    36 
Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits ...........................................................................36 
Prize Gaming Machine Permits ..............................................................................................................36 
Unlicensed FECs (uFEC) .......................................................................................................................36 
Small Society Lotteries ...........................................................................................................................37 

Appendix A – Consultees  ..........................................................................................................    38 
Appendix B – Reponsible Authorities……………………………………………………………………….       39 
Appendix C – Template for Data Collection ………………………………………………        40 
Appendix D -  Glossary ………………………………………………………………………………………      41 
  

Page 13



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 4

 1. Foreword  

The Gambling Act 2005 obtained Royal Assent in 2005 and came into effect in 2007.  
 
Under Section 349 of the Gambling Act 2005 the Authority is required to prepare a statement of principles 
that they propose to apply in exercising their functions under this Act. This process is to be repeated every 
three years.  
 
The consultation process is laid out clearly in the Gambling Act 2005, the Gambling Act 2005 (Licensing 
Authority Policy Statement)(England and Wales) Regulations 2006 and the Guidance to Licensing Authorities 
issued by the Gambling Commission (www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk). 
 
The purpose of the Statement of Licensing Policy is to set out the principles that the Authority propose to 
apply when determining licences, permits and registrations under the Gambling Act 2005. Any decision taken 
by the Authority in regard to determination of licences, permits and registrations should aim to permit the use 
of premises for gambling in so far as it is reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives which are:  
 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime; 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way; and 
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling 

 
 
The principles to be applied specifically to the determination of premises licence applications include definition 
of premises, location, duplication with other regulatory regimes, conditions, door supervision, layout of the 
premises and supervision of gaming facilities. The policy also specifically mentions adult gaming centres, 
family entertainment centres, casinos, bingo premises, betting premises, tracks and travelling fairs. 
 
The Authority has the ability to issue permits for prize gaming and unlicensed family entertainment centres. 
The Authority is able to specify the information it requires as part of the application process which will aid 
determination and this information is described in this Policy. 
 
Club gaming and club machine permits are also issued by the Authority. The process for this is described, 
along with other processes specified in the legislation for example temporary use notices, occasional use 
notices and small society lotteries. 
 
One of the goals for the Borough of Rochdale is to possess highly skilled, enterprising and industrious people, 
and for it to be a place where residents from all backgrounds feel safe, can aspire, succeed and live well. We 
recognise that gambling provides many jobs, as well as being a popular leisure activity enjoyed by many of 
our residents and visitors. However, there is a range of gambling-related harms that can be experienced 
across the spectrum of gambling activities. We also know from studies and research that some groups are 
more likely to experience problems with gambling and there are some forms of gambling that are more 
associated with a higher severity of gambling-related problems, putting people at risk of gambling what they 
can’t afford. We are therefore committed to working in partnership with the trade and partners, in line with the 
Greater Manchester gambling harm reduction programme, to minimise this risk and ensure that appropriate 
support is available when and where it is required, as well as regulating when appropriate. 
 
In Greater Manchester we are thinking differently about gambling with a shared aim to prevent and reduce 
the negative impacts of gambling on individuals, families and communities. As part of our innovative public 
service reform and population health agenda we are working with partners across Greater Manchester to 
ensure that gambling is a safe and enjoyable activity for all who choose to take part. Our priorities are; 

Page 14



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 5

 
1. Developing our understanding of gambling related harms 
2. Improving access to high quality treatment and support 
3. Supporting interventions to prevent gambling from becoming a harmful activity 
4. Engaging with people and communities to co-design our work 

 
 
Partnerships are important to us and with this in mind we will continue to work closely with the Gambling 
Commission, the Police and the other responsible authorities named within the Act. We will also provide 
guidance and support, where possible, to the trade, residents and businesses. 
 
All decisions that are made in relation to gambling will be made having taken into account the three objectives 
and each application will be dealt with on its merits. 
 
This policy will come into effect on the 31st January 2022 and will be reviewed no later than the 31st January 
2025. 
 
In carrying out its gambling functions this Authority will have regard to its Policy and the Guidance issued by 
the Gambling Commission.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2.   Introduction 

1.1     As the licensing authority, we are required to perform the following functions under the Gambling     
   Act:  

1) Be responsible for licensing premises where gambling activities are to take place by issuing 
premises licences  

Page 15



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 6

2) Issue provisional statements where it is proposed that gambling activities will take place but a 
premises is not yet ready for use 

3) Regulate members’ clubs and miners’ welfare institutes who wish to undertake certain gaming 
activities by issuing club gaming permits and/or club machine permits 

4) Issue club machine permits to commercial clubs 
5) Issue permits for unlicensed Family Entertainment Centres where Category D machines may 

be used 
6) Receive notifications from premises licensed for on-sales of alcohol for use of two or fewer 

Category C or D gaming machines  
7) Issue licensed premises gaming machine permits for premises licensed for on-sales of alcohol 

for use of two or more Category C or D machines 
8) Register small society lotteries 
9) Issue prize gaming permits  
10) Receive and endorse Temporary Use Notices for temporary use of premises for gambling 
11) Receive Occasional Use Notices for betting at tracks 

2.2.  Gambling is defined in the Act as either gaming, betting or taking part in a lottery 
2.3. Gaming’ means playing a game for the chance to win a prize. 
2.4. ‘Betting’ means making or accepting a bet on: 

 the outcome of a race, competition or other event 
 the likelihood of anything occurring or not occurring 
 whether anything is true or not.  

2.5. A ‘Lottery’ is where participants are involved in an arrangement where prizes are allocated wholly by 
a process of chance.  
 

2.6. The responsibility for regulating gambling is shared between the Gambling Commission and local 
authorities. The Gambling Commission is responsible for issuing operating licences to organisations 
and individuals who provide facilities for gambling and personal licences to persons working in the 
gambling industry. The Commission takes the lead role on ensuring that gambling is conducted in a 
fair and open way through the administration and enforcement of operating and personal licence 
requirements. The Commission is also responsible for remote gambling activities such as facilities 
provided via the internet, television or radio.  
 

2.7. We are also required to: 

 Provide information to the Gambling Commission regarding details of licences issued 
 Maintain a register of the permits and licences that are issued under the functions above. 

2.8. The council has a responsibility under the Gambling Act 2005 to decide whether to grant or reject 
applications and in the case of premises licence applications to decide any conditions to apply where 
the decision is taken to grant. All decisions made by the licensing authority in relation to premises 
licences (and some other authorisations – see specific sections for details) are based on the Act, 
relevant guidance, Codes of Practice, our Gambling Policy and the three licensing objectives.  These 
objectives are: 

 Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime 

 Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 
 Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling 

2.9. In the case of premises licences (and some other authorisations – see specific sections for details), 
the licensing committee will permit gambling only so far as it is reasonably consistent with these three 
objectives. 

Page 16



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 7

 

 Publication of this Policy 

2.10. Licensing authorities have a requirement to develop, consult on, and publish a statement of licensing 
policy every three years with regards to the principles they propose to apply in exercising functions 
under the Gambling Act 2005.  
 

2.11. The policy statement forms the licensing authority’s mandate for managing local gambling provision 
and sets out how the licensing authority views the local risk environment and therefore its 
expectations in relation to operators with premises in the locality.  
 

2.12. The authority is one of the 10 Metropolitan Districts of Greater Manchester. In Greater Manchester 
we have a shared aim reducing gambling related harms, our approach focuses on preventing 
gambling harms from occurring, as well as improving how we support our residents who are already 
experiencing harms, either directly or as a result of someone else’s gambling. The renewal of 
licensing policies presents an opportunity for local authorities to embed these principles. Licensing 
leads across Greater Manchester have agreed to take a common approach to refreshing gambling 
licensing policies. 
 

2.13. The following people and organisations have been consulted in preparing the statement: 
 

   The Chief Officer of Police; 
   One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of    

   persons carrying on gambling businesses in the authority’s area; 
   One or more persons who appear to the authority to represent the interests of    

   persons who are likely to be affected by the exercise of the authority’s functions   
   under the Gambling Act 2005. 

 
   A list of those persons consulted is provided in Appendix A. 
 

2.14. Our consultation took place between 19 July 2021 and 10 September 2021. 
Following consultation on the policy, it [was considered at a full Council meeting held on XX 2021. 
The policy was approved by Rochdale Borough Council] and is published on our website. A copy is 
available for viewing upon request at the Council Offices. 

 
2.15 . In producing the final statement, this licensing authority declares that it has had regard to the  

   licensing objectives of the Gambling Act 2005, the Guidance to Licensing Authorities issued by the 
   Gambling Commission, and any responses from those consulted on the statement. 
 
 
 
 

Description of the Area 

2.16. The Authority is one of the 10 Metropolitan Districts of Greater Manchester.  
 

Rochdale is a large market town in Greater Manchester. It lies amongst the foothills of the Pennines 
on the River Roch, 5.3 miles north-northwest of Oldham, and 9.8 miles north-northeast of the city of 
Manchester. The Borough of Rochdale has an approximately total population of 220,001 people 

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 8

(ONS UK 2018). It occupies an area of 16,100 hectares and is based on the townships of Rochdale, 
Middleton, Heywood and Pennines. 
 
The types and current number of the premises within the Borough are as follows: 

 
TYPE OF PREMISES NUMBER OF 

PREMISES 
BINGO HALLS 3 
BETTING PREMISES 23 
ADULT GAMING CENTRES 12 
FAMILY ENTERTAINMENT CENTRES 1 
  
TOTAL 39 
 
 

The (current) total number of these premises are located in the following Townships that make up 
the Borough of Rochdale: 

 
TOWNSHIPS   NUMBER OF 

PREMISES 
ROCHDALE 16 
MIDDLETON  11 
HEYWOOD 10 
LITTLEBOROUGH / PENNINES 2 
  
TOTAL 39 

 
 
  
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2. General principles 

2.1 In making decisions on premises licences, the licensing authority shall aim to permit the use of 
premises for gambling in so far as it thinks it: 

 In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission; 
 In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission; 
 Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives; and 

Page 18



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 9

 In accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy 
2.2 As the licensing authority, we will regulate gambling in the public interest, which will be reflected in 

this policy statement. 
 

2.3 This policy statement does not undermine the right of any person to make representations on an 
application or to seek a review of a licence where provision has been made for them to do so. 
 

2.4 This policy does not override anybody’s right to make an application, make representations about an 
application, or apply for a review of a licence.  
 

2.5 Each application will be considered on its merits in accordance with the requirements of the Gambling 
Act and without regard to demand. 
 

Other regulatory regimes 

2.6 The licensing authority will avoid duplication with other regulatory regimes, so far as possible. A range 
of general duties are imposed on the self-employed, employers and operators of gambling premises, 
both in respect of employees and of the general public, by legislation governing health and safety at 
work and fire safety. Therefore, such requirements do not need to be included in the policy statement. 
 

Responsible Authorities 

2.7 Responsible Authorities are generally public bodies that must be notified of all applications and who 
are entitled to make representations to the Council if they are relevant to one or more of the licensing 
objectives.  
 

2.8 Section 157 of the Act defines those authorities. For this area they are: -  

 The Gambling Commission 
 Greater Manchester Police 
 Greater Manchester Fire and Rescue 
 The Planning Authority 
 The authority which has functions in relation to pollution to the environment or harm to human 

health 
 Rochdale Borough Council’s Safeguarding Children Board 
 HM Revenue and Customs 
 The Licensing Authority. 

  
2.9 The contact details of all the Responsible Authorities are available are set out in Appendix B. 

2.10 Rochdale Borough Council’s Safeguarding Children Board is the body that is competent to advise 
about the protection of children from harm.  

 
Public Health and Gambling related Harm 

2.11 Between 61 and 73 percent of British adults gamble to some extent each year. For the majority of 
these people, gambling is a harmless and sociable activity. However, between 0.4 and 1.1 percent 
of British adults are estimated to be ‘problem gamblers’ who experience harm as a consequence of 
their gambling. A further 4 percent are estimated to be ‘at-risk gamblers’ who may go on to become 

Page 19



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 10

problem gamblers. Institute for Public Policy and Research (2016). Cards on the table. The cost to government 
associated with people who are problem gamblers in Britain. 
 

2.12 Problem gambling has been defined as “gambling to a degree that compromises, disrupts or 
damages family, personal or recreational pursuits”. Lesieur, H. R. & Rosenthal, M. D. (1991). Pathological 
gambling: A review of the literature (prepared for the American Psychiatric Association Task Force on DSM-IV Committee 
on disorders of impulse control not elsewhere classified). Journal of Gambling Studies, 7 (1), 5-40. Males are 5 times 
more likely than females to be problem gamblers. Problem gambling also varies by age with young 
people aged 16-24 the most likely to be affected. Problem gambling disproportionately affects people 
on low incomes and those from ethnic minorities. Individuals of Asian/Asian British heritage and 
Black/Black British heritage are more likely to be problem gamblers than people who identify as 
White/White British. Institute for Public Policy and Research (2016). Cards on the table. The cost to government 
associated with people who are problem gamblers in Britain. 
 

2.13 For problem gamblers, harms can include higher levels of physical and mental illness, debt problems, 
relationship breakdown and criminality. Problem gambling is also associated with domestic violence 
and substance misuse. Harms from gambling affect far more people than just the problem gambler: 
it is estimated that for every harmful gambler, between 6 and 10 additional people are directly affected 
(such as friends, family or colleagues). Local Government Association and Public Health England (2018). Tackling 
gambling related harm A whole council approach. Problem gambling also has a significant impact on public 
finances due to increased costs to the welfare, housing, health and criminal justice sectors. For these 
reasons, gambling-related harm is increasingly recognised as a public health issue.. 
 

2.14 Research suggests that in a city-region like Greater Manchester there are approximately 39,000 
people living with a gambling disorder, with a further 118,000 at risk. However we know that self-
reported surveys underestimate true prevalence of harm given the unfortunately shame and stigma 
associated with gambling disorder. For every person who gambles, it is estimated that between six 
and ten people are ‘affected others’ and experience similar harms. These may be dependents, 
parents, partners, friends or colleagues. 
Kenyon (2017) Problem Gambling in Leeds: Report to Leeds City Council. Leeds Beckett. Available at: Problem 
Gambling in Leeds Research Report for Leeds City Council - Leeds Beckett Repository” 

 
Area Estimate of 

Adult 
Population 

2016 

Estimated number 
of problem 
gamblers 

Estimated number 
of ‘at risk’ 
gamblers 

Greater 
Manchester 

2,148,660 38,676 118,176 

Bolton 216,920 3,905 11,931 
Bury 145,880 2,626 8,023 
Manchester 416,480 7,497 22,906 
Oldham 173,900 3,130 9,565 
Rochdale 164,820 2,967 9,065 
Salford 192,840 3,471 10,606 
Stockport 227,920 4,103 12,536 
Tameside 173,960 3,131 9,568 
Trafford 179,920 3,239 9,896 
Wigan 256,020 4,608 14,081 

 
 

3.15 Anyone who gambles is vulnerable to harm. Men, younger adults (aged 18-34) and adults from a 
lower socioeconomic or black and minority ethnic backgrounds are more likely to be classified as 

Page 20

https://eprints.leedsbeckett.ac.uk/id/eprint/3945/
https://eprints.leedsbeckett.ac.uk/id/eprint/3945/


 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 11

gamblers experiencing some level of harm. Gambling related harms are often described at an 
individual level, however these harms have a wider impact on communities and society with costs to 
the UK as a whole estimated at being between £260m and £1.16bn. Dinos, S. et al. (2020) ‘Treatment 
Needs and Gap Analysis in Great Britain’, GambleAware p. 45. Available at: Treatment Needs & Gap Analysis research | 
BeGambleAware 

 
3.16. People living with, or at risk of developing, a gambling disorder may experience stress, anxiety and 

depression, financial losses, debts and exhibit compulsive behaviours, such as chasing losses. 
Gambling related harms may accrue over a long period of time or very quickly at a time of crisis, 
many harms have a lasting legacy beyond initial recovery from gambling disorder. Harms associated 
with gambling include poor mental health and wellbeing, relationship breakdown, neglect of other 
priorities in life, poor performance at work or school and criminal activity. It is estimated that for every 
day of the year, one person takes their own life as a result of gambling disorder. 

 
3.17. Awareness of gambling harms as an emerging public health problem has increased in recent years, 

however Public Health are not a responsible authority under the Gambling Act 2005. Nonetheless, 
the licensing authority will consult the Director of Public Health on all premises licence applications 
and will advise the Director of Public Health to consider the use of the Gambling Commission’s toolkit 
for public health and safeguarding: https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-
authorities/Licensingauthority-toolkit/Public-health-and-Safeguarding-toolkit.aspx 

 
3.18. Greater Manchester has a gambling harms reduction programme (which aims to reduce the harms 

caused by gambling to the population. Licence applicants and holders will be expected to show how 
they are actively protecting the local population from gambling harms with their processes and 
operations, and consider how the location, opening hours and promotion of their activities can 
minimize opportunities for harm to the vulnerable groups listed above.  

 
3.19. The licensing authority recognises that local authority public health teams can offer insights from 

those impacted by gambling harms and offer contextual information about treatment and support in 
the local area and can add value to the licensing application process where there are concerns raised 
about risk of harm to vulnerable groups locally. Greater Manchester’s gambling harms reduction 
programme is listening to residents with lived experience of gambling and is commissioning its own 
research to better understand problem gambling in the region. As findings from this research emerge, 
licence holders will be expected to support the delivery of recommendations to help minimize 
gambling harms to the local populations. 

 
 

 
Determining whether a person is an interested part in relation to a premises licence,   
or an application for or in respect of a premises licence 

3.20. For the purposes of the Gambling Act, an ‘interested party’ is: 
a) Someone who lives sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the gambling 

premises 
b) Has business interests that might be affected by the authorised activities 
c) Represents persons who satisfy paragraph (a) or (b). 

 
3.21. Whether or not a person is an ‘interested party’ is ultimately the decision of the Licensing Authority 

which issues the licence or to which the application is made.  
3.22. To determine who lives ‘sufficiently close to the premises to be likely to be affected by the gambling 

   premises’, we will consider the following on a case-by-case basis: 

Page 21

https://www.begambleaware.org/news/treatment-needs-gap-analysis-research
https://www.begambleaware.org/news/treatment-needs-gap-analysis-research
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/Licensingauthority-toolkit/Public-health-and-Safeguarding-toolkit.aspx
https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/for-licensing-authorities/Licensingauthority-toolkit/Public-health-and-Safeguarding-toolkit.aspx


 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 12

 The size of the gambling premises 
 The nature of the gambling premises 
 The distance of the premises from the address of the person making the representation 
 The potential impact of the premises (number of customers, routes likely to be taken by those 

visiting the premises)  
 the circumstances of the person who lives close to the premises. This is not their personal 

characteristics, but their interests which may be relevant to the distance from the premises 
e.g. ‘sufficiently close to be likely to be affected’ could have a different meaning for (a) a private 
resident (b) a residential school for children with truanting problems and (c) a residential hostel 
for vulnerable adults 

 The ‘catchment’ area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit it). 
3.23. Having a ‘business interest’ will be given the widest possible interpretation and include community 

and voluntary groups, schools, charities, faith groups and medical practices. The licensing authority 
will consider the following factors relevant when determining whether a person’s business interests 
may be affected: 

 The size of the premises 
 The ‘catchment’ area of the premises (i.e. how far people travel to visit it) 
 whether the person making the representation has business interests in the affected 

catchment area  
3.24. In so far as who represents persons who satisfy paragraphs (a) or (b), this would include for example:  

i. Residents’ associations and tenants’ associations 
ii. Trade associations and trade unions 
iii. Any other person with written permission from somebody who satisfies paragraph (i) or (ii) 
iv. Local councillors and MPs 

 
  Exchange of information between the licensing authority and the Gambling 

Commission (s29 and s30 of GA2005), and the exchange of information between the 
licensing authority and other persons listed in Schedule 6 of the Act 

3.23 The licensing authority may share application information received in the course of processing 
applications with the Gambling Commission, a constable or police force, an enforcement officer, 
another Licensing Authority, her Majesty’s Commissioners of Customs & Excise, The Gambling 
Appeal Tribunal, The National Lottery Commission, The Secretary of State or Scottish Ministers. 
 

3.24 We will abide by the Freedom of Information Act and the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) 
in its safeguarding/release of information or data. 
 

3.25 In the context of the Gambling Act, we will retain only that information which relates to the processing 
of applications for licences, permits, permissions and representations. Applications and 
representations in respect of applications are both in the public domain and are therefore available 
on request and may be published as part of our web register. Personal addresses/contact numbers 
attached with representations may also be released. Information may also be shared with other 
Gambling Act regulators or other parties prescribed by the Secretary of State. 
 

3.26 Licensing authorities have statutory duties to notify the Commission as well as the applicant and 
other responsible authorities of the grant/rejection of applications (new, variations, transfers etc) as 
well as the revocation, surrender or lapse of a premises licence using the correct statutory forms.  
 

Page 22



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 13

3.27 We will inform the Gambling Commission without delay if:  

 The Licensing Authority receives information that causes it to question the suitability of the 
person holding/applying to hold an operating licence 

 There are persistent or serious disorder problems that an operator could or should do more to 
prevent, so that the Commission may consider the continuing suitability of the operator to hold 
an operating licence  

 If it comes to our attention that: alcohol-licensed premises or clubs or institutes are playing 
bingo during the course of a week which involves significant stakes and prizes and makes it 
possible that the £2,000 in seven days is being exceeded. 

3.28 The licensing authority will act in accordance with the relevant legislation and guidance from the 
Commission and will adopt the principles of better regulation. 

Functions of the licensing authority under Part 15 of the GA2005 with respect to the 
inspection of premises and the power under s346 of the Act to institute criminal 
proceedings in respect of the offences specified in that section 

3.29 Our principal enforcement role under the Gambling Act is to ensure compliance with the conditions 
 of the premises licence and legal requirements in respect of other permissions the licensing    
 authority regulates. However, we will also ensure that any unlicensed premises which are operating 
 illegally are dealt with appropriately to ensure compliance. Where appropriate, we will work with the 
 Gambling Commission in our enforcement activity. The Council will adopt a risk-based inspection 
 and enforcement programme, which will mean giving greater attention to high-risk premises and a 
 lighter touch for low-risk premises. In all cases we will ensure our inspection and enforcement 
 programme is operated in accordance with any codes of practice issued by the Gambling 
 Commission, in accordance with the Government’s Enforcement Concordat and the Compliance 
 Code.  
 

3.30 The Council will take account of the Gambling Commissions guidance document issued in 
February 2015 (or any subsequent amendments) ‘Approach to Test Purchasing’ when considering 
making test purchases at gambling premises. The Council will also follow its own policies and 
procedures regarding the use of underage test purchasers. 
 

3.31 This licensing authority will be guided by the Gambling Commission’s Guidance for local authorities 
and will endeavour to be: 
 

Proportionate regulators should only intervene when necessary:  remedies 
should be appropriate to the risk posed, and costs identified and 
minimised 

Accountable regulators must be able to justify decisions, and be subject to 
public scrutiny 

Consistent rules and standards must be joined up and implemented fairly 
Transparent regulators should be open, and keep regulations simple and 

user friendly 
Targeted regulation should be focused on the problem, and minimise side 

effects 
 
 

3.32 Where there is a Primary Authority scheme in place, the council will seek guidance from the 
Primary Authority before taking any enforcement action. At the time of the publication of this policy 
there were seven Primary Authority arrangements with host local authorities: 

Page 23



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 14

 
Operator Primary Authority local authority 
BACTA Reading 
Coral Racing Milton Keynes 
Ladbrokes Milton Keynes 
Paddy Power Reading 
Rank Group City of Westminster 
Sky Betting & Gaming Wakefield 
William Hill Reading 

 
 

3.33 Further information, including an index of all Primary Authority arrangements can be found at   
 https://primary-authority.beis.gov.uk/  

 
Commenting on a licence application 

3.34   If ‘interested parties’ (see below for definition) or ‘responsible authorities’ wish to comment on an 
  application for a premises licence relating to the licensing objectives, they can make a    
 ‘representation’. The Licensing Authority can only consider representations if made by either an   
 ‘interested party’ or ‘responsible authority’. 

 
3.35 A representation is a statement that outlines any comments that the party making the representation 

wants to be taken into consideration by the Licensing Authority when determining the application. In 
all cases representations will need to be ‘relevant’. The only representations likely to be relevant are 
those that meet one or more of the following criteria: 

 Relate to the licensing objectives 
 Relate to relevant matters in our gambling policy  
 Relate to relevant matters in the Gambling Commission’s Guidance to Local Authorities 
 Relate to relevant matters in the Gambling Commission’s Codes of Practice 
 Relate to the premises that are the subject of the application  
AND 
 Are neither frivolous nor vexatious nor will certainly not influence the authority’s 

determination of the application. 
 

Factors that will not be relevant 

3.36   Any objections to new premises or requests for a review should be based on the licensing  
 objectives of the Act. Unlike the Licensing Act 2003, the Act does not include the prevention of   
 public nuisance as a specific licensing objective. 

 
3.37 The licensing authority will not take into account representations that are:  

 repetitive, vexatious or frivolous  
 from a rival gambling business where the basis of the representation is unwanted competition  
 moral objections to gambling  
 concerned with expected demand for gambling  
 anonymous       

Page 24

https://primary-authority.beis.gov.uk/


 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 15

3.38 Details of applications and representations referred to a licensing sub- Committee for determination 
will be published in reports that are made publicly available and placed on the council’s website in 
accordance with the Local Government Act 1972 and the Freedom of Information Act 2000. Personal 
details will however be removed from representations in the final website version of reports.  
   

3.39 Names and addresses of people making representations will be disclosed to applicants and only be 
withheld from publication on the grounds of personal safety where the licensing authority is 
specifically asked to do so. 

 
 

Split Premises      

3.40 The Licensing Authority will always give the closest consideration to whether a sub-division has  
 created separate premises meriting a separate machine entitlement. The Authority will not 
 automatically grant a licence for sub- divided premises even if the mandatory conditions are met, 
 particularly where the Authority considers that this has been done in order to sidestep controls on 
 the number of machines which can be provided in a single premise. The Authority will consider if the 
 sub-division has harmed the licensing objective of protecting the vulnerable. The Authority may also 
 take into account other relevant factors as they arise on a case-by-case basis.  
  

Premises “ready for gambling” 

3.41 A licence to use premises for gambling will only be issued in relation to premises: 

 that the Authority can be satisfied are going to be ready to be used for gambling in the 
reasonably near future, consistent with the scale of building or alterations required before the 
premises are brought into use 

 where they are expected to be used for the gambling activity named on the licence. 
 

3.42 If the construction of a premises is not yet complete, or if they need alteration, or if the applicant does 
not yet have a right to occupy them, then an application for a provisional statement should be made 
instead.  
 

3.43 In deciding whether a premises licence can be granted where there are outstanding construction or 
alteration works at a premises, this authority will determine applications on their merits, applying a 
two-stage consideration process: -  

1) Whether the premises ought to be permitted to be used for gambling  
2) Whether appropriate conditions can be put in place to cater for the situation that the premises 

are not yet in the state in which they ought to be before gambling takes place.  
3.44 Applicants should note that this Authority is entitled to decide that it is appropriate to grant a licence 

subject to conditions, but it is not obliged to grant such a licence. 
 

3.45 When dealing with a premises licence application for finished buildings, the licensing authority will 
not take into account: 

 whether those buildings have to comply with the necessary planning or building consents; 
 fire or health and safety risks.  

3.46 Those matters should be dealt with under relevant planning control, building and other regulations, 
and must not form part of the consideration for the premises licence. 

Page 25



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 16

 
3.47 It is noted that S.210 of the Act prevents licensing authorities taking into account the likelihood of the 

proposal by the applicant obtaining planning or building consent when considering a premises licence 
application. Equally, the grant of a gambling premises licence does not prejudice or prevent any 
action that may be appropriate under the law relating to planning or building. 
 

Applications and plans  

3.48 The Gambling Act (s51) requires applicants to submit plans of the premises with their application, in 
order to ensure that the Licensing Authority has the necessary information to make an informed 
judgement about whether the premises are fit for gambling. The plan will also be used for the Authority 
to plan future premises inspection activity. 
 

3.49 It is the local authority’s policy that it will expect applicants for new premises licences and variations 
to provide a plan showing the indicative layout of the plan including, but not limited to: 

 Machines, specified by category 
 Staff counters 

3.50 We consider that this information is appropriate, in conjunction with the premises’ risk assessment, 
to effectively assess the provision of gambling facilities at the premises. Where this information is not 
provided, it is more likely that a representation will be made in order to enable the licensing authority 
to accurately assess the likely effect of granting the application relative to the LCCP and licensing 
objectives.  
    

3.51 The premises plan in itself is only one means by which the licensing authority may seek reassurance 
that the requirements will be met. It may be that conditions attached to the premises licence regarding 
lines of sight between the counter and the gaming machines, staffing arrangements or security 
devices are a more effective method of doing so. Local circumstances and concerns and the layout 
of a particular premises may well determine what is most appropriate for an individual application. 

 
Tracks 

3.52 Plans for tracks do not need to be in a particular scale, but should be drawn to scale and should be 
sufficiently detailed to include the information required by regulations.  Some tracks may be situated 
on agricultural land where the perimeter is not defined by virtue of an outer wall or fence, such as 
point-to-point racetracks. In such instances, where an entry fee is levied, track premises licence 
holders may erect temporary structures to restrict access to premises =In the rare cases where the 
outer perimeter cannot be defined, it is likely that the track in question will not be specifically designed 
for the frequent holding of sporting events or races. In such cases betting facilities may be better 
provided through occasional use notices where the boundary premises do not need to be defined.  
 

3.53 This authority appreciates that it is sometimes difficult to define the precise location of betting areas 
on tracks. The precise location of where betting facilities are provided is not required to be shown on 
track plans, both by virtue of the fact that betting is permitted anywhere on the premises and because 
of the difficulties associated with pinpointing exact locations for some types of track.  
 

3.54 Applicants should provide sufficient information that this authority can satisfy itself that the plan 
indicates the main areas where betting might take place. For racecourses in particular, any betting 
areas subject to the “five times rule” (commonly known as betting rings) must be indicated on the 
plan. 

Page 26



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 17

 
 

3. Determining Premises Licences 

How the Licensing Authority decides whether to grant or refuse an application 

3.1 Where we receive an application for a gambling premises licence, we will aim to permit the use of 
premises for gambling where it is considered: 

a) In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission 
b) In accordance with any relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission  
c) Reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives (subject to a and b) and 
d) In accordance with this policy (subject to a – c). 

3.2 The Licensing Authority has no discretion to either grant or refuse premises licences in circumstances 
that would mean departing from the above e.g. the committee cannot reject applications on moral 
grounds.  
 

3.3 Each case will be decided on its merits.  
 

3.4 The Licensing Authority will not have regard to any demand issues for the premises.  
 

3.5 Where an area has known high levels of organised crime the licensing authority will consider carefully 
whether gambling premises are suitable to be located there and whether conditions may be suitable 
such as the provision of door supervisors. 
 

3.6 Rather than reject applications outright, wherever possible the Licensing Authority will look to work 
with gambling premises and tackle concerns with licence conditions that uphold the licensing 
objectives. However, where there are reasons that granting a licence would not be consistent with 
(a) - (d) above, the application will normally be refused. 
 

3.7 In accordance with the Guidance from the Gambling Commission, we will circulate ‘clear and 
comprehensive’ reasons for any decision to all parties. We will also cite the extent to which decisions 
have been made in accordance with the Council’s gambling policy and the Guidance from the 
Gambling Commission. 
 

How the licensing committee decides what conditions to apply to premises licences 

3.8 Premises Licences may be subject to any or all of the following:  

 Conditions specified in the Gambling Act 2005  
 Conditions specified in the regulations issued by the Secretary of State  
 Conditions attached by Rochdale Borough Council’s Licensing Sub-Committee following a 

hearing (where necessary). 
3.9 With respect to conditions, licensing authorities are able to:  

 Issue licences without modifying conditions set out in the Act and by the Secretary of State 
 Exclude default conditions  
 Attach conditions where it is believed to be appropriate 
 Conditions may be general in nature (i.e. they attach to all licences of a particular premises 

type e.g. all casinos) or they may be specific to a particular licence.  

Page 27



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 18

3.10 We will ensure that any conditions we impose are:  

 Proportionate to the circumstances which they are seeking to address   
 Relevant to the need to make the proposed building suitable as a gambling facility 
 Directly related to the premises and the type of licence applied for 
 Fairly and reasonably related to the scale and type of premises 
 Reasonable in all other respects.  

 
3.11 There are also conditions, which the licensing authority cannot attach to premises licences: 

 Conditions on a premises licence which make it impossible to comply with an operating licence 
condition  

 Conditions relating to gaming machine categories, numbers, or method of operation 
 Conditions that require membership of a club or body. (The Gambling Act specifically removes 

the membership requirement for casino and bingo clubs and this provision prevents it being 
reinstated) 

 Conditions relating to stakes, fees, winnings or prizes 
 Conditions relating to demand for the premises. 

 
3.12 Decisions about conditions will be taken on a case-by-case basis considering Gambling Commission 

guidance, Gambling Commission Codes of Practice, the Licensing Objectives and our policy. 
 

Determining whether to review a licence   

3.13 After a licence is granted, where the day to day operation of a gambling premises is not felt to be 
‘reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives’, a review of the premises licence can be 
requested at any time.  
 

3.14 A review may be initiated by the Licensing Authority or as a result of an application for review from 
an interested party or responsible authority. Where it is the Licensing Authority that initiate the review, 
they may do this for a whole class of premises e.g. all Adult Gaming Centres or in relation to particular 
premises. The Licensing Authority can review a licence for any reason it thinks appropriate.  
 

3.15 Where an application for review is received from an interested party or responsible authority, as a 
licensing authority we must decide whether to go ahead with the review. The application for review 
will be considered based on the following: 

 Does the request raise issues other than those found under the Gambling Commission’s 
Guidance, Codes of Practice, the Licensing Objectives or our gambling policy? 

 Is it irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious? 
 Is it so minor that the authority will certainly not wish to revoke or suspend the licence or 

remove, amend or attach conditions? 
 Is it substantially the same as a previous application for review relating to the same premises? 
 Is the application for review substantially the same as a representation made at the time the 

application for a premises licence was considered?  
3.16 If the answer to ANY of the above questions is ‘yes’, the request for review may be rejected. The 

purpose of the review is to determine if the licensing committee should take any action in relation to 
the licence. If action is needed, the options are to either: 

 Revoke the premises licence  
 Suspend the premises licence for a period not exceeding three months 

Page 28



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 19

 Exclude a default condition imposed by the Secretary of State (relating to, for example, 
opening hours) or remove or amend such an exclusion 

 Add, remove or amend a licence condition previously imposed by the Licensing Authority. 
 

3.17 To decide what action, if any, needs to be taken following an application for review, the licensing 
committee will make its determination:  

 In accordance with any relevant code of practice issued by the Gambling Commission 
 In accordance with relevant guidance issued by the Gambling Commission 
 In so far as it is reasonably consistent with the licensing objectives 
 In accordance with the authority’s statement of licensing policy 

 
3.18 The committee will also consider any relevant representations and information given at the hearing. 

Codes or practice and the guidance referred to above may be obtained from the Gambling 
Commission. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4. Relevant factors when considering applications and reviews 

4.1 In considering applications for new gambling licences, variations to existing licences and licence 
reviews the licensing authority will consider the following matters:   

 the location of the premises  
 the Local Area Profile  
 the Local Risk Assessment (LRA)  
 the views of responsible authorities  
 the views of interested parties  
 compliance history of current management  
 the hours of operation         
 the type of premises         
 the operation of the premises in accordance with the expectations of the licensing authority, 

as set out in this policy 
 the physical suitability of the premises  
 the levels of crime and disorder in the area  
 the level of deprivation and ill health in the area  

 
4.2 The Licensing Authority believes that this list is not exhaustive and there may be other factors which 

may arise that could be considered relevant. The Licensing Authority will consider the relevance of 
any additional factors raised on a case-by-case basis. 
 

Page 29



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 20

 Location of the premises 

4.3 The location of the premises will be an important factor as it can impact on all three of the licensing 
objectives. The Licensing Authority will consider very carefully applications for premises licences that 
are located in close proximity to sensitive premises such as: 

 Schools, including universities 
 Parks, stations, other transport hubs and places where large numbers of school  children 

might be expected  
 other premises licensed for gambling  
 premises licensed for alcohol  
 children’s and vulnerable persons’ centres and accommodation  
 youth and community centres  
 health and treatment centres  
 leisure centres used for sporting and similar activities by young persons and/or vulnerable 

persons  
 religious centres and public places of worship  

  
4.4 The Licensing Authority expects each premises to produce and keep on the premises a local risk 

assessment, covering the areas set out in this policy. 
 

  

 
 
 

 Local risk assessments 

4.5 Licensees are required to undertake a local risk assessment when applying for a new premises 
licence. Their risk assessment must also be updated: 

 when applying for a variation of a premises licence 
 to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including those identified in a 

licensing authority’s policy statement 
 when there are significant changes at a licensee’s premises that may affect their mitigation of 

local risks. 
4.6 Licensees must assess the local risks to the licensing objectives posed by the provision of gambling 

facilities at each of their premises, and have policies, procedures and control measures to mitigate 
those risks. In undertaking their risk assessments, they must take into account relevant matters 
identified in the licensing authority’s policy statement. 
 

4.7 In conducting their risk assessment, the Licensing Authority will expect operators to follow the general 
principles of risk assessment: 

1) Identify hazards (think about what may cause harm using the information provided below as a 
guide and any other matters you consider relevant) 
 

2) Assess the risks (decide how likely it is that someone could be harmed and how serious it could 
be. This is assessing the level of risk). Decide: 

i) Who might be harmed and how 
ii) What you're already doing to control the risks 

Page 30



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 21

iii) What further action you need to take to control the risks 
iv) Who needs to carry out the action 
v) When the action is needed by 

 
3) Control the risks (Look at what you're already doing, and the controls you already have in place.) 

Ask yourself: 
i) Can I get rid of the hazard altogether? 
ii) If not, how can I control the risks so that harm is unlikely? 

 
4) Record your findings (record your significant findings), including: 

i) the hazards (things that may cause harm) 
ii) who might be harmed and how 
iii) what you are doing to control the risks 

 
5) Review the controls. (You must review the controls you have put in place to make sure they are 

working.) You should also review them if: 
i) they may no longer be effective 
ii) Also consider a review if your workers have spotted any problems or there have been any 

accidents or near misses. 
iii) to take account of significant changes in local circumstances, including those identified in 

this policy statement 
iv) when there are significant changes at the premises that may affect your mitigation of local 

risks 
v) Update your risk assessment record with any changes you make. 

4.8 The Licensing Authority considers the following as significant changes at the premises that may affect 
your mitigation of local risks: 

 Staffing changes 
 Layout of the premises 
 Changes to gaming facilities provided 

 
4.9 The Authority will expect the local risk assessment to consider the urban setting:  

 The proximity of the premises to schools 
 The commercial environment 
 Factors affecting the footfall 
 Whether the premises is in an area of deprivation 
 Whether the premises is in an area subject to high levels of crime and/or disorder 
 The ethnic profile of residents in the area. 
 The demographics of the area in relation to vulnerable groups 
 The location of services for children such as schools, playgrounds, toy shops, leisure centres 

and other areas where children will gather 
 The range of facilities in the local area such as other gambling outlets, banks, post offices, 

refreshment and entertainment type facilities 
 Known problems in the area such as problems arising from street drinkers, youths participating 

in anti-social behaviour, drug dealing activity, etc. 
 The proximity of churches, mosques, temples or any other place of worship 

 
4.10 The local risk assessment must show how vulnerable people, including people with gambling 

dependencies, are protected through: 

Page 31



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 22

 The training of staff in brief intervention when customers show signs of excessive gambling, 
the ability of staff to offer brief intervention and how the manning of premises affects this. 

 Information held by the licensee regarding self-exclusions and incidences of underage 
gambling.  

 Arrangements in place for local exchange of anonymised information regarding self-exclusion 
and gaming trends. 

 Gaming trends that may mirror days for financial payments such as pay days or benefit 
payments. 

 Arrangements for monitoring and dealing with underage people and vulnerable people, which 
may include: 

o dedicated and trained personnel 
o leaflets and posters 
o self-exclusion schemes 
o window displays and advertisements designed to not entice children and vulnerable 

people. 
 The provision of signage and documents relating to games rules, gambling care providers and 

other relevant information be provided in both English and the other prominent first language 
for that locality 

 The proximity of premises that may be frequented by vulnerable people such as hospitals, 
residential care homes, medical facilities, doctor surgeries, council community hubs, addiction 
clinics or help centres, places where alcohol or drug dependent people may congregate. 
 

4.11 The local risk assessment should show how children are to be protected:  

 The proximity of institutions, places or areas where children and young people frequent such 
as schools, youth clubs, parks, playgrounds and entertainment venues such as bowling allies, 
cinemas, etc. 

 The proximity of place where children congregate such as bus stops, cafes, shops. 
 Areas that are prone to issues of youths participating in anti-social behaviour, including 

activities such as graffiti, tagging, underage drinking etc. 
 

4.12 Other matters that the assessment will include as appropriate: -  

 Details as to the location and coverage of working CCTV cameras, and how the system will 
be monitored. 

 The layout of the premises so that staff have an unobstructed view of people using the 
premises. 

 The number of staff that will be available on the premises at any one time. If at any time that 
number is one, confirm the supervisory and monitoring arrangements when that person is 
absent from the licensed area or distracted from supervising the premises and observing those 
people using the premises. 

 Where the application is for a betting premises licence, other than in respect of a track, the 
location and extent of any part of the premises which will be used to provide facilities for 
gambling in reliance on the licence. 
 

4.13 Such information may be used to inform the decision the Authority makes about whether to grant the 
licence, to grant the licence with special conditions, or to refuse the application.  
 

4.14 This policy does not preclude any application being made and each application will be decided on its 
merits, with the onus being upon the applicant to show how the concerns can be overcome. 

Page 32



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 23

 
 Local Area Profile 

4.15 The Greater Manchester Gambling Harms Reduction programme is listening to residents with lived 
experience of gambling and is commissioning its own research to better understand problem 
gambling in the region. As findings from this research emerge, license holders will be expected to 
support the delivery of recommendations to help minimize gambling harms to the local populations. 
This research and evidence will be available online at: https://www.greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/health/gambling/understanding-gambling-related-harms/ and should be 
referred to in Local Risk Assessments. 
 

 
 How the premises will operate consistent with the licensing objectives 

4.16 We expect high standards from all gambling premises. Operators will be expected to demonstrate 
that they have given careful consideration to the licensing objectives and have appropriate measures 
in place to uphold them. 
 

4.17 The following paragraphs indicate the physical and management factors that the licensing authority 
may take into account when considering applications for new, varied licence applications and 
reviews. These are not mandatory requirements but should be used as a guide to applicants and 
licensees as to the sort of arrangements that it should have in place and demonstrate these are in 
place through their bespoke risk assessment. Where an applicant or licensee can demonstrate that 
these factors are not relevant, or alternative arrangements are more appropriate, the licensing 
authority will take these into account. 
 

Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with 
crime or disorder or being used to support crime: 

4.18 The Gambling Commission play a leading role in preventing gambling from being a source of crime, 
through maintaining rigorous procedures that aim to prevent criminals from providing facilities for 
gambling, or being associated with doing so, as a result of the operating licence procedure. 
 

4.19 However, as a Licensing Authority, we will take into account any local considerations that may impact 
with regard to this licensing objective, particularly in respect to the location of the premises, to ensure 
the suitability of the gambling premises. When considering whether a disturbance was serious 
enough to constitute disorder, we will have regard to the individual merits of the situation including, 
but not limited to, whether police assistance was required and how threatening the behaviour was to 
those who could see or hear it. We acknowledge that the Gambling Commission highlights in its 
guidance to local authorities that “disorder is intended to mean activity that is more serious and 
disruptive than mere nuisance”. 
 

4.20 Whilst regulatory issues arising from the prevention of disorder are likely to focus almost exclusively 
on premises licensing, rather than on operating licences; if there are persistent or serious disorder 
problems that we consider an operator could or should do more to prevent, we will bring this to the 
attention of the Commission so that it can consider the continuing suitability of the operator to hold 
an operating licence. 
 

4.21 Licensees and applicants will be expected to demonstrate that they have given careful consideration 
to preventing gambling from being a source of crime and disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime.  

Page 33

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/health/gambling/understanding-gambling-related-harms/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/health/gambling/understanding-gambling-related-harms/


 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 24

 
4.22 In addition to the need to consult a local Crime Reduction Officer, the operators of new 

premises/premises undergoing a refurbishment should also engage with the police’s architectural 
liaison unit at the design stage to ensure crime prevention and detection. 
 

4.23 We encourage that premises liaise with their Neighbourhood Policing Team to develop relationships 
at a local level and promote effective communication and co-operation. Additionally, operators are 
expected to actively support and participate in any local business partnership schemes, where any 
such schemes are in operation, and where such schemes are reasonably consistent with the 
licensing objectives. 
 

4.24 The measures to be considered should include:  

 The arrangements in place to control access (preventing unauthorised access shall not be 
limited to the provision of supervisory personnel; other options may include, but are not limited 
to, time-lock or maglock entrances) 

 The opening hours  
 The provision of registered door supervisors* 
 The provision of CCTV  
 The number of staff on duty and effective staff training, especially in relation to lone working 
 The provision of toilet facilities  
 Prevention of antisocial behaviour associated with the premises, such as street drinking, litter, 

activity outside the premises including the management of clients leaving the premises 
 Adequate lighting inside and out (appropriate to the premises in question) to ensure against 

robbery and other covert activity. 
* Only staff directly employed by Casinos and Bingo Clubs have an exemption from SIA registration. 
Where door supervisors are provided at these premises the operator should ensure that any people 
employed in this capacity are fit and proper to carry out such duties. Possible ways to achieve this 
could be to carry out a criminal records (DBS) check on potential staff and for such personnel to have 
attended industry recognised training. 
 
Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way 

4.25 Generally, this objective will be addressed by: 

 The management of the gambling business (in conjunction with the Gambling Commission, 
who are responsible for issuing and enforcement of the operating licence). 

 The personal licence holders proving their suitability and actions (which again is the 
responsibility of the Gambling Commission) 
 

4.26 Where we suspect that gambling is not being conducted in a fair and open way, we will bring this to 
the attention of the Gambling Commission, for their further consideration, and work in partnership 
with their officers In the case of those premises that do not hold an operating licence such as tracks, 
additional conditions may be required dependent on the risks outlined in the application. 
 

Page 34



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 25

Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by 
gambling 

4.27 The Gambling Act defines ‘children’ as those persons under 16 years of age and ‘young persons’ as 
those persons aged 16 or 17 years of age. The term ‘vulnerable persons’ is not defined and what 
constitutes harm or exploitation will have to be considered on a case-by-case basis. 
 

4.28 Gambling-related harms are the adverse impacts from gambling on the health and wellbeing of 
individuals, families, communities and society. These harms are diverse, affecting resources, 
relationships and health, and may reflect an interplay between individual, family and community 
processes. The harmful effects from gambling may be short-lived but can persist, having longer- term 
and enduring consequences that can exacerbate existing inequalities. 
 

4.29 Regard will be had to current evidence in relation to vulnerability to gambling-related harm. In 2015, 
Manchester City Council in partnership with Westminster Council commissioned research into this 
issue and published a report: Exploring area-based vulnerability to gambling-related harm: Who is 
vulnerable? Findings from a quick scoping review by Heather Wardle, Gambling and Place Research 
Hub, Geofutures 13th July 2015. Similarly, In 2016 Leeds City Council commissioned Leeds Beckett 
University to undertake research into Problem Gambling  (Problem Gambling in Leeds; Kenyon, 
Ormerod, Parsons and Wardle, 2016) looking specifically at identifying groups of the society that 
could be considered (more) vulnerable to problem gambling: 

 Younger people, including students 
 Those who are unemployed and/or with constrained financial circumstances 
 Those from minority ethnic groups 
 Those under the influence of alcohol or drugs 
 Problem gamblers seeking treatment 
 Homeless people 
 Those living in areas of greater deprivation 
 Those with other mental health issues and substance abuse/misuse disorders 
 Those with poorer intellectual functioning  
 Custodial and non-custodial offenders 

 
4.30 Licensees and applicants will be expected to demonstrate they have carefully considered how to 

protect children and vulnerable persons from harm and have adequate arrangements for preventing 
underage gambling on their premises. The measures that should be considered where appropriate 
are:  

 The provision of CCTV 
 Location of entrances  
 Restricted opening and closing times to protect residents vulnerable to harm 
 Supervision of entrances        
 Controlled access to the premises by children under the age of 18  
 Dealing with pupils who are truanting, and policies to address seasonal periods where children 

may more frequently attempt to gain access to premises and gamble such as pre and post 
school hours, half term and school holidays 

 Design layout/lighting/fit out to not attract children or vulnerable persons having a nationally-
recognised proof of age scheme – Think 21/25 

 The provision of registered door supervisors 
 Clear segregation between gaming and non-gaming areas in premises frequented by children 
 The provision of adequate signage and notices  

Page 35

https://observatory.leeds.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Problem-Gambling-Report.pdf
https://observatory.leeds.gov.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/01/Problem-Gambling-Report.pdf


 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 26

 Supervision of machine areas in premises, particularly areas to which children are admitted  
 Controlled opening hours  
 Effective self-barring schemes  
 The provision of materials for GamCare, Betknowmore UK or similar, Citizens Advice Bureau 

information, local public and mental health and housing/homeless associations, printed in 
languages appropriate to the customer base.  

 Advertising local support services in the area such as Beacon Counselling Trust or the NHS 
Gambling Clinic. 

 The number of staff on duty and effective staff training, especially in relation to the ability to 
effectively Identify and engage with vulnerable persons, including primary intervention and 
escalation 

 A requirement that children must be accompanied by an adult (in premises where children are 
allowed) 

 Enhanced DBS checks of staff 
 Obscuring windows where appropriate and labelling premises so it is clear that they are 

gambling premises 
 Self-exclusion schemes 

4.31 With reference to those persons with a mental impairment or mental health difficulties, operators 
would be well-advised to consult a suitable Mental Health Advisor and formulate a policy to protect 
this category of vulnerable person from being harmed or exploited by gambling. 
 

4.32 For multi-occupied premises consideration should be given to the arrangements for controlling 
access to children and the compatibility of the different uses. Separate and identifiable entrances 
may be required to ensure that people do not drift inadvertently into a gambling area. 

4.33 Children are not permitted to use Category C or above machines and in premises where these 
machines are available and children are permitted on the premises the licensing authority will require: 

 all Category C and above machines to be located in an area of the premises which is separated 
from the remainder of the premises by a physical barrier to prevent access other than through 
a designated entrance  

 adults only admitted to the area where these machines are located  
 adequate supervised access to the area where the machines are located  
 the area where these machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by the staff 

or the licence holder  
 prominent notices displayed at the entrance to, and inside, any such areas there indicating 

that access to the area is prohibited to persons under 18. 
  

 Expectations of operators: Staffing provision      

4.34 Staff in licensed gambling premises are recognised as being subject to risk in the workplace from 
violence and verbal abuse, especially if working alone. In addition, lone workers may not be able to 
sufficiently serve and supervise the customers, identify and prevent young people from gambling, 
protect vulnerable persons, deal with customers who may be consuming alcohol and prevent the 
premises being used as a source of crime or supporting crime. 
  

4.35 We expect premises management to recognise and address this as part of their management 
arrangements, especially at times where it has been identified that there is a spike in crimes around 
the premises.  
 

Page 36



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 27

4.36 We expect there to be an adequate number of staff and managers on the premises to cover key 
points throughout the day, especially where premises are close to schools/colleges/universities, 
pubs, bars, shopping centres and stadia. 
 

 Expectations of operators: Data gathering and sharing 

4.37 Keeping track of the incidence and handling of problem gambling in the Borough of Rochdale is a 
key part of promoting the licensing objectives. We expect all gambling premises to maintain a log and 
share this and other information with the Licensing Authority upon request. 
 

4.38 Data that we consider should be recorded and shared includes (but is not exclusive to). We would 
expect that all records including time and date along with a short description of the incident and action 
taken: 

1) Customer interventions 
2) Cases where persons who have decided to voluntarily exclude themselves from the premises 

have tried to gain entry 
3) Mandatory exclusions needing enforcement  
4) Attempts to enter by those underage in a calendar month  
5) Attempts to enter by those underage in the company of adults  
6) Attempts to enter by those underage with complicit adults  
7) Incidents of ‘at risk behaviour’  
8) Incidents of ‘behaviour requiring immediate intervention’  

4.39 We expect that this application will be provided to the licensing authority annually.  
 

4.40 A template for this information to be provided is at Appendix C.  
 

 Expectation of applicants: Staff Training and Knowledge 

4.41 We expect all customer-facing and management staff in premises licensed under the Gambling Act 
2005 to have sufficient knowledge to tackle risks associated with gambling and know how to promote 
responsible gambling. Amongst other elements, staff knowledge should include (where appropriate): 

1) The importance of social responsibility (Premises may wish to seek an audit from GamCare in 
order to obtain a certificate of Social Responsibility) 

2) Causes and consequences of problem gambling 
3) Identifying and communicating with vulnerable persons: primary intervention and escalation, 

supported by high quality training given the challenging nature of these conversations. 
4) Dealing with problem gamblers: exclusion (mandatory and voluntary) and escalating for 

advice/treatment including local treatment providers 
5) Refusal of entry (alcohol and drugs)  
6) Age verification procedures and need to return stakes/withdraw winnings if under age persons 

found gambling 
7) Importance and enforcement of time/spend limits 
8) The conditions of the licence 
9) Maintaining an incident log 
10) Offences under the Gambling Act 
11) Categories of gaming machines and the stakes and odds associated with each machine 
12) Types of gaming and the stakes and odds associated with each 
13) Ability to signpost customers to support services with respect to problem gambling, financial 

management, debt advice etc. 

Page 37



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 28

14) Safe cash-handling/payment of winnings 
15) Identify forged ID and bar those using forged ID from the premises 
16) Knowledge of a problem gambling helpline number (for their own use as well as that of 

customers) 
17) The importance of not encouraging customers to: 

(a) Increase the amount of money they have decided to gamble  
(b) Enter into continuous gambling for a prolonged period 
(c) Continue gambling when they have expressed a wish to stop 
(d) Re-gamble winnings 
(e) Chase losses. 

4.42 Above and beyond this we expect managers to have an in-depth knowledge of all of the above and 
be able to support staff in ensuring the highest standards with regard to protecting children and other 
vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling. In so far as training, we do not 
intend to duplicate any existing training requirement, such as may be required by the Gambling 
Commission’s Code of Practice. 
 

 Expectation of applicants: Gaming machines / layouts 

4.43 It is an operator’s responsibility to ensure staff are able to effectively monitor gaming machine play 
for a number of reasons that are part of the operator’s licence conditions. Age verification, customer 
interaction and self-exclusion policies all require operators to take into account the structure and 
layout of their gambling premises.  

4.44 The Licence conditions and code of practice (LCCP) state: ‘Facilities for gambling must only be 
offered in a manner which provides for appropriate supervision of those facilities by staff at all times’.
  
 

4.45 A screen or pod around a gaming machine, designed to increase the privacy of the player, could 
prevent staff in a gambling premises from effectively monitoring gaming machine play. 
  

4.46 Operators will be expected to be able to evidence to the licensing authority how they have considered 
the risk to the licensing objectives and implemented effective controls, prior to the introduction of any 
new machine arrangements. 
 

4.47 It will be important to consider the means by which gaming machines are supervised (e.g. line of 
sight to counter, effective CCTV, mirrors or floor staff) and consider whether that is appropriate for 
that premises. 
      

4.48 Whether amendments to a premises amount to a ‘material change’ warranting an application to vary 
the premises licence under s.187 of the Gambling Act is a matter for local determination and the 
licensing authority will adopt a common-sense approach. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 38



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 29

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

5. Premises-specific considerations 

 Adult Gaming Centres 

5.1 Adult gaming centres (AGCs) are premises able to make category B, C and D gaming machines 
available to their customers. Persons operating an AGC must hold a gaming machines general 
operating licence from the Commission as well as a premises licence from the Council. 
 

5.2 This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the authority 
that there will be sufficient measures to, for example, ensure that under 18 year olds do not have 
access to the premises.   
 

5.3 Where gambling facilities are provided at premises as a supplementary activity to the main purpose 
of the premises; e.g. motorway service areas and shopping malls. The council will expect the 
gambling area to be clearly defined to ensure that customers are fully aware that they are making a 
choice to enter into the gambling premises and that the premises is adequately supervised at all 
times. 
 

 Casinos 

6.4    The Gambling Act states that a casino is an arrangement whereby people are given the opportunity 
to participate in one or more casino games whereby casino games are defined as a game of chance 
which is not equal chance gaming. This means that casino games offer the chance for multiple 
participants to take part in a game competing against the house or bank at different odds to their 
fellow players.  Casinos can also provide equal chance gaming and gaming machines. 

 
6.5   ‘No Casinos’ resolution - This licensing authority has not passed a ‘no casino’ resolution under Section 

166 of the Gambling Act 2005, but is aware that it has the power to do so. Should this licensing 
authority decide in the future to pass such a resolution, it will update this policy statement with details 
of that resolution. Any such decision will be made by the Full Council. 

 

Page 39



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 30

  Bingo premises 

6.6 The Gambling Act 2005 does not contain a definition of Bingo. It is to have its ordinary and natural 
meaning and the Act does stipulate that “bingo” means any version of that game, irrespective of how 
it is described. Two types of bingo may be offered: 

 Cash bingo, where the stakes panel made up the cash prize that’s won; or 
 Prize bingo, where various forms of prizes is won, not directly relating to the stakes panel 

6.7 Subject to the rules of individual operators, children and young people are allowed into bingo 
premises. However, they are not permitted to participate in the bingo and if category B or C machines 
are made available for use these must be separated from areas where children and young people 
are allowed. 
 

6.8 Where category C or above machines are available in premises to which children are admitted then 
the council will ensure that: 

 all such machines are located in an area of the premises separate from the remainder of the 
premises by a physical barrier which is effective to prevent access other than through a 
designated entrance. For this purpose a rope, floor markings or similar provision will not suffice 
and the council may insist on a permanent barrier of at least one metre high  

 only adults are admitted to the area where the machines are located 
 access to the area where the machines are located is supervised at all times 
 the area where the machines are located is arranged so that it can be observed by staff 
 at the entrance to, and inside any such area there are prominently displayed notices indicating 

that access to the area is prohibited to people under 18 
 children will not be admitted to bingo premises unless accompanied by an adult.  

 
6.9 The Gambling Commission has provided Guidance for Licensing Authorities and Licence Conditions 

and Code of Practice which are applied to Operator’s Licences.  The council will take this into 
consideration when determining licence applications for bingo premises. 
  

6.10 Where certain measures are not already addressed by the mandatory/default conditions, the 
Gambling Commission Code of Practice or the applicant, the council may consider licence conditions 
to address such issues. 

 

 Electronic bingo gaming machines 

6.11  Where a premises intends on providing electronic terminals to play bingo, we will expect operators 
(as part of their application) to provide a breakdown of the number of electronic bingo terminals that 
will be provided at the premises. 
 

 Gaming machines at bingo premises 

6.12 In addition to bingo, this premises licence will authorise the provision of a limited number of gaming 
machines in line with the provisions of the Act. Bingo premises licences authorise a maximum of 20% 
of the total number of gaming machines which are available for use on the premises categories B3 
or B4. 
 

6.13 Bingo facilities in bingo premises may not be offered between the hours of midnight and 9am. 
However, there are no restrictions on access to gaming machines in bingo premises.  

Page 40



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 31

 
6.14 The LCCP requires (Social Responsibility Code Provision 9) that gaming machines are only made 

available in combination with the named non-remote activity of the operating licence. So, unless a 
bingo premises operator offers substantive facilities for non-remote bingo it should not make gaming 
machines available for use on the premises in question. 
 

6.15 As the licensing authority, we will need to satisfy ourselves that a premises applying for or licensed 
for bingo is operating or will operate in a manner which a customer would reasonably be expected to 
recognise as a premises licensed for the purposes of providing facilities for bingo. Equally, we must 
ensure that a premises licensed for the purposes of providing facilities for bingo is operating as such 
and is not merely a vehicle to offer higher stake and prize gaming machines. 
 

6.16 Therefore, we will expect operators (as part of their application) to provide information on: 

 any times they intend to provide gaming machines at any times that bingo facilities are not 
provided 

 how the premises will be recognised as a premises licensed for providing facilities for bingo 
 A breakdown of gaming machine numbers (by category)  

6.17 The licensing authority is concerned that later opening hours will attract the more vulnerable, such 
as those who are intoxicated or who have gambling addictions. The licensing authority will expect 
applicants can demonstrate that robust measures will be in place to protect the vulnerable and the 
additional hours are not being sought to take advantage of the gaming machine entitlement. 
 

6.18 The licensing authority will use their power to restrict the circumstances in which they are available 
for use when appropriate by way of conditions. When considering imposing conditions, the licensing 
authority will take into account, among other factors:  

 the size and physical layout of the premises  
 the number of counter positions and staff on the premises  
 the ability of staff to monitor the use of machines by children, young persons under the age of 

18 or vulnerable people 
6.19 The licensing authority will not seek to limit the number of gambling machines by category as this 

entitled provision is defined in the Gambling Act. However, we will seek to ensure that the number 
and provision of gaming machines are only provided in a manner which a customer would reasonably 
be expected to recognise as a premises licensed for the purposes of providing facilities for bingo. 
 

6.20 To contain the unavoidable risk to the licensing objectives associated with gaming machines, 
premises which offer machines must be appropriately supervised. 
 

6.21 The licensing authority will information required from an applicant for a new premises or for a variation 
to an existing premises in order to satisfy themselves as to the matters set out at s153 of the Act. 
This includes the codes of practice and the Gambling Commission’s guidance to licensing authorities. 
 

 'Entertainment’ Bingo  

6.22 A phenomenon over recent years has been the evolution of businesses, such as Bongo’s Bingo, 
providing facilities for high turnover bingo (the aggregate stakes or prizes for bingo in any seven day 
period may exceed £2,000); typically providing equal chance gaming at pubs and nightclubs, in 
reliance on the alcohol licence held by the premises, and therefore doing so under the rules for 
exempt gaming. 
 

Page 41



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 32

6.23 We note that it is a condition of some such companies’ operator’s licence that they must notify both 
the Commission and the relevant Licensing Authority at least 28 days before any event takes place 
in new premises, by providing a description of the event taking place, a copy of the premises contract 
and any amendment to the rules of the bingo. 
 

6.24 We would encourage venues hosting such events to promote responsible gambling messaging at 
them. 

 

 Betting Premises        

6.25 We encourage operators to participate in the Safebet Alliance in order to help ensure the highest 
standards for the safety and security of staff working at betting premises. Where an operator does not 
participate in the scheme, it is expected that they can satisfactorily demonstrate the security measures 
they incorporate are adequate.  

6.26 Licensed betting premises are only permitted to offer gambling facilities between 7am and 10pm, 
unless the licensing authority has granted a variation application to extend these hours. The licensing 
authority is concerned that later opening hours will attract the more vulnerable, such as those who 
are intoxicated or who have gambling addictions. The licensing authority also has concerns that 
licensed betting premises operators may seek to extend the permitted hours for the primary purpose 
of making gaming machines available to customers for longer.  
 

6.27 As a consequence, the licensing authority is unlikely to grant variation of hours’ applications unless 
applicants can demonstrate that robust measures will be in place to protect the vulnerable and the 
additional hours are not being sought to take advantage of the gaming machine entitlement.  
 

6.28 The licensing authority will use their power to restrict the number of betting machines (bet receipt 
terminals), their nature and the circumstances in which they are available for use when appropriate 
by way of conditions. When considering imposing conditions, the licensing authority will take into 
account, among other factors:  

  the size and physical layout of the premises  
  the number of counter positions and staff on the premises  
  the ability of staff to monitor the use of machines by children, young persons under the age 

of 18 or vulnerable people  
 

6.29 Betting machines - This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission's Guidance, take 
into account the size of the premises, the number of counter positions available for person-to-person 
transactions, and the ability of staff to monitor the use of the machines by children and young persons 
(it is an offence for those under 18 to bet) or by vulnerable people, when considering the 
number/nature/circumstances of betting machines an operator wants to offer. It is noted that that 
children are not able to go into premises with the benefit of a Betting Premises Licence. 
    

 (Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres 

6.30 The Act creates two classes of family entertainment centre (FEC). Licensed FEC’s provide category 
C and D machines and require a premises licence. Unlicensed FEC’s provide category D machines 
only are regulated through FEC gaming machine permits. 
 

6.31 This licensing authority will specifically have regard to the need to protect children and vulnerable 
persons from harm or being exploited by gambling and will expect the applicant to satisfy the 

Page 42



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 33

authority, for example, that there will be sufficient measures to ensure that under 18-year-olds do not 
have access to the adult only gaming machine areas. Operators should ensure that a proof of age 
scheme is in force. 
 

6.32 This licensing authority will, as per the Gambling Commission’s guidance, refer to the Commission’s 
website to see any conditions that apply to operating licences covering the way in which the area 
containing the category C machines should be delineated.  This licensing authority will also make 
itself aware of any mandatory or default conditions on these premises licences, when they have been 
published. 

 Occasional use notices       

6.33 Occasional Use Notices (OUN) are designed to allow licensed betting operators to provide betting 
facilities at genuine sporting events, such as point-to point racecourses and golf courses for major 
competitions, within the boundaries of the identified venue on a specific date. 
 

6.34 An OUN must be submitted for EACH day that the betting activity will be conducted on the premises. 
For example, four notices for four consecutive days of betting and not one notice covering the four 
days. 
 
We will liaise with the Gambling Commission should we receive an OUN that does not relate to a 
genuine recognised sporting event to ensure that OUN’s are not misused, for example, venues 
seeking to become tracks through a contrived sporting event, utilising OUNs to solely or primarily 
facilitate betting taking place on events occurring away from the identified venue. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 43



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 34

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

6.  Permits and other permissions 

 Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits 

6.1 Premises licensed to sell alcohol that have a bar and the alcohol is not ancillary to food for 
consumption on the premises, having more than two gaming machines, will need to apply for a permit 
and must also notify the Licensing Authority if they have one or two machines. In considering whether 
to grant a permit, the licensing authority will have regard to the licensing objectives, guidance issued 
by the Gambling Commission and any other relevant matters. Permits will not be granted to licensees 
who have failed to demonstrate compliance with the Gambling Commission’s Code of Practice. 
  
  

6.2 In addition to the requirements of the Gambling Commission’s Code of Practice, the Licensing 
Authority expects applicants to:   

 display adequate notices and signs, advertising the relevant age restrictions   
 position machines within view of the bar in order for staff to be able to monitor the machines 

for use by under age or misuse of the machines 
 challenge anyone suspected of being under age and refuse access 
 provide information leaflets and / or help-line numbers for organisations such as GamCare and 

Betknowmore UK. 
 

 Prize Gaming Machine Permits  

6.3 Prize gaming premises will appeal to children and young persons and weight will be given to child 
protection issues. Therefore, the licensing authority will expect the applicant to demonstrate that they 
are suitable to hold a permit (i.e. if the applicant has any convictions which would make them 
unsuitable to operate prize gaming) and the suitability of the premises. 
 

6.4 The licensing authority expects applicants to set out the types of gaming machines that they intend 
to offer and be able to demonstrate that:  

 they understand the limits to stakes and prizes that are set out in regulations 
 that the gaming offered is within the law 

 
6.5 The Gambling Commission website gives advice on types of permits, conditions, stakes and prizes. 

See https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk  
 

Page 44

https://www.gamblingcommission.gov.uk/


 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 35

 Unlicensed FECs (uFEC) 

6.6 Unlicensed family entertainment centres (FEC’s) will perhaps be most commonly located at places 
such as airports and at motorway service centres, and will cater for families, including 
unaccompanied children and young persons. Unlicensed FEC’s will be able to offer only category D 
machines in reliance on a gaming machine permit.  
 

6.7 Where a premises does not hold a premises licence but wishes to provide gaming machines, it may 
apply to the licensing authority for this permit.  It should be noted that the applicant must show that 
the premises will be wholly or mainly used for making gaming machines available for use (Section 
238). As a result, it is generally not permissible for such premises to correspond to an entire shopping 
centre, airport, motorway service station or similar. Typically, the machines would be in a designated, 
enclosed area. 
 

6.8 Given that the premises is likely to appeal particularly to children and young persons, when 
considering applications for permits we will give weight to matters relating to protection of children 
from being harmed or exploited by gambling and are keen to ensure that staff supervision adequately 
reflects the level of risk to this group. Therefore, we will generally expect such risks to be addressed 
through effective: 

 Staff supervision and training  
 Detailed plan  
 Social responsibility policies  
 Staff being easily identifiable  
 Clear signage 

6.9 As part of an application for a uFEC, it is our policy that a plan for the uFEC must be submitted. 
 

 Small Society Lotteries 

6.10 A lottery is small if the total value of tickets put on sale in a single lottery is £20,000 or less and the 
aggregate value of the tickets put on sale in a calendar year is £250,000 or less. 
 

6.11 To be ‘non-commercial’ a society must be established and conducted: 

 for charitable purposes, 
 for the purpose of enabling participation in, or supporting, sport, athletics or a cultural activity; 

or 
 for any other non-commercial purpose other than that of private gain. 

 
6.12 This licensing authority will adopt a risk-based approach towards its enforcement responsibilities for 

small society lotteries. This authority considers that the following list, although not exclusive, could 
affect the risk status of the operator: 

 Submission of late returns (returns must be submitted no later than three months after the date 
on which the lottery draw was held) 

 Submission of incomplete or incorrect returns  
 Breaches of the limits for small society lotteries 
 The eligibility of society as ‘non-commercial’ 

 
 

Page 45



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 36

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix A – Consultees 
 
British Beer & Pub Association 
HM Customs & Excise 
Gamblers Anonymous 
Gamcare 
Greater Manchester Fire & Rescue Service 
Greater Manchester Police 
The Lotteries Council 
The Bingo Association 
Association of British Bookmakers 
Casino Operators Association of the UK  
Business in Sport and Leisure 
BACTA 
British Casino Association (BCA) 
Security Industry Authority 
Remote Gambling Association 
Responsibility in Gambling Trust 
Gambling Commission 
TOTE 
Ladbrokes Plc 
William Hill 
Paul Deans Bookmakers Ltd 
Betfred 
British Holiday and Home Parks Association 
Club and Institute Union 
Society of Independent Brewers 
Nobles Amusements 
The Rank Group Plc 
Leisure Link 
Gamestec Leisure Ltd 
Gala Coral Group Ltd 
George Bet Centres Ltd 
Punch Taverns 
Rochdale MBC Environmental Health Service 
Rochdale MBC Development Control Service 
Rochdale MBC Local Safeguarding Children Unit 
Rochdale MBC Adult Care / Adult Safeguarding Service 
J W Lees (Brewers) Ltd 
Rochdale Federation of Tenants and Residents Associations 

Page 46



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 37

Rochdale, Heywood, Littleborough Pub Watch Groups 
Rochdale MBC Councillors 
Buckingham Bingo Ltd. 
Holders of existing betting shop licences. 
Residents via Libraries and Council Website. 
Rochdale Council Public Health & Wellbeing Service 
 
 
 
 
Appendix B – Responsible Authorities 
 
Any application must be sent to Rochdale Borough Council who has been defined as a Responsible 
Authority itself:  
 
Rochdale Borough Council Licensing Service 
Floor 3  
Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale  
OL16 1XU 
 
Copies of the application must also be sent to all of the following Responsible Authorities below: 
 
 
Fire Safety Team Leader 
GM Fire and Rescue Authority  
Rochdale Central HQ  
Rochdale Fire Station  
Halifax Road  
Rochdale, OL12 9BD 
 

HM Customs & Revenue 
National Registration Unit 
21 India Street 
Glasgow, G2 4PZ 
 

Rochdale Borough Council 
Safeguarding Children Board 
Floor 3  
Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 

Rochdale Borough Council 
Planning Service 
Floor 3  
Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
 

Chief Officer of Police 
Greater Manchester Police 
Divisional HQ  
The Holme  
The Esplanade  
Rochdale, OL16 1AG 
 

Rochdale Borough Council 
Environmental Health  
Floor 3  
Number One Riverside 
Smith Street 
Rochdale, OL16 1XU 
 

Gambling Commission 
Victoria Square House 
Victoria Square 
Birmingham, B2 4BP 

 

Page 47



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 38

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix C - Template for data collection  
 
 
The data collection template is available as an Excel file upon request from the Licensing Authority. The 
screenshots below demonstrate the information to be collected.  
 

 
 
 

Page 48



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 39

 
 
 
 
 

Appendix D - Glossary 

 
Term  Description  

ATM  Auto teller machine or cash machine.  
Betting  Betting is defined as making or accepting a bet on the outcome of a race, competition or other event 

or process or on the outcome of anything occurring or not occurring or on whether anything is or is 
not true. It is irrelevant if the event has already happened or not and likewise whether one person 
knows the outcome or not. (Spread betting is not included within this definition).  

Betting Machines / Bet 
Receipt Terminal  

Betting machines can be described as automated betting terminals where people can place bets on 
sporting events removing the need to queue up and place a bet over the counter.  

Bingo  There are essentially two types of bingo: cash bingo, where the stakes paid make up the cash prizes 
that can be won and prize bingo, where various forms of prizes can be won, not directly related to the 
stakes paid.  

Book  Running a 'book' is the act of quoting odds and accepting bets on an event. Hence the term 
'Bookmaker'.  

Casino games  A game of chance, which is not equal chance gaming. Casino games includes Roulette and black 
jack etc.  

Chip  Casinos in the UK require you to use chips to denote money. They are usually purchased and 
exchanged at a cashier's booth.  

Coin pusher or penny 
falls machine  

A machine of the kind which is neither a money prize machine nor a non-money prize machine  

Crane grab machine  A non-money prize machine in respect of which every prize which can be won consists of an individual 
physical object (such as a stuffed toy) won by a person’s success in manipulating a device forming 
part of the machine so as to separate, and keep separate, one or more physical objects from a group 
of such objects.  

Default condition  These are prescribed in regulations and will be attached to all classes of premises licence, unless 
excluded by the Authority.  

Equal Chance Gaming  Gaming which does not involve playing or staking against a bank.  
Fixed odds betting  If a gambler is able to establish what the return on a bet will be when it is placed, (and the activity is 

not 'gaming' see below), then it is likely to be betting at fixed odds.  
Fixed Odds betting 
terminals (FOBTs)  

FOBTs are a type of gaming machine which generally appear in licensed bookmakers. FOBTs have 
‘touch-screen’ displays and look similar to quiz machines familiar in pubs and clubs. They normally 
offer a number of games, roulette being the most popular.  

Page 49



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 40

Term  Description  

Gaming  Gaming can be defined as 'the playing of a game of chance for winnings in money or monies worth, 
whether any person playing the game is at risk of losing any money or monies worth or not'.  

Gaming Machine  Any type of machine allowing any sort of gambling activity including betting on virtual events but not 
including home computers even though users can access online gaming websites.  

Licensing Objectives  The licensing objectives are three principal goals which form the basis of the Act. Stakeholders who 
have an interest in the Act need to try and promote these objectives. The licensing objectives are:  
• Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or 
disorder or being used to support crime.  
• Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way.  
• Protecting children and other vulnerable people from being harmed or exploited by gambling.  

Lottery  A lottery generally refers to schemes under which prizes are distributed by chance among entrants 
who have given some form of value for their chance to take part. A lottery is defined as either a simple 
lottery or a complex lottery. A simple lottery is one where people are required to pay to participate and 
one or more prizes are allocated to one or more members of a class and the prizes are allocated by 
a process which relies wholly on chance. A complex lottery is where people are required to pay to 
participate and one or more members of a class and the prizes are allocated by a series of processes 
where the first of those processes relies wholly on chance. Prize means money, articles or services 
provided by the members of the class among whom the prize is allocated. (It should be noted that the 
National Lottery is not included in this definition of lottery and is regulated by the National Lottery 
Commission).  

Money prize machine  A machine in respect of which every prize which can be won as a result of using the machine is a 
money prize.  

Non-money prize 
machine  

A machine in respect of which every prize which can be won as a result of using the machine is a 
non-money prize. The winner of the prize is determined by:  
(i) the position in which the coin or token comes to rest after it has been inserted into the machine, 
together with the position of other coins or tokens which have previously been inserted into the 
machine to pay a charge for use, or  
(ii) if the insertion of a single coin to pay the charge for use enables the person using the machine to 
release one or more tokens within the machine, the position in which such tokens come to rest after 
being released, together with the position of other tokens which have previously been so released.  

Odds  The ratio to which a bet will be paid if the bet wins, e.g. 3-1 means for every £1 bet, a person would 
receive £3 of winnings.  

Off-course betting 
operator  

Off-course betting operators may, in addition to premises away from the track, operate self-contained 
betting premises within a track premises. Such self-contained premises will provide facilities for 
betting on both events taking place at the track (on-course betting), as well as other sporting events 
taking place away from the track (off-course betting). In essence such premises operate like a 
traditional high street bookmakers. They will however only normally operate on race days.  

On-course betting 
operator  

The on-course betting operator is one who comes onto on a track, temporarily, while races are taking 
place, and operates at the track side. On-course betting operators tend to offer betting only on the 
events taking place on the track that day (on-course betting).  

Pool Betting  For the purposes of the Gambling Act, pool betting is made on terms that all or part of the winnings:  
1) Shall be determined by reference to the aggregate of the stakes paid or agreed to be paid by the 
people betting  
2) Shall be divided among the winners or  
3) Shall or may be something other than money. For the purposes of the Gambling Act, pool betting 
is horse-race pool betting if it relates to horse-racing in Britain.  

Regulations or 
Statutory instruments  

Regulations are a form of law, often referred to as delegated or secondary legislation. They have the 
same binding legal effect as Acts and usually state rules that apply generally, rather than to specific 
people or things. However, regulations are not made by Parliament. Rather, they are made by people 
or bodies to whom Parliament has delegated the authority to make them, such as a minister or an 
administrative agency.  

Representations  In the context of the Gambling Act representations are either positive statements of support or 
negative objections which are made in relation to a licensing application. Representations must be 
made in time, e.g. during a designated notice period.  

Page 50



 
 
 
 
 

DRAFT Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

rochdale.gov.uk 41

Term  Description  

Responsible authority 
(authorities)  

Responsible authorities (RAs) are agencies which have been appointed by the Gambling Act or 
regulations to fulfil a designated role during the licensing process. RAs must be sent copies  
of all licensing applications and have the power to make representations about such  
applications.  RAs also have the power to ask for licences to be reviewed. 

Skill machine / Skill 
with prizes machine  

The Act does not cover machines that give prizes as a result of the application of pure skill by players. 
A skill with prizes machine is one on which the winning of a prize is determined only by the player’s 
skill – any element of chance imparted by the action of the machine would cause it to be a gaming 
machine. An example of a skill game would be trivia game machines, popular in pubs and clubs, 
which require the player to answer general knowledge questions to win cash prizes.  
 

Spread betting  A form of investing which is more akin to betting, and can be applied either to sporting events or to 
the financial markets. Spread betting is regulated by the Financial Services Authority.  

Stake  The amount pledged when taking part in gambling activity as either a bet, or deposit to the bank or 
house where the house could be a gaming machine.  

Statement of principles 
document  

A document prepared by the Authority which outlines the areas that applicants need to consider 
before applying for gaming permits.  

Table gaming  Card games played in casinos.  
Tote  "Tote" is short for Totaliser, a system introduced to Britain in 1929 to offer pool betting on racecourses.  
Track  Tracks are sites (including horse tracks and dog tracks and stadia) where races or other sporting 

events take place 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Rochdale Borough Council

Number One Riverside

Smith Street

Rochdale OL16 1YH

  rochdale.gov.uk

  01706 647474

  council@rochdale.gov.uk

Page 51



Schedule of Responses to draft Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025          
 

Reference  Respondent  Respondent Comments Action Taken / Comments 
 

Letter 
received - 25 
August 2021 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Gosschalks 
Solicitors acting 
for the Betting 
and Gaming 
Council 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Paragraph 3.11 – 3.17: Public Health 
‘The purpose of these paragraphs is unclear, the 
information provided is oversimplified, their 
inclusion is pejorative and they should be deleted. 
If these paragraphs are not to be deleted then 
they must be amended in order that any 
“research” referred to is properly identified, 
context is provided and the correct figures used 
when calculating the estimated numbers of 
problem gamblers and at risk gamblers’.  
 
‘Paragraph 3.12 refers to “research” but it is not 
clear what this research is, when this research was 
conducted or where. The paragraph refers to a 
“city region like Greater Manchester” and if it is to 
be left in the statement of principles, it should be 
clear that these figures are not figures from 
Greater Manchester itself’. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Due regard has been given to the comments to 
these paragraphs and are duly considered below.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Due regard has been given to this particular 
comment. This is the most up to date data we have 
available and incorporated an estimate based on 
GM population demographics using analysis 
conducted by Leeds Beckett University specifically 
looking at urban areas.  
The national data for gambling harm quoted by the 
BGC includes areas that bear no similarity to GM, 
therefore we have used more specific data to 
inform our estimates so they are relevant to our 
local population.  
However, the policy can be amended to include the 
following reference, “Kenyon (2017) Problem 
Gambling in Leeds: Report to Leeds City Council. 
Leeds Beckett. Available at: 

P
age 52



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
‘Paragraph 3.13 contains the statement, “Men, 
younger adults (aged 18-34) and adults from a 
lower socio-economic or black and minority ethnic 
background are more likely to be classified as 
gamblers experiencing some level of harm”. This 
may be correct where those groups do engage in 
gambling but context is all important. Otherwise a 
misleading impression is given’. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Paragraph 3.37: Factors that will not be relevant 
‘Paragraph 3.37 contains a list of bullet points 
detailing representations that would not be 

http://eprints.leedsbeckett.ac.uk/id/eprint/3945/1/ 
Problem%20Gambling%20Report.pdf” 
 
 
Due regard has been given to this particular 
comment. Anyone who gambles is vulnerable to 
harm, however this data is taken from the most 
recent surveys conducted by Gamble Aware – more 
research has been done in this space following the 
quoted 2015 report.  
We know that gambling prevalence is lower among 
people from black and ethnic minority backgrounds 
so the overall numbers are lower, but of those who 
do participate more report experiencing harm as a 
result, therefore this statement is an accurate 
reflection of the data. 
However, the policy can be amended to include the 
following reference “Dinos, S. et al. (2020) 
‘Treatment Needs and Gap Analysis in Great 
Britain’, GambleAware p. 45. Available at:  
https://www.begambleaware.org/ 
sites/default/files/2020-12/treatment-needs-and-
gap- analysis-in-great-britain-a- synthesis-of-
findings1.pdf” 
 
 
 
Due regard has been given to this particular 
comment. Current text sufficiently describes factors 
which will not be taken into account. There is no legal 

P
age 53



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

considered. This list should be expanded to include 
issues of nuisance and whether the proposals have 
or are likely to be granted building regulation 
approval or planning permission’. 
 
 
 
Paragraph 4.8 – 4.12: How the licensing 
committee decides what conditions to apply to 
premises licences 
‘Paragraphs 4.8 to 4.12 inclusive explain the 
licensing authority’s approach to the imposition of 
conditions on premises licences. This section 
would be assisted by a clear explanation that all 
Gambling Act 2005 premises licences are subject 
to mandatory and default conditions which are 
intended to be sufficient to ensure operation that 
is consistent with the licensing objectives. 
Accordingly, it is unlikely that's additional 
conditions will need to be imposed. This section 
should also be clear that additional conditions will 
only be imposed only where there is evidence of a 
risk to the licensing objectives in the circumstances 
of a particular case which requires that the 
mandatory and default conditions be 
supplemented’. 
 
 
 
 

basis for issues of nuisance or planning permission to be 
incorporated into a licensing decision as these are 
determined on different grounds and therefore is 
irrelevant. As such, the policy shall not be amended.  
 
 
 
Due regard has been given to this particular 
comment. The first bullet point of para 4.8 refers to 
“conditions specified in the Gambling Act 2005”. 
Individual licensing authorities can determine what 
conditions apply in accordance with the Statement 
of Principles and the Gambling Act. While some 
conditions are mandatory these do not describe the 
minimum conditions that can be imposed on 
licenses. The policy already does specify that any 
conditions will be proportionate to the 
circumstances which they are seeking to address.  
As such, the policy shall not be amended.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 54



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Paragraph 5.5 – 5.7: Gambling Related Harm 
‘It is not clear what the purpose of these paragraphs 
are and they should be removed’.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Paragraph 5.8 – 5.17: Local Risk Assessments  
‘Paragraph 5.8 to 5.17 inclusive explains the 
requirement for an operator to assess the local 
risk to the licensing objectives posed by the 
provision of gambling facilities at its premises and 
have policies procedures and control measures to 
mitigate those risks. These paragraphs are overly 
prescriptive and unnecessary’. 
 
 
 
 
 
‘Paragraph 5.12 details matters that the authority 
will expect the local risk assessment to include. 
This is unnecessary. An operator will always assess 

Due regard has been given to this particular 
comment. This section provides context to inform 
the risk assessment and the Statement of 
Principles. In accordance with the objectives of the 
GM gambling harm reduction programme these are 
key factors to consider. 
However, for conciseness, we can combine content 
from paragraphs headed “Public Health (3.11-
3.17)” and “Gambling related harm (5.5-5.7)” in 
one place in the document. 
 
 
 
Due regard has been given to the comments.  
Providing comprehensive and detailed information 
to be considered is a good way to gauge whether 
the operator and staff teams are fully aware of the 
challenges present in the local area and can help 
reassure that appropriate mitigations are in place. 
It is included specifically to provide clear guidance 
on what is expected from operators in accordance 
with our shared aim of preventing and reducing 
gambling harm.  As such, the policy shall not be 
amended.  
 
 
Para 5.8-5.17 clearly describes what is expected of 
the risk assessment and does not suggest that a 
license will not be granted if these conditions are 
present. As such, the policy shall not be amended.  

P
age 55



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

risks within the local environment. The issues 
outlined within paragraph 5.12 occur in all urban 
landscapes and operators will take into account 
anything relevant to the licensing objectives when 
assessing risk. The policy should be clear that the 
mere presence of any of the issues outlined in the 
bullet points should not affect the grant of an 
application as long as an operator has assessed 
those risks and has control measures and strike 
control measures, policies and procedures in place 
to address and mitigate them’. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 56



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 23 November 2021 
Portfolio Councillor Neil Emmott 

Leader of the Council  
Report Author Kuiama Thompson – 

Director of Public Health 

 Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Greater Manchester Voluntary, Community and Social Enterprise 
Sector (VCSE) Accord  

 
Executive Summary 

 
1 
 
 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 

A report was tabled at the Greater Manchester Combined Authority on 
Friday 24th September 2021 on the new Greater Manchester Voluntary, 
Community and Social Enterprise Accord (GM VCSE Accord) for approval.  
 
The Accord is a tri-partite agreement between the Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority, Greater Manchester Health and Social Care 
Partnership and the Greater Manchester VCSE Leadership Group on behalf 
of the VCSE sector in the region, with a purpose to further develop 
collaborative working with VCSE organisations to improve outcomes for 
local communities. It is anchored on a relationship of mutual trust, of working 
together and sharing responsibility.  
 
The Accord was signed by the Mayor of Greater Manchester and a 
recommendation was made for the Accord to be referred for 
recommendation to each local authority in the region in recognition that a 
number of elements within the Accord are to be delivered within localities, 
including by local authorities. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2. That the borough confirms commitment to the new GM VCSE Accord. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 
 
3.1 

To facilitate both the refresh of the Greater Manchester Strategy and the 
development of the Integrated Care System. 
 
It would be advantageous to have a unified way of working between the 
local authorities, GMCA, the Integrated Care System and the GM VCSE 
sector, represented by the GM VCSE Leadership Group. This would allow a 
single conversation with the sector in relation to all aspects of the GMS and 

Page 57

Agenda Item 7



its partner strategies. It would also enable a focus on sustaining their 
valuable work in communities and creating a more resilient VCSE sector. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In November 2017 and on behalf of the GMCA, an Accord was signed by 
the Mayor of Greater Manchester with the VCSE sector, which set out new, 
improved standards of working with VCSE organisations. The Accord acts 
as a framework for the delivery of the vision set out in the Greater 
Manchester Strategy and as a result, the VCSE sector is engaged in the 
development, governance and delivery of the GMS including relevant 
consultation and co-design. 
 
VCSE leaders in GM have come together to form the VCSE Leadership 
Group, which seeks to promote the role and involvement of the VCSE sector 
and communities in devolution and has given a broader group of VCSE 
leaders with which to work. 
 
The GM VCSE Leadership Group also entered into a Memorandum of 
Understanding with the Health and Social Care Partnership, which has seen 
£1.2m of Health and Social Care Transformation Funding flow into the 
VCSE Leadership Group and the wider sector over the last 4 years. 
 
As part of the delivery of the VCSE Accord, in January 2020 the GM VCSE 
Leadership Group published a Policy Paper for the future development of 
the sector, which is entitled ‘Voluntary organisations, Community groups and 
Social Enterprises (VCSE) in Greater Manchester – the next 10 years’. The 
paper describes the role of VCSE anchor organisations and local VCSE 
infrastructure organisations which support and facilitate the operation of the 
wider sector, as well as that of the specialist groups and organisations which 
support, represent and champion particular communities of identity or 
experience. 
 
As part of the delivery of the VCSE Accord, in January 2020 the GM VCSE 
Leadership Group published a Policy Paper for the future development of 
the sector, which is entitled ‘Voluntary organisations, Community groups and 
Social Enterprises (VCSE) in Greater Manchester – the next 10 years’. The 
paper describes the role of VCSE anchor organisations and local VCSE 
infrastructure organisations which support and facilitate the operation of the 
wider sector, as well as that of the specialist groups and organisations which 
support, represent and champion particular communities of identity or 
experience.  
 
During the Covid-19 pandemic, the response of VCSE organisations has 
been incredible in its strength, its depth and the speed at which it has 
mobilized. Furthermore, community volunteers have offered and continue to 
provide their support and are integrating with emergency support structures 
at this time. The VCSE sector has been quick to adapt at pace and with a 
huge degree of accuracy and efficacy to meet the needs of GM 
communities.  
 

Page 58



4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 

However, this response has not been without its challenges, and VCSE 
leaders have identified a number of risks and issues which are inhibiting 
their capacity to work effectively as part of the emergency effort. On 29th 
July the GM State of the VCSE Sector Report was published, providing a 
snapshot of the role and health of the VCSE sector in GM. The report shows 
that Greater Manchester is home to around 17,000 voluntary, community 
and social enterprise groups and organisations, and nearly 500,000 
volunteers giving a total of 1.4 million hours each week. These groups, 
organisations and volunteers are well-networked with strong, distributed 
leadership, established communications channels and have evidenced their 
ability to convene and act together in the interests of Greater Manchester’s 
communities. 71% of the VCSE sector are micro-organisations with an 
annual income under £10,000, and 57% of organisations work across 
specific neighbourhoods and communities across Greater Manchester. 
However, despite an increase in both the number of VCSE organisations 
and of volunteers since the last report in 2017, the overall turnover of the 
sector has decreased in real terms.  
 
The revised Accord is a three-way collaboration agreement between the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority and the Greater Manchester 
Health and Social Care Partnership and the GMVCSE Sector represented 
by the GM VCSE Leadership Group, based in a relationship of mutual trust, 
working together, and sharing responsibility. It will act as a framework for 
collaboration involving VCSE leaders and organisations in the delivery of the 
GMS and in the thematic strategies and delivery plans that will exist to 
deliver the GMS vision, including the strategic plan of the new GM 
Integrated Care System. 
 
The purpose of this Accord is to further develop how we work together to 
improve outcomes for Greater Manchester’s communities and citizens. The 
agreement is intended to work in a number of ways: 
 

 Through a shared understanding of the contribution that VCSE 
organisations make towards tackling inequality in society, creating a 
more inclusive economy and addressing the climate crisis. 

 Through the building of effective partnerships and relationships 
between the statutory sector with VCSE organisations across 
different geographies (for example GM-wide, district-wide, or in 
neighbourhoods and communities) 

 Through a shared vision, ways of working principles and set of 
commitments which underpin these partnerships and relationships 

 Through a 5-year iterative programme of enabling and developmental 
activities driven at a GM-wide footprint, which aims to maximise the 
ability of VCSE organisations to deliver beneficial outcomes in 
communities and localities. 

 
The 5-year iterative programme of enabling and developmental activities 
driven at a GM-wide footprint will be outlined in an Implementation Plan 
supported by annual delivery plans which contain actions, responsibilities, 
timescales, targets and outcomes for delivery. This Implementation Plan will 
be used as the basis for a partnership funding agreement between the 

Page 59



 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 

GMCA, Health and Social Care Partnership and the GM VCSE Leadership 
Group, which will cover the length of this Accord agreement, but be subject 
to annual review and confirmation of budgets for the GMCA and GM 
Integrated Care System. 
 
The VCSE Accord will be signed off through individual ‘governance’ 
structures but will be owned jointly by the GM Combined Authority, the GM 
Health and Social Care Partnership (with approvals through the GM 
Partnership Executive Board and Health and Care Board) and the GM 
VCSE Leadership Group. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
To not support the new GM VCSE Accord and confirm endorsement on 
behalf of the borough. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.1 

To support this work, a budget of £228,400 was approved by the GMCA in 
September 2020 from the Cultural and Social Impact Fund, with approval 
delegated to the GMCA Treasurer, in consultation with the Community, Co-
operatives and Inclusion Portfolio Leader and Chief Executive to award 
grant agreements, subject to final agreement of GMCA budgets for 2021/22 
onwards.  
 
The GM Health and Social Care Partnership has also agreed to provide 
£180,000 in the current financial year towards delivery of the new VCSE 
Accord. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
The VCSE Accord is a partnership agreement which will involve all parties 
offering to bring resources (financial and non-financial) into the 
arrangement. It builds on the 2017 accord between the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority and the VCSE sector. The Council is a 
signatory to the accord. The accord will strengthen shared delivery and 
shared accountability, as well as shared risk for the actions taken across 
the VCSE Leadership Group, GMCA and Health and Social Care 
Partnership. 

6. 

 
Consultation 

 
7. Further information in relation to consultation undertaken is available via 

the following external link to the Greater Manchester VCSE Leadership 
Group. 
 
https://www.gmcvo.org.uk/HSCEngage 
 

 
 
 

Page 60

https://www.gmcvo.org.uk/HSCEngage


 
 
 
 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8. Information about GM VCSE 

Leadership Group and VCSE 
Policy Paper  
 

https://vcseleadershipgm.org.uk/our-
work/ 

 

For Further Information Contact: Michael Garraway 01706 924718 
michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 61

https://vcseleadershipgm.org.uk/our-work/
https://vcseleadershipgm.org.uk/our-work/
mailto:michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk


1 

  

GM VCSE Accord Agreement 

This is a three-way collaboration agreement between the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority and the Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership and the GM Voluntary, 
Community and Social Enterprise (VCSE) Sector* represented by the GM VCSE Leadership Group, 
based in a relationship of mutual trust, working together, and sharing responsibility. The purpose 
of this Accord is to further develop how we work together to improve outcomes for Greater 
Manchester’s communities and citizens. 

*When we talk about the VCSE sector in Greater Manchester, we mean voluntary organisations, 
community groups, the community work of faith groups, and those social enterprises where profits 
will be reinvested in their social purpose. 

1.1 Introduction 

VCSE organisations play a hugely valuable role in the economy and society of Greater Manchester. In 
2021, their offer is more vital and relevant than ever, as shown through the ability to mobilise at 
scale during the recent pandemic. The reports of the Independent Inequalities Commission ‘Good 
Lives for All’ and the Marmot Build Back Fairer review make frequent reference to the VCSE sector’s 
knowledge and its tested practical solutions to tackling entrenched inequalities, addressing 
environmental problems, and improving wellbeing. Local authorities, NHS and health systems have 
welcomed the role of the VCSE sector as a strategic partner in the emergency response and recovery 
efforts, and this Accord seeks to make the successful integration of VCSE groups, organisations and 
leaders the way we do business in Greater Manchester.  

The attached Annex document contains further details of the context, governance and 
implementation of this Accord agreement. 

1.2 Purpose and scope 

The Accord will act as a framework for collaboration involving VCSE leaders and organisations in the 
delivery of the Greater Manchester Strategy (GMS) and in the thematic strategies and delivery plans 
that will exist to deliver the GMS vision, including the 
development of the strategic plan of the new GM 
Integrated Care System. VCSE representatives will be 
involved in the development, governance and delivery 
of these strategies, including co-design of relevant 
activities, and thereby take a key role in work to build a 
resilient local economy, tackle inequalities and 
inequities, and improve the health and wellbeing of the 
people who live, work and study in Greater 
Manchester. The Accord will also deliver the ambitions 
set out in the VCSE Policy Paper, which was published 
by the GM VCSE Leadership Group in 2020 and sets out 
a developmental ambition for the VCSE Sector, as 
shown in Figure 1 (right). 

This agreement is intended to work in a number of ways: 

Page 62

file:///C:/Users/anne.lythgoe/Desktop/VCSE%20Investment/GM-VCSE-Position-Paper-Final.pdf%20(vcseleadershipgm.org.uk)


2 

 Through a shared understanding of the contribution that VCSE organisations make towards 
tackling inequality in society, creating a more inclusive economy and addressing the climate 
crisis. 

 Through the building of effective partnerships and relationships between the statutory 
sector with VCSE organisations across different geographies (for example GM-wide, district-
wide, or in neighbourhoods and communities) 

 Through a shared vision, ways of working principles and set of commitments which underpin 
these partnerships and relationships 

 Through a 5-year iterative programme of enabling and developmental activities driven at a 
GM-wide footprint, which aims to maximise the ability of VCSE organisations to deliver 
beneficial outcomes.  

1.3 Contribution of VCSE organisations  

The 2021 State of the VCSE Sector report shows that Greater Manchester is home to around 17,000 
voluntary, community and social enterprise groups and organisations, and nearly 500,000 volunteers 
giving a total of 1.4 million hours each week. These groups, organisations and volunteers are well-
networked with strong, distributed leadership, established communications channels and have 
evidenced their ability to convene and act together in the interests of Greater Manchester’s 
communities. 71% of the VCSE sector are micro-organisations with an annual income under £10,000, 
and 57% of organisations work across specific neighbourhoods and communities across Greater 
Manchester. 

VCSE organisations work across every aspect of tackling inequality and inequity in Greater 
Manchester including skills, employment and enterprise; health and social care; housing and 
transport; environmental issues and carbon reduction; poverty reduction; inclusive economic growth 
and inclusive governance. They also work at a variety of footprints – from community and 
neighbourhood to GM-wide and national, as well as having their origins in business (such as 
charitable foundations) and the statutory sector (such as NHS charities) as well as in communities. 

1.4 Tri-partite Agreement - Shared Vision and principles 

From this point on, where the words ‘we’ or ‘our’ or ‘us’ are used, this includes the three parties to 
this agreement acting with a single voice. 

Our shared vision is for a thriving VCSE sector in Greater Manchester that works collaboratively 
and productively with the GM Integrated Care System1, the GM Combined Authority, its 
constituent local authority members and statutory partners2.  

This vision is based in our shared values, will be supported by a sustainable infrastructure and have 
strong leadership. We will operate on the basis of mutual trust, respect and transparency.  

We will acknowledge the value to communities of place, identity and experience and understand the 
role of local people in leading, shaping and connecting VCSE organisations to create the ‘ecosystem’ 
described in the VCSE Policy Paper. We will work using the subsidiarity principle, meaning that 
decisions and issues are taken and addressed as close to communities as possible, coming together 
at a Greater Manchester level where there is a demonstrable benefit of doing so. 

 
1 The final governance of the Integrated Care System is to be finalised, but will include Integrated Care Board, 
Integrated Care Partnership, GM NHS Trusts, other non-NHS Providers and delivery partners 
2 Including Transport for Greater Manchester 

Page 63

http://www.10gm.org.uk/stateofthesector.html


3 

1.4 Building from a strong track record of innovation and partnership 

The Agreement does not start from scratch and is built on the strong foundations created over the 
last 5 years, since the previous GM VCSE Accord and Memorandum of Understanding with the 
Health and Social Care Partnership were put in place. 

It is clear from recent evaluation exercises that VCSE sector representatives are “at the table” in the 
places where important decisions are made across the NHS, Health and Social Care and GMCA 
partnerships. Increased VCSE involvement means that people and communities are more likely to be 
discussed, and prevention and community engagement more likely to be considered across service 
planning and commissioning.  

Substantial progress has been made on the strategic front, with the publication of a Policy Position 
Paper by the GM VCSE Leadership Group and specific responsibilities identified for the sector in the 
2020 GM ‘Living with Covid’ Plan. 

Furthermore, work led by VCSE-led groups such as the GM Social Enterprise Advisory Group, GM 
Equality Network (GM Eq=al) and the GM Social Value Network, for example, have driven forward 
key policy improvements. 

Products of the collaboration over the last 5 years include the GM VCSE Commissioning Framework, 
a powerful tool for public sector organisations to work effectively with VCSE organisations. There has 
been strong VCSE involvement and leadership in a number of joint programmes which explore the 
role of co-production in service reform and commissioning, and further information is contained in 
the Annex. 

However, whilst the presence of VCSE organisations on decision making bodies represents progress, 
there is some way to go yet before the level of collaboration and co-production that we envisage is 
achieved. Furthermore, it is clear that the level of VCSE engagement and involvement differs 
between localities. The journey towards becoming equal partners needs a further shift in power, in 
resources and a greater amount of truly collaborative activity. This new Accord sets out 8 
commitments, which aim to continue the transition towards greater parity in the relationship 
between the VCSE and statutory sectors. We recognise that the shift in the balance of power and 
how we will work together will also require each of us to take different responsibilities – for example 
in our investment, delivery, or engagement – but we will share the delivery and the accountability 
for our actions. 

In order to maximise the VCSE contribution, the GM statutory sector will recognise, incorporate, and 
invest. VCSE leaders and organisations will focus on developing their workforce capacity and 
capability, on diversifying the income base and creating new partnerships and collaborations within 
their ‘ecosystem’. The Accord will build from and work with existing structures across each locality, 
and recognise the different needs and requirements of each place and its populations in order to be 
successful in its aims. 

1.5 Shared commitments for 2021 – 2026  

The success of this Accord and the following shared commitments will rely on their recognition, 
adoption and action at a locality and neighbourhood level. As stated above, the actions invested in at 
a GM footprint aim to enable and facilitate what is happening in localities, neighbourhoods and 
communities. All commitments will be achieved in partnership and equitable involvement from all 10 
districts of Greater Manchester. 

Page 64



4 

Commitment 1: We will work together to achieve a permanent reduction in inequalities and inequity 
within Greater Manchester, addressing the social, environmental and economic determinants of 
health and wellbeing. 

Our aim is to ensure active VCSE participation and parity in strategic work to enhance equality, 
equity and wellbeing. 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Effective representation of the VCSE sector on relevant groups including: the GM Integrated 
Care Partnership, the GM Health and Care Board, GM Commissioning Hub, Joint 
Commissioning Board, Population Health Board, Reform Board, Tackling Inequality Board, 
Vulnerable and Marginalised Women’s Board, Justice and Rehab group, Employment and 
Skills Advisory Board, Gender Based Violence Board, GM Accessible Transport Group and 5-
year Environment Plan Forum, for example. 

 Programmes set up to address key inequalities issues, such as food poverty, fuel poverty, 
homelessness, accessible transport, active travel, digital and environmental exclusion and 
abuse/hate crime, which bring together the GM VCSE sector with public and private sector 
partners to drive action through collaboration. 

 Involvement of the VCSE sector in the development and delivery of the revised GM Strategy 
and GM ICS Strategic Plan. 

 Further development of the capacity of the GM Equality Alliance as a coalition to connect 
communities to policy makers, and vice versa, and to assist with strategic equality and 
diversity work within the city-region 
 

Commitment 2: We will embed the VCSE sector as a key delivery partner of services for communities 
in Greater Manchester 

Our aim is to ensure that VCSE organisations are seen as integral to the delivery of services in 
communities, alongside statutory-run services and commissioned contracts. 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Embedding of learning and recommendations from the review of GM emergency structures 
and ensuring the VCSE sector plays a key role in local and GM wide recovery programmes, 
including VCSE involvement in responses that relate to specific communities or places  

 Development of the Alternative Provider Federation as a place-based partnership of social 
enterprise and charitable organisations operating at scale across the ICS footprint. 

 Building from the VCSE leadership around mental health to embed VCSEs in governance of 
Local Care Organisations (through the Mental Health Leaders Group). 

 Increasing understanding of each other; building knowledge and understanding of the 
diverse VCSE sector across the public sector, promoting understanding of GM structures in 
VCSE organisations and furthering the potential to drive forward strategies and action plans 
on a GM footprint. 

 

Commitment 3: We will build a financially resilient VCSE sector that is resourced to address our 
biggest challenges of ending poverty and inequality in Greater Manchester. 

Page 65



5 

Our aim is to work together to maximise new funding sources, ways of contracting and grant-
giving arrangements. 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Develop and put into place an investment approach based on long-term, core funding to 
support strategic VCSE capacity and infrastructure in delivering the visions of the GMS and 
GM Integrated Care System. This should explore principles and guidelines, as well as models 
for investment brokerage, asset transfer and spatial planning for the VCSE sector 

 Fully implement the principles of the GM Commissioning Framework in all parts of the GM 
system  

 We will grow VCSE infrastructure capacity in each of the 10 districts of Greater Manchester 
and at a Greater Manchester level. This will enable VCSE organisations to act as funding 
anchors, playing a strategic role of grant-giving to VCSE organisations channelling public 
money and raising investment for communities 

 Put in place ‘core funding’ pilot projects to understand how this will enable improved 
outcomes, more effective VCSE services and enhanced sustainability for the sector 
 

Commitment 4: We will grow the role of the VCSE sector as an integral part of a resilient and inclusive 
economy where social enterprises, co-operatives, community businesses, charities and microsocial 
business thrive. 

Our aim is to increase the market share of social economy organisations in Greater Manchester. 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Create a Community Wealth Hub to support and grow co-operatives, mutuals, social and 
community enterprises, staffed by people from the co-operative and community sector who 
understand the market. 

 Put in place support for the further development of the Alternative Provider Federation as 
an alliance of non-extractive organisations (of all sectors) to address new market 
opportunities beyond health and care and into other neighbourhood services. 

 Set up a Community Investment Platform to tap into local savings, unlock community 
investment and build-up assets to share wealth with everyone in Greater Manchester. 

 

Commitment 5: We will build on our existing strengths to build the best VCSE ecosystem in England 

Our aim is to enable VCSE organisations to become ‘anchors’ for their place or their community, 
creating resources, support and connections for them to thrive. 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Formally adopting the principles of the GM VCSE Policy Paper and embed its 
recommendations within the refreshed GM Strategy and GM ICS Strategic Plan 

 Agreement of and investment in the development of a clear arrangement of Greater 
Manchester, locality and neighbourhood ‘infrastructure’ of community anchor organisations, 
including ‘fair’ representation from all ten boroughs in any decision-making processes.  

 Agreement of minimum standards of involvement for leaders from VCSE organisations in 
partnerships and delivery governance across each of the 10 local authority areas 

Page 66



6 

 Further develop the role of the VCSE Leadership Group at the heart of a collaborative 
representative ‘social architecture’ for the VCSE sector at a GM level, recognising the 
complexity and diverse nature of the sector 

 

Commitment 6: We will put into place meaningful mechanisms to make co-design of local services the 
norm, including expanding channels for service design to be informed by ‘lived experience’. 

Our aim is to create arrangements to enable local people, groups and organisations to be involved 
in the design of the services which are provided for them. 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 We will work together to further implement the principles of GM Model Reform White 
Paper, including neighbourhood pilots in 10 pathfinder deprived communities. 

 Support VCSE infrastructure organisations in localities to engage with LCOs, PCNs and local 
NHS/health governance within the ICS structure 

 Helping to create the Greater Manchester ‘Live Well – Beyond Social Prescribing Plan’ in 
partnership with existing social prescribing providers and communities.  

 Continue and build on leadership from and lived experience facilitated by the VCSE sector 
around specific programmes of work (including mental health, homelessness, food poverty, 
carers and digital inclusion for example) to act as catalysts and connectors for communities 
in GM 

 

Commitment 7: We will fulfil the potential for building productive relationships between the VCSE, 
public and private sectors to address inequity and build back fairer 

Our aim is to work closely with local businesses as well as the public sector to increase their focus 
on social value and addressing inequalities 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Work together with all Greater Manchester Local Authorities and public sector organisations 
to put in place Employer Supported Volunteering, secondments, work shadowing and other 
arrangements in conjunction with their local VCSE infrastructure, to enable the sharing of 
expertise and knowledge between sectors 

 Developing collective responsibilities for achieving outcomes against equality objectives, 
which include an increased role for neighbourhood level political leadership alongside local 
communities, VCSE organisations, local businesses and public bodies 

 Facilitate increased collaboration between population health and inclusive economy 
colleagues to highlight the intersectionality of population health and economy, and how the 
VCSE can contribute, lead and innovate  

 Fully utilise the GM ICS structures to facilitate collaboration between partners in a place 
across health, care services, public health, and voluntary sector to overcome competing 
objectives and improve outcomes 
 
 

Page 67



7 

Commitment 8: We will put in place a comprehensive workforce programme to support organisational 
and workforce development for VCSE employers based on and facilitating a more integrated public 
facing workforce 

Our aim is to improve capacity, capability and employment standards across the paid and 
voluntary VCSE workforce in Greater Manchester 

Examples of routes through which this commitment will be supported at a GM footprint include: 

 Develop and deliver GM VCSE Race Equality Action Plan 
 Develop the skills of VCSE Leaders. increase opportunities for peer support and learning for 

system leaders in the VCSE sector and create more opportunities for multi-agency connection 
and increasing awareness of good practice in VCSE leadership 

 Achieve our ambition for 100% of VCSE organisations in Greater Manchester to pay the real 
Living Wage 

 Increase VCSE organisations’ involvement as Supporters, Members and Advocates for the 
sector in the GM Good Employment Charter 

 Enhanced leadership support for those at the forefront of networks of VCSE organisations 
who represent particular communities of identity and marginalised groups 

 Link the VCSE workforce programme with GM workforce development programme, ensuring 
that the VCSE workforce is able to benefit from access to Higher Educational Establishments 
funding and placements. 

 

The content of this Agreement has been developed following a series of structured conversations 
with key stakeholders in the Accord through the spring and summer of 2021, including VCSE 
organisations from across the whole of Greater Manchester, as well as representatives from the 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority, the GM Health and Social Care System, NHS and local 
authorities. 

The final version of the Accord has been shared for sign off by the GM VCSE Leadership Group, the 
Combined Authority and Health and Social Care Partnership governance structures. It will be 
supported by a five-year implementation plan for work driven at a GM footprint and funding 
agreement for implementation of that plan, as well as a review of the operation and membership on 
the GM VCSE Leadership Group.

Page 68



1 

1 

  

GM VCSE Accord 2021: 

ANNEX – Context, governance and implementation 

This Annex describes the context surrounding the GM VCSE Accord, and an explanation of how it will 
be delivered.  

It should be noted that as the arrangements, budgets and governance for the GM Integrated Care 
System are currently in development, it may be necessary to update this document and seek further 
ratification over the coming months. 

1.0 Background and context for the Accord 

1.1 Context 

The original GM VCSE Accord was signed in November 2017 by the Mayor of Greater Manchester on 
behalf of the GMCA, with several hundred representatives of the VCSE sector. It was an agreement 
for 5 years until November 20221.  

The Memorandum of Understanding between GM Health & Social Care Partnership2 and the VCSE 
sector in Greater Manchester is a 5-year agreement signed in January 2017, which built upon the 
work by the then VCSE Devolution Reference Group that supported the Partnership in its goals for 
improving the health and wellbeing of Greater Manchester. 

The new Accord agreement will replace both the 2017 GM VCSE Accord and the Memorandum of 
Understanding with the GM Health and Social Care Partnership. 

In January 2020, the GM VCSE Leadership Group published its VCSE Policy Paper3 which describes 
the role and potential contribution of the VCSE sector as a positive force in a ‘system’ which will 
strive for change and the future improvement of Greater Manchester. The Policy Paper sets out the 
sector’s ‘offer’ to build from successful work that is already in place, and play a greater role in 
system change, solutions with communities, and building a truly inclusive and equitable economy. It 
also describes a vision and the development and transformation which needs to take place within in 
the VCSE sector over the next 10 years. 

In February 2021 the Government in the White Paper: ‘Integration and Innovation: Working 
together to improve health and social care for all,’ announced a number of new measures as part of 
a proposed Health and Care Bill which included the creation of statutory Integrated Care Systems. 

It details how systems and their constituent organisations will accelerate collaborative ways of 
working in future to improve population health and healthcare; tackle unequal outcomes and access 
and put the citizen at the heart of their care.  

Integrated Care Systems will do this through: 

 
1 Accord between Mayor and GM Combined Authority and the VCSE Sector | www.gmcvo.org.uk 
2 MoU between GM Health & Social Care Partnership an the VCSE sector in Greater Manchester — VSNW 
3 GM-VCSE-Position-Paper-Final.pdf (vcseleadershipgm.org.uk) 

Page 69

https://www.gmcvo.org.uk/publications/accord-between-mayor-and-gm-combined-authority-and-vcse-sector
https://www.vsnw.org.uk/publications/2017/6/22/mou-flyer
https://vcseleadershipgm.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2020/01/GM-VCSE-Position-Paper-Final.pdf


2 

2 

 Stronger partnerships in local places between the NHS, local government and others, including 
the VCSE sector, 

 Collaboration between partners in a place across health, care services, public health, and 
voluntary sector to overcome competing objectives. 

 Developing strategic commissioning through systems with a focus on population health 
outcomes.  

 And driving innovation through the use of digital and data to drive system working, connect 
health and care providers to improve outcomes. 

Since 2016 GM has evolved the way it works to move toward an approach which allows delivery of 
the maximum benefit for our population: more closely aligning and integrating different parts of the 
NHS, as well as bringing the NHS far closer to wider partners.  

GM views place, and partnerships within place as very important. For most people their day-to-day 
support needs will be expressed and met locally in the place where they live. The VCSE sector can 
play a major role in these formal and informal partnerships, networks and collaborations which have 
been set up at local ‘place’ level, bringing local community knowledge and insight as well as the 
benefits of working at scale. 

GM is now setting out the next five years of its journey through a refreshed GM health and care 
strategy. The VCSE sector as a vital cornerstone of a progressive health and care system and as such 
the sector needs to be positioned as a strategic partner in shaping, improving and delivering services 
and developing and delivering plans to tackle the wider determinants of health. This Accord 
provides an opportunity for the VCSE sector to be at the heart of the opportunities presented by the 
formal ICS and the new GM Health and Care Strategy. 

The Accord will also be an integral mechanism for delivery of the refreshed Greater Manchester 
Strategy, due to be published later in 2021. This agreement will enable the VCSE and statutory 
sectors to collaborate around key GMS outcomes. 

1.2 Process involved in the development of this Accord 

The development of this Accord is the product of a series of structured conversations held in July 
and early August 2021 with the following stakeholders: 

- GM VCSE networks 
- Local VCSE infrastructure organisations 
- Local VCSE leaders (invited via LIOs) 
- A range of GMCA and GMHSCP Commissioners, policy leads and statutory sector 

stakeholders 

As well as wide stakeholder engagement, this Accord agreement has been informed by reflection on 
the success of the original VCSE Accord undertaken by the GM VCSE Leadership Group and officers 
at GMCA, as well as by learning gleaned from the evaluation report of the GM VCSE Engagement 
Programme4 for the GM Health and Social Care Partnership, carried out by Cordis Bright in early 
2021. Furthermore, the Accord has been developed following consideration of our learning and 
reflections from the Covid-19 pandemic, the 2021 report of the GM Independent Inequalities 
Commission, and the Marmot report ‘Building Back Fairer in Greater Manchester’.  

 
4 https://www.gmcvo.org.uk/publications/gm-health-and-social-care-vcse-engagement-project-evaluation 

Page 70

https://protect-eu.mimecast.com/s/YLWlCZ4AZc732nmtzFIsb?domain=gmcvo.org.uk


3 

3 

On 29th July the GM State of the VCSE Sector Report was published, providing a snapshot of the role 
and health of the VCSE sector in GM. This report contained six key recommendations which were 
endorsed by the Mayor of Greater Manchester at the launch event. The six recommendations align 
closely to the eight commitments within the draft VCSE Accord.  

1.3 Detailed Scope 

This Accord agreement relates to the relationship between voluntary organisations, community 
groups and social enterprises and statutory sector organisations, including local authorities and NHS, 
in places and communities across GM.  The success of the Accord and the shared commitments that 
it contains will rely on their recognition, adoption and action at a locality and neighbourhood level. 

GMCA and the Health and Social Care Partnership will provide investment towards the following 
activities: 

 The involvement of VCSE leaders, organisations and groups in the development and delivery 
of the Greater Manchester Strategy, the new Integrated Care System Strategic Plan and any 
strategies which have a GM footprint, including projects and programmes led by the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority and through the GM Integrated Care System, including 
collaborative work across districts. 

 The role, function and purpose of the VCSE within new Provider Collaboratives and 
partnership arrangements both at GM and place level as part of the development of the new 
ICS, including the building of relationships with NHS Providers. 

 VCSE sector leadership, infrastructure, capacity and support which takes place at a GM 
footprint. 

1.4 Who is involved? 

The Accord is a tripartite agreement between the Greater Manchester Combined Authority, and the 
Greater Manchester Health and Social Care Partnership, and the Voluntary, Community and Social 
Enterprise Sector in Greater Manchester, represented by the GM VCSE Leadership Group.  

1.5 Time scales 

This new Accord agreement will be for period of five years commencing on 1st October 2021. It will 
be subject to an annual review and reporting process through the GM VCSE Leadership Group, 
Combined Authority and GM Integrated Care System governance. 

 

2.0 Examples of successes from which this Accord is built 

2.1 Key strategic pieces of work 

The increasing focus on the social, economic and environmental determinants of health and 
inequality has brought opportunities for the VCSE to show how its work can make an impact. 
Understanding the distinctive contribution that the VCSE sector can make to a shared aim to address 
inequality and improve the health and wellbeing of the population has helped to unlock some 
opportunities for the sector to be involved in conversations about how to bring about the desired 
change. The GM Devolution VCSE Reference Group (now the GM VCSE Leadership Group) has been a 
key body for the statutory sector to work with around Taking Charge, the GM Health and Social care 
Partnership Strategic Plan and the Greater Manchester Strategy. 

Page 71



4 

4 

The Living with Covid Recovery Plan was developed in the summer of 2020 with the VCSE sector 
playing a major role – both in the delivery of key actions, but also in leading a number of the tasks 
identified in the implementation plan. The Plan has allowed work to move forward around 
volunteering, mutual aid, emergency support, and social value, for example. 

In 2021, the refresh of GMS will be designed to link with the refresh of the VCSE Accord and will 
enable VCSE involvement across the main themes. Work around the VCSE Accord and through the 
GM VCSE Leadership Group has enabled the involvement of a diverse group of VCSE sector 
representatives in strategic discussions. 

2.2 Improved Standards of Working with the VCSE sector  

This is an area where a huge amount of progress has been made. VCSE organisations have been 
involved in and in some cases led some innovative and effective pieces of work. With the increased 
recognition of the role of the VCSE sector has come a strengthening of individual relationships. Both 
statutory and VCSE stakeholders report that people from VCSE sector are seen as valued and trusted 
colleagues and treated as equals in the formal and informal conversations. 

Examples of relevant activities include: 

 Co-production projects – there has been strong VCSE involvement and leadership in a 
number of joint programmes which explore the role of co-production in service reform and 
commissioning. Considerable co-production with the VCSE sector has also informed the 
development of the GM Homelessness Prevention Strategy by the VCSE-led Homeless Action 
Network.  

 VCSE Commissioning Framework5 – building from the MOU with the GM Health and Social 
Care Partnership, and on behalf of the VCSE Leadership Group, a GM VCSE Commissioning 
Framework has been developed and agreed by the GM Commissioning hub. This Framework 
was the product of intense consultation and interaction with commissioners, commissioned 
VCSE groups, and leaders from both the health and social care environment and the VCSE 
sector across the ten localities. It will be important to build from this work in any future 
Accord and roll out across GMCA and local authority commissioners of services from VCSE 
organisations. 

2.3 Partnerships and Policy development 

Examples of relevant activities include: 

 From their inception, VCSE representatives have had a strong role in the work of the GM 
Reform Board and Tackling Inequality Board6. The latter has an equal split in membership 
between VCSE representatives and the statutory sector. Through these partnerships, the 
VCSE sector is able to influence and shape policy developments such as the Greater 
Manchester Model. 

 Emergency structures – during the Covid pandemic, VCSE representation has been strong 
across both the GM and locality level emergency structures, with the Chair of the Leadership 
group sitting on the GM SCG. 

 Equalities – GM now has 7 Panels and partnerships7 which enable engagement and voice of 
communities of identity, including the GM Youth Combined Authority. These have all been 

 
5 VCSE Commissioning Framework and Delivery Plan | www.gmcvo.org.uk 
6 Tackling Inequalities Board - Greater Manchester Combined Authority (greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk) 
7 Equalities - Greater Manchester Combined Authority (greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk) 

Page 72

https://www.gmcvo.org.uk/publications/vcse-commissioning-framework-and-delivery-plan
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/tackling-inequalities-board/
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/what-we-do/equalities/


5 

5 

established since the signing of the VCSE Accord and enable diverse communities to shape 
and challenge policy at a GM footprint.  

 The Mental Health Leaders Group – facilitated by VCSE leaders has ensured that best 
practice is being shared and replicated between member organisations.  

 The Homelessness Action Network - stands out as an example of best practice in bringing 
together the full range of statutory and VCSE sector partners, frontline workers and people 
with lived experience in an open and flexible digital forum which allows for collaborative 
problem solving.  

 Economy – following an extensive recruitment process, the GM Local Enterprise Partnership 
has three members with roots in the VCSE sector. Furthermore, there has been VCSE 
Leadership Group involvement in the Brexit Resilience and other economic strategy group 
discussions 

 Environment – VCSE representation has been key in the development of the GM 
Environment Plan and in the two Green Summits. It’s clear that the sector has a strong 
influence on this agenda. 

 Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) – the PCC team has worked extremely closely with 
the VCSE sector and with its services users. VCSE representatives have joined the GM 
Violence Reduction Unit programme, and lead activities as part of its operation.  

2.4 Engagement and lived experience 

Over the last 5 years there has been increased information sharing and dialogue between the 
statutory and VCSE sectors, through the creation of formal communication and engagement 
channels which had not previously existed. As a result, stakeholders have reported that there had 
been an increase in the understanding of the VCSE sector and the communities it represents 
amongst statutory partners, that processes had become more inclusive and that more “community 
voice” is evident in the thinking of statutory organisations. 

2.5 Specific pieces of work 

 Genuinely inclusive engagement has been evident in the Big Alcohol Conversation, which 
provided grant funding to small voluntary sector and community groups to conduct 
consultations with the communities they represent and which would not have been reached 
by a mass media campaign. 

 Response to COVID-19. The close involvement of the VCSE sector in the response to COVID-
19 in GM, particularly in the homelessness and mental health sectors, has been seen to have 
been successful in providing a huge impact on people’s lives. 

 GM smoking campaign. The VCSE sector led on the campaign and its evaluation highlighted 
evidence of clear impact in terms of smoking quits.  

 Homelessness provision. The homelessness sector in GM is a clear example of where 
significant progress has been seen, for example in the offer to street homeless through the A 
Bed Every Night programme.  

 Social prescribing. The active involvement of VCSE leaders in the social prescribing work in 
GM has substantially helped build the programme, and research carried out by Salford CVS 
developed guidelines on how to improve social prescribing services. 

 

 

Page 73



6 

6 

3.0 Delivery of this Accord Agreement 

3.1 Governance / management arrangements for the Accord 

The VCSE Accord will be signed off through individual ‘governance’ structures but will be owned 
jointly by the GM Combined Authority, the GM Health and Social Care Partnership (with approvals 
through the GM Partnership Executive Board and Health and Care Board) and the GM VCSE 
Leadership Group.  

Representatives from the three parties will meet every 3 months as a VCSE Accord Management 
Group to review progress made towards the shared objectives and targets set out in the 
Implementation Plan, to monitor the budget and spend, and to make any necessary adjustments to 
delivery.  

The VCSE Accord Management Group will be jointly and equally accountable to the three parties in 
this agreement and will also be responsible for evaluation of the effectiveness of the Accord 
agreement. The Group will be made up of members of the GM VCSE Leadership Group, and officers 
from the GMCA and ICS.  

3.2 Role of the GM VCSE Leadership Group 

Formerly known as the VCSE Devolution Reference Group, the GM VCSE Leadership Group works to 
support VCSE sector engagement across Greater Manchester’s devolution agenda.  

This Accord agreement has been brokered by and is signed by the GM VCSE Leadership Group on 
behalf of the VCSE sector in Greater Manchester.  

For the purpose of delivering this Accord agreement, the GM VCSE Leadership Group will sit at the 
heart of a collaborative representative ‘social architecture’ for the VCSE sector at a GM level, 
recognising the complexity and diverse nature of that sector. It will take responsibility on behalf of 
the VCSE sector to drive forward the Accord agreement and the work to implement it at a GM 
footprint. 

The Leadership Group has reviewed its operation and membership to ensure that it can be fully 
accountable to the wider VCSE sector for delivery of the Accord agreement. Members of the 
Leadership Group are expected to be ‘catalysts and connectors’ on behalf of the sector. They will be 
supported by other collaborations and networks, leadership at a thematic and locality level, and will 
commit to engaging with leaders and stakeholders operating across all 10 boroughs of Greater 
Manchester. 

For the VCSE Accord to be successful strong relationships and stabilities across the VCSE and 
statutory sector must also play out in individual localities and neighbourhoods. This will mean that 
the VCSE Leadership Group must have strong links into the 10 local authority areas, include 
representation of VCSE Infrastructure (LIOs), providers (Provider Federation) and equalities (GM 
Equal) as members. 

3.3 Implementation plan and funding agreement 

Delivery of the Accord will be progressed through the development of a detailed GM 
Implementation Plan. This will contain the shared commitments set out in the Accord agreement, 
together with a comprehensive framework for delivery. The 5-year vision and objectives will be 
underpinned by annual delivery plans which will provide information on the agreed actions, 
responsibilities, timescales, targets and outcomes for delivery of this Accord agreement. 

Page 74



7 

7 

The GM Implementation Plan will be used as the basis for a partnership funding agreement between 
the GMCA, Health and Social Care Partnership and the GM VCSE Leadership Group, which will cover 
the length of this Accord agreement, but be subject to annual review and confirmation of budgets 
for the GMCA and GM Integrated Care System. 

3.3 Evaluation and review 

The Accord will be a living document to be reviewed on an annual basis to ensure that it remains 
relevant and fit for purpose. An annual report will be provided to the GM VCSE Leadership Group, 
the Combined Authority and Integrated Care System governance arrangements. 

Page 75



1 

 

Report to Cabinet 

 

Date of Meeting 23rd November 2021 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate and Corporate 

Report Author Samantha Smith 
 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Finance Update Report Qtr 2 2021/22 

 
Executive Summary 

 

1. To inform Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee of the 
Council’s forecast 2021/22 financial position as at the end of September 2021. 

1.1 The Finance Update report contains details of the following: 

 The forecast Revenue outturn position, which is a break even position. The 
General Fund pressure relating to Covid-19 is £13,843k, and is offset by the use 
of government funding and reserves.   
 
There continues to be a pressure on the High Needs Block Dedicated Schools 
Grant (DSG). The forecast 2021/22 in-year pressure is £1,437k which will leave a 
closing 2021/22 deficit position on the DSG reserve of £6,511k, which is being 
addressed through the Recovery Plan.  
 

 Savings plans of £1,167k ongoing and £8k one off were included in the 2021/22 
budget, as part of the 2021/22 Estimates process. These are currently forecast as 
achieved, on target or to be achieved through mitigating actions. In 2020/21 
unachieved savings of £150k were reported which continue in 2021/22; these will 
be met through the use of Government Grants and through mitigating actions. 
 

 An update on the Health & Social Care Pool Fund forecast position at Quarter 2, 
2021/22.  
 

 Forecast Capital expenditure of £97,897k, after rephasing of £18,491k into 
future years. The majority of the rephased expenditure, £16,241k (88%), relates 

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



2 

to Children’s Services and Junction 19 which are externally funded through 
grants. The balance of £2,250k is funded by prudential borrowing. 
 

 The forecast 2021/22 Collection Fund position being a deficit of £4,460k, which 
will be mitigated by additional Government Section 31 grant of £9,113k, leaving a 
residual surplus of £4,653k.    
 

 The mid-year 2021/22 Treasury Management update, discussed in section 4.8 
and Appendix D. 
 

Recommendations 

 

2.1 Cabinet notes the forecast 2021/22 financial positions for Revenue, Capital, and 
the Collection Fund as at the end of September 2021, as detailed in section 4. 

2.2 Cabinet approves the delegation to the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder of Finance, to award the Insurance Contract and fund any 
budget shortfall from the budget pressures fund, as mentioned in section 4.1.2; 
and Cabinet approves that authority is given to the Assistant Director for Legal 
Governance and Workforce to execute the legal documents in connection with the 
Insurance Contract. 

 
2.3 Cabinet approves the use of £557.2k of Sport England National Leisure Recovery 

Fund funding to reimburse Your Trust for eligible costs (£555.7k), and to pay 
Leisure Net Solutions (£1.5k) to cover grant evaluation and monitoring costs, as 
detailed in section 4.1.2. 

 
2.4 Cabinet notes the Health & Social Care Pool forecast position as detailed in section 

4.2. 
 
2.5 Cabinet approves the Budget Pressure requests detailed in section 4.3. 
 
2.6 Cabinet notes the forecast achieved Savings target in section 4.4. 
 
2.7 Cabinet notes the net Capital budget changes of £9,560k, detailed in section 

4.6.1. 
 
2.8 Cabinet notes the Capital re-phasing of £18,491k into future years detailed in 

section 4.6.2. 
 
2.9 Cabinet approves the requests to switch budgets within the Economy and 

Children’s directorates as detailed in section 4.6.3. 
 
2.10 Cabinet notes the Capital budget to be brought back into 2021/22 as detailed in 

section 4.6.3. 
 

Page 77



3 

2.11 Cabinet notes the mid-year 2021/22 Treasury Management update report 
contained in section 4.8.     

 
   

Reason for Recommendation 

 

3. Cabinet Members should be kept updated on the financial position of the authority, 
as effective budget management is critical to ensuring financial resources are 
spent in line with the budget and are targeted towards the Council’s priorities. 

This report focuses on the forecast 2021/22 financial position as at the end 
September 2021. 
 

Key Points for Consideration 

4. Revenue Budget 2021/22 
 

4.1 The budget set by Budget Council on 3rd March 2021 was £235,984k. 
Increases in the budget to quarter 2, 2021/22 are detailed in the following table: 

 

Amount When Reason for change 
(£'000) 

Mar-21 Approved budget 235,984 

Aug-21 Increased Business Rates Top Up grant to reflect 
final settlement 157 

Aug-21 Increased Business Rates S31 grant to reflect 
impact of Extended Retail Relief scheme 9,025 

   GRAND TOTAL 245,166 
 

The Revenue Budget Table in 4.1.1 provides detail of budget allocations and the 
estimated 2021/22 financial position. 
 

4.1.1 The forecast position as at the end of September 2021 is a General Fund 
breakeven position:  

 Non Covid-19 in-year forecast is a breakeven position. 
 The pressure attributable to Covid-19 of £13,843k is covered by 

government Covid funding, and use of £1,400k of reserves to support Your 
Trust as it recovers from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



4 

 
 
 
 
The table below provides detail by Directorate:  
 

Directorate/Detail 
Current 

Controllable 
Net Budget 

Forecast 
Controllable 
Outturn Q2 

Forecast In-
Year Saving/ 
(Overspend) 

Previous 
forecast - 

Q1 
Monitoring  

Movement 
since 

August 
Cabinet 

  £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 
Adult Care 50,274 50,274 0 0 0 

Children’s 47,194 47,264 (70) (277) 207 

Economy 16,257 16,780 (523) (437) (86) 

Neighbourhoods 52,142 52,038 104 (69) 173 

Public Health  19,143 19,143 0 0 0 

Resources 12,609 12,339 270 169 101 

Total Services Spending 197,619 197,838 (219) (614) 395 

Contribution from Integrated Pool 
Budget  106,000 106,000 0 0 0 
Contribution to Integrated Pool 
Budget (106,000) (106,000) 0 0 0 
Total Pooled Budgets 0 0 0 0 0 
Finance Control - Corporate 
Budgets 21,360 21,141 219 614 (395) 
Finance Control Budget 
Pressures 1,298 1,298 0 0 0 

Total Finance Control Spending 22,658 22,439 219 614 (395) 

Net Expenditure 220,277 220,277 0 0 0 

Uncontrollable Budget Spend 24,889 24,889 0 0 0 

Total Budget 245,166 245,166 0 0 0 

 
 
The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, which are not related to 
Covid-19 are detailed below, and further detail may be found in Appendix A: 

Service Narrative 
Amount 
£'000 

Adult Care 

 
The core service provision is expected to break even with a 
pressure from commissioned placements being matched by in 
year savings, mainly from staff turnover and one off funding 
from Health. 

0 

Page 79



5 

Children's  

As at quarter 2 the overall position on the General Fund 
element of the Children's budget is a forecast £70k pressure. 
The overspend is a result of SEND transport (£500k pressure). 
This is a statutory duty which cannot be funded by the 
Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG). The pressure is partially 
mitigated by reduced placements, staffing vacancies, 
increased Schools support income, and use of the Early Years 
block DSG reserve. 
 
DSG - There is an overspend on the High Needs block DSG of 
£1,437k, as the service is seeing a significant increase in 
Education Health Care Plan applications, which is related to 
the new academic year growth, as well as delayed applications 
as a result of Covid-19.  
In the High Needs Recovery Plan the projection for 2021/22 
was a £1,500k deficit therefore the £1,400k is in line with 
expectations. The cumulative deficit position of the High Needs 
block DSG is £6,511k. There continues to be a pressure on 
Special School places and the number of children in the 
mainstream setting requiring additional SEN support.  

(70) 

Economy 

The Economy Directorate is reporting a potential in-year 
pressure of £523k. There is a pressure within the Property 
Growth Fund due to the budgeted savings requirement being 
based on forecast levels of investment to date; as potential 
investments depend upon market forces and the availability of 
suitable opportunities the Council's actual level of investment 
to date is lower than initially anticipated and therefore the 
savings requirement does not match operational activity.  
Future years approved budgets have been realigned to take 
into account current investment levels and so this is a non-
recurrent pressure.  There is also a pressure in relation to a 
commercial development due to higher than budgeted 
voids/unlet units increasing landlord exposure to expenditure 
liabilities on service charge and Business Rates. 

(523) 

Page 80



6 

Neighbourhoods 

The Directorate is currently forecasting in-year savings of £272k, 
mainly from the delayed filling of vacancies and additional 
income. This is partially offset by non-Covid pressures totalling 
£168k which relate to projected shortfalls on income generation. 
 
Strategic Housing: - There is a pressure relating to the 
Homelessness service area due to increased numbers of 
service users, and accommodation costs that can only be 
partially offset by government Housing Benefit subsidy. The 
pressure is £1,270k. Budget provision of £840k has been made, 
and further corporate funding of £430k has been earmarked to 
address the remaining pressure.  
To address the ongoing increasing pressure, a working group 
has been established with officers from Housing, Finance and 
Adults.  The aims of the group are to understand the basis for 
the increase in demand pressures, introduce short term 
measures to address funding, including additional growth within 
the 2022/23 budget estimates and Medium Term Financial 
Strategy, and develop a strategy to improve the housing 
provision and close the funding gap.  

104 

Finance Control 
In-year saving relates to reduced borrowing costs (deferred 
and lower rates) of £454k, partially offset by reduced interest 
income of £303k due to the delay of a planned loan; and £68k 
in year saving relating to other minor variations.  

219 

Resources 

The Resources Directorate is reporting a forecast in-year 
saving of £270k in relation to non-Covid activities. There are 
employee savings from vacant posts across the directorate, 
temporary arrangements and one off funding, and savings 
within the Occupational Health Contract. However these are 
partially offset by a pressure within the Legal Shared Service 
with Manchester City Council due to a general increase in 
Children's legal work, and pressures within Human Resources 
in relation to software costs.   

270 

Total   0 
 

4.1.2 Other issues 
 

 2022/23 Insurance tender 
 
Authority to commence the insurance tender process was agreed at August 
2021 Cabinet. It is now recommended that Cabinet delegates authority to 
the Chief Finance Officer, in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for 
Finance, to approve the award of the tender and the completion of any 
necessary documentation once the procurement process is completed; and 
Cabinet gives authority to the Assistant Director for Legal Governance and 

Page 81



7 

Workforce to execute the legal documents in connection with the Insurance 
Contract. 
 
In addition, delegate approval to Chief Finance Officer in consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for Finance to allocate resources from budget pressures 
fund for any increased cost as a result of the procurement of the Insurance 
Contract. 

   

 

 
 Your Trust 

 
Public Health, as Client for Your Trust, has received £557.2k of funding from 
the Sport England National Leisure Recovery Fund (NLRF), of which 

o £555.7k is payable to Your Trust to support the organisation as it 
recovers from the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic. The grant is 
to cover eligible costs that have been incurred. 

o £1.5k is to be used to pay for evaluation and monitoring data for the 
NLRF which has been commissioned at a national level by Sport 
England. 

Member approval is sought to authorise use of this funding, and to 
reimburse Your Trust for eligible costs that have been incurred, and to pay 
£1.5k to Leisure Net Solutions to cover grant evaluation and monitoring 
costs. 

4.1.3 The variations to controllable Revenue budget, by service, due to Covid-19 are 
detailed below: 

Expenditure £'000s 

Adult Social Care           
3,629  

Children's Social Care/Education           
3,843  

Public Health & Housing           
9,108  

Cultural & Related           
1,688  

Environmental & Regulatory Services              
202  

Finance & Corporate            
2,644  

Other services           
1,384  

Total forecast expenditure pressure 22,498 

Page 82



8 

Less funding received for specific Covid-19 grants & CCG funding (16,678) 

Forecast net expenditure pressure 5,820 
    
Income £'000s 
Sales, fees and charges 1,220 
Commercial Income 6,803 
Forecast reduction in income 8,023 
    
Total forecast pressure 13,843 
Use of 2021/22 unringfenced Government Emergency Funding, and 
Covid Reserve b/fwd from 2020/21 (11,843) 

Forecast Government compensation re Sales, Fees & Charges Income, 
and use of reserves (2,000) 

Forecast 2021/22 net Covid pressure 0 
 

Work is on-going to assess the financial impact and timeframe involved relating to 
Covid-19. The longer term implications are being considered to support the Council 
in its financial planning going forward. 

As at 31st March 2021, £8,679k was held in an earmarked reserve to be used to 
offset the post 2020/21 impact of Covid 19, recognising that some of the forecast 
financial impact of the pandemic will not materialise until 2021/22 and future years. 
The reserve is to be used to offset demand led and economic pressures as the 
pressure materialises.  

4.2 Health & Social Care Pool Budget 
 

The risk share agreement for 2021/22 makes each partner responsible for their 
own pooled fund gap. 

The forecast position as at June 2021 for the Health & Social Care Pooled Fund 
was presented to ICB on 21st September 2021, and showed a forecast over 
performance of £0.4m against the H&SC Pool Budget. A summary position is 
detailed below:  

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2021/22 
2021/22  2021/22 

Budget Forecast Variance June forecast 
position 

£m £m £m 
Narrative 

Expenditure Budgets       

Total Adult 
Pooled Services 275.0 276.9 1.9   

Page 83



9 

Total Children's 
Pooled Services 103.1 107.0 3.9   

Total Health and 
Social Care 
Pooled Budgets 

378.1 383.9 5.8 

The forecast variance of £5.8m represents:- 
£5.4m of LA Covid pressures before 
adjusting for Covid funding. 
£0.4m over performance against health 
budgets 

Contribution 
from Partners         

CCG (272.8) (273.1) (0.3) 
The CCG are contributing an additional 
£0.3m above budget in relation to HDP 
claims from the LA for April to June. 

LA (105.3) (110.4) (5.1) 
The LA are contributing an additional £5.1m 
from Government Emergency Covid funding 
to fund the Covid pressures identified. 

Total 
Contributions (378.1) (383.5) (5.4)   

Forecast 
Position 0.0 0.4 0.4   

 

As at the end of June, the LA reported a nil variance against non-Covid budgets 
and a £5.4m Covid pressure (£3.9m against Children’s Social Care and £1.5m 
against Adult Social Care). The Covid pressure is forecast to be funded from a 
combination of Covid related health funding (£0.3m) and Government emergency 
funding received by the LA (£5.1m) leaving no in-year pool Covid pressure. 

During Quarter 2, there is a forecast over performance against pooled CCG budget 
of £0.4m which relates to Non-NHS Providers (£0.2m) and Adult database beds 
activity (£0.2m).  It is anticipated that the over performance will be funded from 
national funding, but this will not be reflected in the Pool until the allocation is 
received. Once this allocation is received the Pool will show a breakeven position. 

4.3 Budget Pressures 
 

The Budget Pressure Fund for 2021/22 is £1,128k. The following table details 
requests received for the 2nd Quarter to 24th September 2021, and requests 
previously approved: 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



10 

 

 

 

 

Service 
Ongoing 
£000s 

One off 
£000's 

Total 
£000s Narrative 

Balance from 
Quarter 1, 2021/22 1,000.5 317.4 1,317.9   
Previously Approved 
Allocations     

Children's 

 24.9  
Additional top-up funding has been 
approved in the delegated report for 
Food Vouchers to be provided to 
families throughout the Summer 
break 

Neighbourhoods 
 165  To mitigate the removal of 2021/22 

bin charges as approved at August 
2021 Cabinet 

Revised Balance 
2021/22 1,000.5 127.5 1,128.0   
Quarter 2 Allocation 
Requests     

Children's 
44.5   2 posts - Social Worker, and Special 

Educational Needs & Disability 
assessment worker  

Economy 
30.0   Corporate Landlord - re increased 

maintenance costs across Council 
properties  

Funding Remaining 
2021/22 926.0 127.5 1,053.5   
Future Year 
Allocations 2022/23      

Children's 
44.5  44.5 

2 posts - Social Worker, and Special 
Educational Needs & Disability 
assessment worker - full year effect 

 

If the requests are approved the balance remaining for budget pressures in 
2021/22 is £1,053.5k; £926k ongoing and £127.5k one off. 

Page 85



11 

4.4 Savings 
The overall savings target for Services for 2021/22 is £1,175k (£1,167k recurrent, 
and £8k one-off), as approved as part of the 2021/22 estimates process.  

Within the final 2020/21 outturn report there were unachieved savings of £150k. 
These savings continue to be a pressure in 2021/22 and will be achieved through 
the use of Government grant or through mitigating actions within the Service in 
2021/22. 

The table below shows the savings for 2021/22, as agreed in the 2021/22 
estimates process, which are all forecast to be achieved, on target or achieved 
through mitigating actions. 

Service Nature of Saving Savings 
Target - 

Ongoing 

Savings 
Target - 
One Off 

Total 
Balance 

to 
Address 

     £'000  £'000  £'000 

Adult Care 
Staffing reduction in Adult Social Care in areas 
not covered by other savings proposals 

           
40    -  

Adult Care Changes to Adult Care charging policy 
           

80    -  

Adult Care 
Staffing realignment Prevention / Recovery 
and Reablement Teams* 

         
119    -  

Economy 

Increased Planning Income from Pre 
Application Charges/Planning Performance 
Agreements 

           
30    -  

Economy Project Manager Capitalisation (NB) 
           

20    -  

Economy Re-letting for health and social care   
             

8  -  

Economy Admin support review 
           

10    -  

Resources Treasury management review  
         

300    -  

Resources Insurance reserve review  
         

300    -  

Resources Revenues and Benefits Service Review 
           

50    -  

Resources Artificial Intelligence - Revenues and Benefits 
           

30    -  

Corporate Leadership and Senior Management Review 
         

188    -  

  Total Savings and Balance to Address       
1,167  

              
8  

              
-    

Page 86



12 

4.5 Transformation Fund 
 

The following schemes have been allocated Transformation funding for 2021/22. A 
brief description of funding allocated is listed below: 

 Economy 
Strategic Planning Core Budget - The transformation funding of £106k has been 
used to supplement the core budget for the Strategic Planning team.  This has 
allowed the team to continue to focus on work to support the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework which is an integral part of the growth plans for 
Rochdale and the Covid-19 recovery plan. 
 
One Public Estate (OPE) - Integration Manager & Support Officer: - Funding 
provided of £67k for additional staff to enable participation in partnership 
working around the OPE programme.  The benefits of which include: asset 
rationalisation across the public estate, rental income, capital receipts and 
access to sources of funding. 
 
Planning Services – Funding of £47k in 2021/22 to part fund 6 additional posts 
in Planning. The funding is to support the service through the next 3 years as 
they maximise opportunities around digital innovation, embed performance 
reporting and measures and focus on generating new fee income through 
business development and commercial behaviours. The 6 posts are funded 
through additional fee income (£233k), Budget Pressures funding (£325k 
agreed at August Cabinet in the Q1 Finance Update) and Transformation 
funding (£280k agreed at 14th July Transformation Board) 
 

 Resources 
Council property title and marketing project funding of £19k (Creation of 2 Full 
Time Equivalent (FTE) Posts for 24 months (year 1):- Council property title and 
marketing project (Creation of 2 FTE Posts for 24 months (year 2):- Having a 
dedicated resource has enabled matters to be completed much quicker which 
has resulted in increased capital receipts and associated legal fees. 
 
Stepping up approach to transformation: - Funding of £45k (2021/22) for a 2 
year Transformation & Reform Lead Role. Whilst currently vacant, the role is 
expected to be advertised in the near future and therefore the remaining budget 
is expected to be spent. 
 
Artificial Intelligence Project: - Funding of £61k (2021/22) for Two Proof of 
Concept projects which are currently being undertaken within Revenues & 
Benefits. The projects are expected to utilise the full budget funding made 
available through the Transformation Fund. 
 
Artificial Intelligence Project: - Additional funding of £39k (2021/22), and £131k 
in future years, to fund a Business analyst post for 2 years, and training costs. 
 

Page 87



13 

4.6 Capital Budget 2021/22 
 

The forecast position for the 2021/22 Capital Budget is £97,897k, with spend 
to date of £20,834k (18% of budget).  The table below shows a summary of 
the budget movements to the end of September 2021: 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 
  

£'000s £'000s £'000s 
BUDGET AS AT END OF JUNE 2021 107,328 103,745 64,115 
Capital Budget Changes 9,560         -            -    
Quarter 1 Highways Maintenance scheme 
rephase to 2022/23 (500) 500         -    

Rephasing requested Quarter 2 (18,491) 18,491         -    
BUDGET AS AT END OF SEPTEMBER 2021 97,897 122,736 64,115 

 

4.6.1 Capital Budget Changes 
Details of the increases to capital budgets are shown in the table below: 

Service Narrative Funding Method 

Capital 
Budget 
Increases 
(Reductions) 
£000's 

Adults 
Additional DFG Grant Allocation 
for 21/22 External Funding 355 

Children’s 
Budget realignment with Capital 
Grants Unapplied External Funding (24) 

Children’s 

Budget realignment to match 
grant allocations received in the 
School Condition Programme External Funding 

(240) 

Children’s  Land Receipt for former 
Balderstone High School Site Capital Receipts 1,268 

Children’s High Needs Provision Capital 
Allocations External Funding 1,157 

Economy Create Future High Streets Fund 
grant budget 1st Tranche External Funding 4,108 

Economy Create remaining Brownfield 
Land grant budget External Funding 1,204 

Economy 
Create Town Hall Delivery Grant 
budget External Funding 81 

Economy 
Create Roch Flood Innovation – 
EA grant budget External Funding 279 

Neighbourhoods 
Agilisys contribution to N1R 
works RCCO 15 

Page 88



14 

Service Narrative Funding Method 

Capital 
Budget 
Increases 
(Reductions) 
£000's 

Property & 
Highways 

Allocate the Local Transport Plan 
funding to various Property & 
Highways schemes 

Government 
Grants 

1,357 

  Total Capital Budget Changes   9,560  
 

4.6.2 Capital Re-phasing requests to the end of September 2021, which have been 
approved by the Chief Finance Officer, are shown in Appendix B (2).  

The estimated revenue savings to be achieved through the rephasing of schemes 
above funded via prudential borrowing have been accounted for in the quarter 2 
Revenue monitoring, and will be included in the 2022/23 Estimates process. 

 

4.6.3 The following budget switches are requested to fund expenditure: 

Budget 
Switches Service Scheme 
£000s 

Economy 
Request to switch Property Growth Fund - £3,687k 
to Upperbanks 3,687 

Economy 
Request to switch - £3,687k to Upperbanks from 
Property Growth Fund (3,687) 

Children’s 
Schools Capital Condition Programme – request to 
switch £304k from New Place Planning 304 

Children’s 
New Place Planning – request to switch £304k to 
schools Capital Condition Programme (304) 

  TOTAL 0 
 

As part of Quarter 1, 2021/22, a switch of £500k into 2022/23 from the 
Investment Fund to the Highways Maintenance in-house service was approved. 
At Quarter 2, 2021/22 there has been a request for £200k of the rephased 
budget to be brought back into 2021/22 to fund expenditure relating to the 
purchase of conference equipment at Number 1 Riverside. Approval has been 
given using the delegated authority of the Chief Finance Officer, Leader and 
Portfolio Holder. 

 

4.6.4 Capital Receipts 

Capital receipts are received on the sale of various assets including land, 
buildings and vehicles. The forecast movements in the Capital Receipts 

Page 89



15 

Reserve during 2021/22, and provisionally for 2022/23 to 2024/25 are included 
in the table below. 

2021/22 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
Description  

£000s 
 

£000s 
 

£000s 
 

£000s 
Capital Receipts balance as at 1st April 2021 10,867 2,338 2,347 2,847 
Use of Capital Receipts to fund 2021/22 
Capital Programme, including prior year 
schemes rephased into 2021/22 

(4,393)  -  -  - 

Use of Capital Receipts to fund provisional 
2022/23 and 2023/24 Capital Programmes, 
and 2021/22 rephasing into future years 

 - (3,980) - - 

Earmarked use of receipts to fund other future 
commitments  (2,855) (852) - - 

Forecast Capital Receipts income 3,713 1,741 500 400 
Forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts 
balance as at 31st March 2022 7,331 4,240 4,740 5,140 

 

 The forecast uncommitted Capital Receipts Reserve balance as at the end of 
2024/25 is £5,140k. 

4.7 Collection Fund 

4.7.1 The forecast Collection Fund outturn position for 2021/22 is a deficit of 
£4,460k, comprising: 

 
 £6,625k deficit relating to Business Rates. However Section 31 grant 

of £9,113k is forecast to be received to offset Extended Retail Relief 
discount given; this will leave a forecast net residual surplus of 
£2,488k.  
 

 £2,165k surplus relating to Council Tax. 

The recovery of the Collection Fund from the impact of the pandemic is 
uncertain; it continues to be affected by the impact of Covid-19 and Government 
initiatives on businesses and Council Tax payers.  

4.7.2 Table 1 shows the forecast 2021/22 Collection Fund position, and the 
allocation between precepting authorities. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



16 

 

Table 1 – 2021/22 Collection Fund forecast outturn 

  
Business 

Rates 
Council 

Tax Total 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 

        

Forecast 2021/22 Collection Fund (surplus)/ 
deficit  6,625 (2,165) 4,460 
        
Preceptors' share of forecast 2021/22 outturn       

Rochdale BC 6,559 (1,836) 4,723 

GMCA Mayoral Police & Crime Commissioner  -  (232) (232) 

GMCA Mayoral General  (including Fire Services) 66 (97) (31) 

Forecast Outturn (surplus)/ deficit 6,625 (2,165) 4,460 
S31 income - Extended Retail Relief 9,113 -  9,113 
Forecast net surplus (2,488) (2,165) (4,653) 

 

The Council’s share of the forecast Collection Fund deficit is £4,723k, which will 
be wholly offset by Government Section 31 grant funding of £9,022k, leaving a 
net surplus position of £4,299k. This surplus position is a positive position for 
the first half of the year, and will be subject to on-going review for the remainder 
of the financial year. 

The following table provides the explanation of variances relating to Business 
Rates: 

  

 

Explanation of variance 

Variation to 
budget, £'000 

Forecast decreased net Business Rates income mainly due to the government decision to 
give Extended Retail Relief for 2021/22, linked to the Covid19 pandemic; Section 31 grant 
to offset the discount given is received in the Council's General Fund. Empty Property 
discount is forecast to be £500k less than budget as the impact of the pandemic on 
business properties is currently less than anticipated. 

9,068 

Actual deficit brought forward from 2020/21 is £2,443k lower than had been forecast as part 
of the 2021/22 Budget process.  

(2,443) 

Forecast 2021/22 Outturn variance 6,625 

Page 91



17 

 

The following table provides an explanation of variances relating to Council 
Tax: 

Explanation of variance 
Variation to 

budget, £'000 

Forecast increased gross Council Tax income due to higher property numbers, and 
forecast reduced level of discounts given, as a result of the on-going review of Council Tax 
accounts in receipt of discounts. 

(954) 

Forecast reduced level of Local Council Tax Support discount given due to reduced 
numbers of Working age claimants; however there is uncertainty regarding the impact on 
individuals of the ending of the Covid19 furlough scheme and issues relating to the 
economy 

(803) 

Forecast reduced charge relating to the bad debt provision, although there is uncertainty 
relating to the on-going impact of Covid 19 on debt collection. 

(65) 

Actual deficit brought forward from 2020/21 was £3,133k; £3,476k deficit was forecast as 
part of the 2021/22 Budget process.  

(343) 

Forecast 2021/22 Outturn  (2,165) 
 

There will be a longer term impact on Collection Fund income which is 
dependent on the recovery of businesses and households. This will impact on 
the Council’s core funding for services. Work is ongoing to assess the longer 
term impact on the Council’s financial position. 

4.8 Treasury Management 

4.8.1 Treasury Management activity aims to effectively manage the Council’s cash 
flow requirements through borrowing and investment. The service operates 
within CIPFA’s / MHCLG’s Prudential Framework and our own approved 
Treasury Management Strategy to ensure risk is appropriately managed when 
seeking to minimise the costs of borrowing and maximise returns on 
investment. 

4.8.2 Financial markets are now pricing in a first increase in Bank Rate from 0.10% 
to 0.25% in November or December 2021 (removing the emergency reduction 
enacted at the start of the Covid crisis) with further increases to 0.75% by March 
2024. 

 Gilt yields (which drive PWLB rates) continue to be extremely volatile with 
fluctuations seen driven by perceptions on the virus and vaccine rollouts (and 
thereby economic recovery), energy prices and supply shortages (including 
labour) as well as world events. In November 2020 the PWLB removed its 1% 
margin placed on borrowing in October 2019.  This is subject to an ongoing 
prohibition on authorities investing in purely ‘debt for yield’ commercial 
activities. 

 Please see Appendix D for further details. 

 

Page 92



18 

 

 

4.9 Alternatives considered 

4.9.1 Not reporting on financial performance puts at risk the achievement of the 
Council’s Medium Term Financial Plan. Effective budget management is critical 
to ensuring financial resources are spent in line with the budget and are 
targeted towards the Council’s priorities. Monitoring enables the early 
identification of variations against the plan and facilitates timely corrective 
action. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. Financial Implications 
 

The main body of the report provides a detailed analysis of the forecast 2021/22 
Finance Outturn position. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. There are no significant legal implications arising as a result of this report to the 

Cabinet and the Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee, but it should be 
noted that debts, which are recoverable, can be enforced by Court action in 
accordance with the Court Procedure Rules. 

 
The impact of Covid-19 pressures relating to additional expenditure and lost 
income is forecast to continue to have an impact on the Council’s financial 
position both in 2021/22 and in the medium term.  The 2021/22 budget and 
Medium Term Financial Plan include forecast lower income levels for Business 
Rates and Council Tax due to the pandemic, which is being offset through the 
use of both one off government funding and reserves in the short term. 
However, this cannot be sustained in the longer term. Recovery from the 
pandemic is being closely monitored. 

Unresolved appeals against the revaluation assessments for 2010 and 2017 
cause uncertainty and financial risk for the Business Rates income retained by 
the Council. The situation is monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that any 
changes in the trend for successful appeals are recognised due to the future 
impact on Business Rates income and the impact for the provision for any 
backdated elements. 

 The Valuation Office Agency (VOA) alters rating assessments if new 
information comes to light indicating that the valuation is inaccurate. These 
could relate to a demolition, new property builds or other physical changes to a 
property. The number of alterations, financial impact and timing of the 
revaluations are not within the control of the Council. There is an on-going risk 

Page 93



19 

that issues decided nationally by the VOA could potentially impact on Rochdale 
BC’s Business Rates income. 

 The future level of collection of Corporate Debt (including Commercial Income), 
Business Rates and Council Tax debt is a potential financial risk, particularly 
with the on-going impact of the Covid-19 pandemic. Collection performance is 
monitored on a monthly basis to ensure that debt is recovered as efficiently and 
effectively as possible, whilst making adjustments to reflect the current 
circumstances, and so that any trends may be highlighted and action taken as 
necessary, at the appropriate time. Debt collection is likely to continue to be 
affected by the impact of Covid-19 in this financial year. Provisions have been 
increased to reflect the increased risk of non-collection. 

Consultation 

 
7. All services engage with the production of the directorate based financial 

information within this report. The Leadership Team, the Leader, Cabinet 
Member for Finance and Corporate, and Opposition Portfolio holder for Finance 
have been informed of the forecast 2021/22 financial position of the Council 
and its implications for future years. The report will be presented to the 
Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8th December 2021. 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. For further information about this 

report or access to any 
background papers contact 
Samantha Smith 

No1 Riverside Floor 2  

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

 

  

Page 94

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


20 

Appendix A – Revenue Budget ‘Variations to budget’ narrative – Quarter 2, September 2021 

Service Narrative Budget 
£'000 

Forecast  
£'000 

Variance 
£'000 

Adult Care Neighbourhoods:- Increase in placement costs offset by one off additional income 
received from Health towards placements. 44,901 44,430 471 

  Boroughwide Services:- Pressures from higher costs commissioned places for 
service users. 3,871 4,494 (623) 

  In House Provider Services:-In year saving in staffing costs due to staff turnover. 1,648 1,496 152 
  Adult Care Variation to Budget  50,420 50,420 0 
Children's  Cared for Children:-  Small underspend on placements. 24,775 24,690 85 

  Early Help/Sure Start:- Early Years SEND pressure, partially mitigated by 
underspend related to staff vacancies 4,998 5,069 (71) 

  School Support:- Overachievement of income on personnel and governors. 1,361 1,268 93 

  

Special Educational Needs and Disability (SEND):- The service is seeing a large 
increase in Education Health and Care Plan (EHCP) applications which is due to 
the delayed impact of Covid-19 and will also be due to the growth from the new 
academic year; the pressure is £1,437k.  
There is also a pressure of £339k re SEND transport, due to continued growth 
relating to this statutory duty, and cannot be funded by Dedicated Schools grant. 

6,477 8,253 (1,776) 

  Youth Service:- Staff vacancies to date, underspend on activities this will have 
been impacted by covid restrictions during the first quarter. 9 (32) 41 

  
High Needs Block - The service is seeing a large increase in Education Health and 
Care Plan (EHCP) applications which is considered to be the delayed impact of 
covid and will also be the growth from the new academic year. The £1.4m deficit is 
in line with the recovery plan projection which was a £1.5m deficit for 2021/22. 

0 (1,437) 1,437 

P
age 95



21 

  
Early Years Block - Early years SEND pressure of £121k which will be mitigated 
by Early Years Dedicated Schools grant reserves; however the pressure growing 
on the Early Years Block is as a result of SEND.  

0 (121) 121 

  Children's Services Variation to Budget  37,620 37,690 (70) 

Economy 
Economic Development:- Pressure relating to a commercial development due to 
higher than budgeted voids/unlet units, increasing landlord exposure to 
expenditure liabilities on service charge and Business Rates. 

1,919 2,019 (100) 

  

Property Growth Fund: - The overall Property Growth Fund Investment Portfolio is 
forecast to deliver the 1.5% budgeted return on investments completed to date.  
The reported pressure of £0.437m is due to the budgeted savings requirement 
being based on forecast levels of investment to date; as potential investments 
depend upon market forces and the availability of suitable opportunities the 
Council's actual level of investment to date is lower than initially anticipated and 
therefore the savings requirement does not match operational activity.  Future 
years approved budgets have been realigned to take into account current 
investment levels and so this is a non-recurrent pressure. 

(1,629) (1,206) (423) 

  Economy Services Variation to Budget  290 813 (523) 
Finance Control/ 
Tax & Treasury 
  

In-year saving relates to reduced borrowing costs (deferred and lower rates) of 
£454k, partially offset by reduced interest income of £303k due to the delay of a 
planned loan; and £68k in year saving relating to other minor variations. 

13,331 13,112 219 

  Finance Control Variation to Budget 13,331 13,112 219 

Neighbourhoods Facilities Management:-   In year saving due to underspend in maintenance and 
utilities in N1R 2,557 2,482 75 

  Community & Townships:-  In year saving due to vacant posts in Libraries and 
Community Safety 4,002 3,918 84 

P
age 96



22 

  Customer Access :- Additional one off income has been generated in year 1,446 1,333 113 

  

Strategic Housing: - There is a pressure relating to the Homelessness service 
area due to increased numbers of service users and accommodation costs, which 
can only be partially offset by government Housing Benefit subsidy. Although 
budget provision has been made, further corporate funding of £500k has been 
earmarked to address the forecast pressure.  

2,200 2,200 0 

  Properties:- The service has a pressure of £168k in respect of under achievement 
of income. 229 397 (168) 

  Neighbourhoods Service Variation to Budget 10,434 10,330 104 
Finance Services:- In-year staff savings due to a delay in recruitment. 1,665 1,558 107 
Other Managed Budgets:- In-year savings as a result of vacant posts and other 
temporary arrangements and one-off savings. 2,589 2,384 205 

Revenues and Benefits:- In-year saving due to staffing and additional income from 
Academies. 1,838 1,815 23 

Legal Services:- Pressure within the Shared Legal Service with Manchester City 
Council. 1,804 1,937 (133) 

Human Resources:- In-year savings on staffing and the Occupational Health 
Contract are mitigating a pressure in relation to software costs. 1,893 1,855 38 

Internal Audit:- In-year staff savings due to a delay in recruitment. 631 601 30 

Resources 

Resources Service Variation to Budget 10,420 10,150 270 
 Total Variation to Revenue Budget - 2021/22 0 

 

 

 

P
age 97



23 

Appendix B – Capital Forecast Spend by Scheme as at Quarter 2, September 2021 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Adult Care Better Care Fund 380 380 -  - - 380 
Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant 3,184 3,184 -  3,633 2,633 9,450 
Adult Care   3,564 3,564 -  3,633 2,633 9,830 
Children's Aiming High For Disabled Child 42 42 -  - - 42 
Children's Devolved Formula Capital 915 915 -  461 461 1,837 
Children's Early Years Capital Grant 19 - 19  - - 19 
Children's New Place Planning 8,798 3,530 5,268  20,200 10,200 39,198 
Children's Schools Cap Condition Programme 4,860 3,484 1,376  2,308 1,808 8,976 
Children's Special Provision Capital Fund - - -  593 - 593 
Children's CWD Residential Home 1,114 1,114 -  - - 1,114 
Children’s High Needs Provision Capital Allocations 1,157 579 578  - - 1,157 
Children's   16,905 9,664 7,241  23,562 12,469 52,936 
Economy Definitive ROW Improvement Programme 54 54 -  - - 54 
Economy River Roch Flood Storage 1,010 1,010 -  1,336 4,500 6,846 

Economy 
Rochdale Gateways Environmental 
Programme 

17 17 - 
 

- - 17 

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate 26 26 -  20 - 46 
Economy Asset Development Fund 1,568 1,568 -  1,515 - 3,083 
Economy Property Growth Fund 3,816 205 3,611  42,000 20,000 65,816 

Economy 
Milnrow TC Butterworth Hall Flood Risk 
Mgt 

- - - 
 

100 - 100 

Economy Turf Hill Flood Risk Mgt 500 500 -  - - 500 
Economy East Lancashire Railway 100 26 74  226 - 326 

P
age 98



24 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Economy Lower Falinge 4 4 -  - - 4 
Economy Heywood South/Junction 19 300 300 -  2,421 - 2,721 

Economy Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study 359 250 109 
 

- - 359 

Economy Pennine Holl Lake Feasibility 23 23 -  - - 23 
Economy Metrolink Feasibility 50 50 -  - - 50 
Economy Birch Fountain & Horse Trough-Middleton 22 22 -  - - 22 
Economy Rail Corridor Strategy 3,111 3,111 -  1,000 - 4,111 
Economy Michael Faraday Avenue  3,109 3,109 -  - - 3,109 
Economy Rochdale Flood Innovation Programme 279 279 -  - - 279 
Economy Town Centre East Feasibility 58 57 1  335 - 393 
Economy Town Hall Adaptation and Restoration 2,700 2,884 (184)  3,500 4,831 11,031 
Economy Rochdale Market 1 11 (10)  - - 1 
Economy Town Hall Square PH2 647 647 -  2,200 4,700 7,547 
Economy Drake Street Phase 2 955 955 -  200 - 1,155 
Economy Town Centre Schemes 2016/17 958 958 -  - - 958 
Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy 352 342 10  350 - 702 
Economy Hopwood Hall Refurbishment 97 97 -  - - 97 
Economy Town Centre Residential Strategy 2,297 2,297 -  - - 2,297 

Economy 
Rochdale Riverside Phase 2 
(Upperbanks) 

8,186 11,873 (3,687) 
 

- - 8,186 

Economy Hey/Midd/Litt Town Centre Masterplans 121 121 -  - - 121 
Economy Town Centre Masterplan 50 51 (1)  - - 50 
Economy   30,770 30,847 (77)  55,203 34,031 120,004 
Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme 566 466 100  444 444 1,454 
Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) 554 554 -  500 500 1,554 

P
age 99



25 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Office 365 225 225 -  225 - 450 
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme 309 309 -  400 400 1,109 
Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund 835 835 -  800 800 2,435 
Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites 807 807 -  833 - 1,640 
Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery 124 124 -  120 120 364 
Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way 127 127 -  80 80 287 
Neighbourhoods Rochdale Cemetery Lodge Repair 94 94 -  - - 94 
Neighbourhoods Section 106 - Environmental Management 1,890 1,890 -  42 - 1,932 

Neighbourhoods 
Townships Capital - Environmental 
Management 

217 217 - 
 - - 217 

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment 231 231 -  75 75 381 
Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,242 905 337  2,858 1,777 5,877 
Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme 288 288 -  293 298 879 
Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group 2,997 2,997 -  1,750 1,750 6,497 
Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan 4,155 4,155 -  2,714 2,714 9,583 
Neighbourhoods Townships Capital - Highways 677 677 -  - - 677 
Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme 100 100 -  100 100 300 
Neighbourhoods N1R Revolving Doors 120 - 120  - - 120 
Neighbourhoods Decarbonisation Scheme 11,062 11,062 -  - - 11,062 
Neighbourhoods Coroners Service accommodation 5 5 -  - - 5 
Neighbourhoods Additional Highways Funding 1 1 -  - - - 
Neighbourhoods J19 Feasibility 23,791 14,791 9,000  - - 23,791 
Neighbourhoods Developer Contributions 83 83 -  - - 83 
Neighbourhoods GM Full Fibre Programme 926 926 -  - - 926 

Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement 60 60 - 
 100 - 160 

P
age 100



26 

Service Scheme 
 
2021/22 
budget, 
£k  

 2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn, 
£k  

 
Variation, 
£k  

 

 
2022/23 
budget, 
£k  

 
2023/24 
budget, 
£k  

 Total 
budget, 
£k  

Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme 1,628 1,028 600  1,430 2,419 5,477 
Neighbourhoods Travellers Authorised Stopping Site 46 46 -  - - 46 
Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency 500 500 -  1,519 1,000 3,019 
Neighbourhoods Car Parking Machines 9 9 -  - - 9 
Neighbourhoods Allotments 2017-18 Manifesto Funding 167 167 -  - - 167 
Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing 1,561 1,061 500  650 1,705 3,916 
Neighbourhoods Affordable Housing 2,325 2,325 -  - - 2,325 
Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme 800 730 70  129 - 929 
Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade 450 450 -  159 - 609 
Neighbourhoods Library Self Service 20 20 -  - - 20 
Neighbourhoods Extended Library Hours 150 150 -  - - 150 
Neighbourhoods Townships Funding Libraries 12 12 -  - - 12 
Neighbourhoods N1R Utilisation 85 85 -  - - 85 
Neighbourhoods Highway Investment Programme 1,333 1,333 -  1,320 - 2,653 
Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School 1,280 680 600  - - 1,280 
Neighbourhoods Highways Plant & Machinery 2,000 2,000 -  500 - 2,500 
Neighbourhoods 63,852 52,525 11,327  17,041 14,182 95,075 
Public Health Link4Life Capital Project 1,297 1,297 -  4,806 800 6,903 
Public Health 1,297 1,297 -  4,806 800 6,903 
                 
Total Capital Forecast Position at September 2021 116,388 97,897 18,491  104,245 64,115 284,748 

 

 

 

P
age 101



27 

Appendix B (2) – 2021/22 Capital budget rephasing 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

Children’s 

Early Years Capital Grant – This will 
not be spent in this financial year but 
once childcare providers are running 
at a near full capacity again this will 
be reviewed in 2022/23. 

19 

 
 
 
 

External 

Children’s 

New Place Planning – The DfE have 
delayed the opening dates of both 
new Free Schools so the LA 
contributions will be unspent in 
2021/22. We are liaising with the 
Inclusion Board to decide on a way 
forward for additional SEN places but 
it is unlikely this will generate any 
significant spend in this financial year. 
The building scheme to increase the 
number of pupil places at Brownhill 
Learning Community ASC is due for 
completion in 2022/23, the schemes 
at Harwood Park, Castleton Primary 
school and to increase dining capacity 
at Falinge Park High school, are due 
to be completed in 2021/22 but this 
may need to be extended into 
2022/23 and 2023/24. 

5,268 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

External 

Children’s 

Schools Capital Condition Programme 
– This rephasing request is relating to 
various schools due to works being 
postponed until Summer 2022/23. 

1,376 

 
 

External 

Children's 

High Needs Provision Capital 
Allocations – This is a new grant for 
2021/22 and it is estimated that half of 
the allocation of £1.157m will be spent 
in 2021/22. 

578 

 
 
 
 
 

External 

Economy 

Town Centre Schemes – Following 
Cabinet approval in September 2021, 
the build contract for the Upperbanks 
scheme has been awarded and the 
expected construction costs in 21/22 

(184) 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 102



28 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

require a switch of £(3,687)k from the 
Property Growth Fund in 21/22.  
Town Hall – changes in the 
procurement process has incurred 
additional costs and a rephase of 
£(184)k is requested from Phase 3 of 
the scheme from 23/24 to 21/22. 
Minor switch of budgets within the 
Town Centre programme to fund final 
payment of works to Rochdale Market 
£(10)k and a slightly higher than 
anticipated cost for Town Centre 
Masterplan £(1)k – this is to be 
funded from the Town Centre 3 Year 
Strategy budget £10k and Town 
Centre East Feasibility budget £1k.  

 
 
 
 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Property Growth Fund – The build 
contract for the Upperbanks scheme 
has been awarded and the expected 
construction costs in 21/22 require a 
rephase of £(76)k from 22/23 to 21/22 
on Property Growth Fund and then 
£3,687k is to be switched to 
Upperbanks in 21/22; utilisation of the 
fund for this purpose having been 
approved at Cabinet in September 
2021. 

(76) 

 
 
 
 
 

Invest to 
Save 

Economy 

East Lancashire Railway – Awaiting 
the outcome of a Transport for 
Greater Manchester study for the 
tram-train project to confirm the 
location of a platform at Heywood 
Station which affects other 
improvement works at the station, 
therefore a rephase is requested of 
£74k to 22/23. 

74 

 
 
 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Economy 

Northern Gateway Feasibility & Study 
– Funding to be reprofiled to 22/23 
following the receipt of GM Combined 
Authority grant funding £109k. 

109 

 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

 
 

Economy 

Milnrow TC Butterworth Hall Flood 
Risk Mgt: £100k to be rephased to 
2022/23 as work is not expected to 
take place in 2021/22 at this stage. 

100 

 
Prudential 
Borrowing 

Page 103



29 

Service Narrative 
Rephasing 
Requested 
£000s 

Funding 
Source 

Neighbourhoods 

ICT Infrastructure Refresh 
Programme – In the current economic 
climate the time taken to purchase 
vehicles has extended beyond the 
normal timeframes. A request is 
therefore made to rephase £337k 
budget into 2022/23. 

337 

 
 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
Number One Riverside revolving 
doors – Request to rephase £120k to 
22/23. 

120 

 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods Junction 19 Feasibility – Request to 
rephase £9m to 22/23.  9,000 

 
External 

Neighbourhoods 
Compulsory Purchase Order 
Programme – Request to rephase 
£600k to 22/23. 

600 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods Accelerated Housing – Request to 
rephase £500k to 22/23. 500 

 
Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 

Customer Transformation Programme 
– This project spans multiple years, a 
request is made to rephase £70k to 
22/23. 

70 

 
Prudential 
Borrowing 

Neighbourhoods 
Bowlee Free School – A request is 
made to rephase £600k to 22/23 
linked to the building of the school. 

600 
 

Prudential 
Borrowing 

   Grand Total of Rephasing 18,491  
  

  

Page 104



30 

Appendix C – Collection Fund 

Business Rates 

The 2021/22 forecast outturn position relating to Business Rates is a deficit 
of £6,625k:  

Description Budget 
2021/22 
Forecast 
Outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

(Surplus)/Deficit 
movement from 
previous update 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
Gross income (86,863) (86,863) -  -  
Net Small Business Rate relief 8,110 8,110 -  -  
Mandatory Charitable relief 4,229 4,424 195 195 
Discretionary relief 608 9,981 9,373 (175) 
Empties & Part Occupied relief 4,500 4,000 (500) (500) 
Net Income (69,416) (60,348) 9,068 (480) 
Less:          
Charge re bad debt provision 3,000 3,000 -  -  
Allowance for cost of collection 326 326 -  -  

Provision for rateable value 
revaluations  3,911 3,911 -  -  
Renewable energy schemes 583 583 -  -  
Net yield (61,596) (52,528) 9,068 (480) 
2021/22 payments to 
preceptors/billing authority 61,596 61,596 -  -  

In year deficit -  9,068 9,068 (480) 
Deficit brought forward from 
2020/21 24,265 21,822 (2,443) -  
Payments from preceptors/billing 
authority re 2020/21 deficit per 
2021/22 Budget process (21,794) (21,794) -  -  
2021/22 Forecast deficit/(surplus) 2,471 9,096 6,625 (480) 
2022/23 & 2023/24 Payments from 
preceptors re 2020/21 deficit as per 
2021/22 Budget process (2,471) (2,471) -  -  
Net deficit -  6,625 6,625 (480) 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105



31 

Council Tax 

The 2021/22 forecast position relating to Council Tax is a surplus of £2,165k.  

2021/22 Forecast Council Tax Income 

Description Budget 
2021/22 
Forecast 
outturn 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

(Surplus)/ 
Deficit 

movement 
from 

previous 
report 

  £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 
INCOME         
Income from Council Tax (151,783) (152,000) (217) (217) 
Income from premium on Empty Properties (509) (700) (191) (191) 
Council Tax discounts  15,069 14,523 (546) (546) 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme 
(LCTSS) 22,303 21,500 (803) (403) 
Prior year adjustments 203 203 -  -  
Total income (114,717) (116,474) (1,757) (1,357) 
EXPENDITURE         
Charge re bad debt provision 3,442 3,377 (65) 235 
Total expenditure 3,442 3,377 (65) 235 
Net income to be raised for precept/ 
billing authority after LCTSS awarded (111,275) (113,097) (1,822) (1,122) 
2021/22 payments to Preceptors 111,275 111,275 -    
In year deficit/(surplus) -  (1,822) (1,822) (1,122) 
Deficit brought forward from 2020/21 3,476 3,133 (343) -  
2021/22 Payments from preceptors re 
2020/21 deficit as per 2021/22 Budget 
process (2,235) (2,235) -  -  
2021/22 Forecast deficit/(surplus) 1,241 (924) (2,165) (1,122) 
2022/23 & 2023/24 Payments from 
preceptors re 2020/21 deficit as per 
2021/22 Budget process (1,241) (1,241) -    
Net surplus -  (2,165) (2,165) (1,122) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



32 

Appendix D – Treasury update – September 2021 

Table 1 below summarises the borrowing activity of the Council in the first half of the year 
showing the types of loan, the average interest rate and the average length of maturity of 
each class of loan.  

Table 1 Borrowing 

 Balance  
New 

Borrowing Repayments Balance Average Average 

Debt Type 
at 

01/04/21 to 30/09/21 to 30/09/21 
at 

30/09/21 Rate Maturity 
  £M £M £M £M % Years 
Fixed Rate Debt             
PWLB Debt 102.634 - (3.419) 99.215 2.37% 10.82 
Market Debt 56.000 -                    -    56.000 4.31% 45.64 
Salix 0.245 - (0.033) 0.212 0.00% 1.15 

Short Term Debt             -    -                    -    
                  
-    

                
-    

                
-    

Total Fixed Rate 
Debt 158.879 - (3.452) 155.427 3.06% 23.34 
             
Variable Rate 
Debt            

PWLB              -    -                    -    
                  
-        

Market Debt 64.000 -                    -    64.000 4.52% 44.93 
Total Variable 
Rate Debt 64.000 -                    -    64.000     
             
TOTAL DEBT 222.879 - (3.452) 219.427 3.48% 29.64 

 

No long term borrowing has been undertaken so far in 2021/22. The current year’s revised 
capital programme, including rephasing from previous years, reductions and planned 
rephasing to future years (totalling £42m) has so far been funded by internal (from reserves 
and balances) borrowing. A similar policy, has been used to support the capital programme in 
the previous 8 years resulting in cumulative internal borrowing at the start of the year of £139m 
This means there is potential for external borrowing of £181m in 2021/22 and future years as 
balances are used for their intended purpose or to bridge the overall budget gap. Our current 
projections and balance sheet review indicate that in year borrowing will be limited, though 
some additional borrowing may be undertaken to hedge against potential future interest rate 
increases. 

Delaying our long term borrowing has led to savings of £381k compared to our revised 
estimate in the first part of the year.  
 

 

 

 

 

Page 107



33 

A projection of the net cost of interest on the Council’s borrowings and investments is shown 
in table 2. 

Table 2 Interest Summary 

  Revised Current Variation 
Interest Budgets Estimate Projection Under/(Over) 
  £'000 £'000 £'000 
Interest Cost on Borrowing (Net of 
Contributions) 6,486 6,105 (381) 
Investment Income (69) (116) (48) 
Other Interest Budgets 204 178 (26) 

Total 6,621 6,167 (454) 
 

The Treasury Management Strategy details a number of Prudential Indicators which the 
Prudential Code requires the Council to manage and report on. The indictors are as follows: 
 Maturity Structure of Fixed Interest Borrowing 
 Operational and Authorised Limits 
 

Maturity 

The maturity structure of fixed interest borrowing should enable the maturity of loans across a 
range of years so that the Council will not be exposed to a requirement for large amounts of 
repayment at a particular time. This needs balancing against the requirement for certainty of 
costs to secure budgets going forward and the desire to secure the best possible rates. The 
Prudential Code requires the Council to place upper and lower ranges on maturity. 

Table 3 Period of Maturity 

  Upper Lower Actual 
Period of Maturity Limit Limit to Date 
        
Under 12 months 60% 0% 3.42% 
Between 12 & 24 
months 60% 0% 3.14% 
Between 2 & 5 years  60% 0% 9.55% 
Between 5 & 10 years  70% 0% 10.08% 
Over 10 years  100% 25% 73.81% 

 

Debt Boundaries & Limits 

The Council’s Operational Boundary (the limit which borrowing should not normally exceed) 
in 2021/22 (adjusted for PFI projects and externally managed debt) is £540m. The Authorised 
Limit (a control on our maximum level of borrowing) is £716m. Current borrowing (adjusted for 
PFI and other debt related long term liabilities) is £311m – comfortably within the approved 
limits. We do not expect to exceed these limits in the latter half of the year.  

Investments  

Page 108



34 

The level of investments on 1st April 2021 was £120.9m and is £129.8m at 30 September 
2021. The level of investments the Council targets to maintain in the future will generally be 
between £30-40m. The balance has remained above our target due to slower capital spend, 
the accumulation of capital grants unapplied and the maintenance of reserves and balances.  
The Council expects to exceed its revised investment income target by £48k in the year. The 
average interest rate earned on investments in the first part of the year was 0.12% compared 
to our benchmarks of 0.06% / -0.06% (7 Day LIBOR/LIBID plus 2 basis points). 

Investments represent surplus cash as a result of timing differences between receipt of funds 
and related expenditure which creates earmarked reserves and balances held for future need. 
The Council’s main investment priority continues to be the security of capital followed by 
liquidity and yield / return. The Treasury Management Team aims to achieve the optimum 
return commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current economic 
climate, with continuing credit concerns it is considered appropriate to keep investments 
relatively short dated with no investments placed for more than a year.  Roughly a third of our 
current portfolio is available on call (including Money Market Funds) with the remainder 
invested in notice accounts and fixed term deposits. All investments are made with 
counterparties with strong credit ratings and adhere to the limits (duration and amount with 
each institution) specified in our Treasury Management Strategy. 

The relative percentages of the investment portfolio held on 30th September 2021 are detailed 
in table 4 by maturity, investment type, institution and credit rating. 

Table 4 Investment Portfolio 

 

 

Maturity  Type of Investment 
Maturing: Amount £m %   Investments Types Amount £m % 

Instant Call 46.8 
36.0

%  Fixed Term Deposits 66.0 
50.9

% 

Less than 1 Month 7.0 5.4%  Notice Accounts 17.0 
13.1

% 

1-3 Months 30.0 
23.1

%  Call and Overnight 7.5 5.7% 

3-6 Months 46.0 
35.5

%  Money Market Funds 39.3 
30.3

% 
6 Months to 1 Year 0.0 0.0%  Total 129.8 100% 
Over 1 Year 0.0 0.0%     
Total 129.8 100%            

Institutions  Ratings 
Institutions:  Amount £m %  Institution Rating Amount £m % 

UK Banks 52.5 
40.4

%  AAA 39.3 
30.3

% 
Europe 7.0 5.4%  AA- 10.0 7.7% 

Rest of World 26.0 
20.0

%  A+ 67.5 
52.0

% 

Money Market Funds 39.3 
30.3

%  A- 8.0 6.2% 
UK Local Authorities 5.0 3.9%  No Rating  5.0 3.8% 
Total 129.8 100%  Total 129.8 100% 

Page 109



Agenda 
Item 

 

 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 23rd November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Julie Murphy 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
1.2 

Discretionary Fees and Charges are reviewed on an annual basis. At Cabinet 
27th July 2021 a 2% general increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges for 
2022/23 was agreed for planning purposes, subject to exemptions to be agreed. 
 
This report details the proposed Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2022/23 as a 
basis for consultation, and details those charges proposed to be exempt from 
the general 2% increase. 
 

Recommendation 
 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 

Cabinet approves the updated Discretionary Fees and Charges for 2022/23, 
as a basis for consultation. 
 
Cabinet approves the charges exempt from the general 2% increase, as set 
out in paragraph 4.3. 
 
Cabinet approve the introduction of the new charge for the webcasting of 
funeral services as detailed in section 4.4 for consultation. 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 

The fees and charges in this report have been proposed by each Directorate, 
taking into account the 2% general uplift in Discretionary Fees and Charges 
agreed at Cabinet on 27th July 2021. 
 
It is recommended not to apply a 2% increase to the fees and charges detailed 
in paragraph 4.3. 
 
 
 

Page 110

Agenda Item 9



Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Authority carries out an annual review of discretionary fees and charges 
as part of the budget setting process. It is a requirement of this process that 
Cabinet agrees an appropriate general level of increase. For the 2022/23 
financial year Cabinet 27th July 2021 approved a general increase of 2%, as 
a basis for consultation. 
 
In most cases charges have been rounded to the nearest pound. The 
amended proposed fee levels for the 2022/23 financial year, which take into 
account rounding, are included in Appendix 1. 
 
After consultation with Directorates, it is requested that the 2% increase not 
be applied to the following areas: 
 
Car Parking – Budget Pressure funding has been provided to the service in 
previous financial years.  Increasing the charges is likely to bring further 
financial pressure to the service. 
 
Taxi Licences – Taxi licensing must operate by law on a cost recovery basis. 
Work is ongoing to develop GM common minimum licensing standards. This 
GM work includes a standardised methodology for fee setting. It is proposed 
to hold the fees until the methodology has been finalised and then a full 
review of Rochdale’s fees will be undertaken in line with the GM standardised 
approach. 
 
Land Charges – Based on Greater Manchester benchmarking, there is a risk 
that increasing the cost of search fees will create future budget pressures as 
the service will be outside of the market pricing. 
 
Liability Orders – In line with Government guidance, current charges cover 
the cost incurred.  A further increase is not recommended. 
 
Music Service Charges – Based on a benchmarking exercise, charges are 
set to reflect the competitive private tuition market, and therefore maximise 
potential income streams. 
 
Food Hygiene Charges – Charges amended to ensure consistency with 
other Greater Manchester authorities. 
 
Careline/Support@Home – These Adult Care charges will be set based on 
actual costs and the number of service users in receipt of the service. This 
will be reported to Cabinet in a separate paper in February prior to Budget 
Council. 
 
Town Hall Meeting Rooms – All charges are suspended until the completion 
of the restoration works. 
 
Bulky Waste Collection – Cabinet 25th August 2020 approved a reduction 
in charges in order to reduce fly tipping. A separate report will be submitted 

Page 111



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 

to Cabinet detailing the options for charging for bulky household waste from 
2022/23 onwards. 
 
Wheeled Bins - Cabinet 31st August 2021 approved that the charge to 
developers would be set at £25.  Bins will be supplied free of charge to 
householders. 
 
Sponsorship Signs – The budget has already been increased in line with 
previous savings proposals. 
 
Car Boot Sales – Charges held in order to maintain usage levels. 
 
Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary Carnivals, fetes and similar 
events - Charges to non-profit / non-commercial organisations to be held at 
current level. 
 
It is proposed that a new charge is introduced for the webcasting of funeral 
services now restrictions on the number of mourners who can attend a funeral 
service have been lifted. The proposed charge is £30. The council has to pay 
a licence fee of £20 per webcast. This cost is currently met from the existing 
bereavement services budget. It is not a requirement for mourners to webcast 
the service but an option. During the pandemic around two thirds of services 
opted for a webcast but this may reduce now restrictions on numbers have 
been lifted. This proposal is forecast to generate £10k. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
The alternative is not to review or increase our fees and charges. This would 
potentially reduce the income available to the Council and make it more 
difficult to achieve a balanced budget. 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 

A full list of all proposed fees and charges for 2022/23 is included in Appendix 
1. 
 
Taking into account the exceptions mentioned in 4.3, the proposal to increase 
charges in line with inflation is forecast to generate a further c. £80k 
contribution per annum towards running costs. 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 

Each Directorate has reviewed its charges against relevant legislation to 
ensure that all transactions remain compliant with the relevant statutes 
governing Local Authority activities. 

6.1 
 
 
  

Consultation 
 
7.1 
 
 
 

All Directorates engage in the production of the proposed charges identified 
within this report. The Leadership Team, Cabinet Member for Finance, and 
the opposition Portfolio Holder for Finance have been informed of the 

Page 112



proposed charges for 2022/23. This report will be submitted to Corporate 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8th December 2021. 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8.   

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith 
samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924198 

Page 113

mailto:samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1 – Discretionary Fees and Charges 2022/23 

Strategic Housing         
       
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to nearest 
£) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
Strat Housing R0347 Landlord's First Application £908.00 £926.00 £18.00 2.00% 
Strat Housing R0348 Landlord's Subsequent Application £770.00 £785.00 £15.00 2.00% 
Strat Housing R0349 Five Yearly Inspection £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Strat Housing R0350 
Supplement For Inadequate 
Applications £150.00 £153.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Strat Housing R0351 
Supplement For Initial Refusal Of A 
Licence £998.00 £1,018.00 £20.00 2.00% 

Strat Housing R0352 Managing Agent Fee £191.00 £195.00 £4.00 2.00% 

Strat Housing R0353 
Houses In Multiple Occupation 
Licensing Scheme Fees: Supplement 
For: Variations To A Licence 

£309.00 £315.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Strat Housing R2085 Rented accommodation -service of 
statutory notices, up to 10 deficiencies £349.00 £356.00 £7.00 2.00% 

Strat Housing R2086 Further charge for each subsequent 
additional  deficiency £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 2.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 114



Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23         

       
Environmental Management         

       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to nearest £) 
Increase 

(£) 
Proposed 

% Increase 

EM R1029 Mini Soccer League (Bowlee) Per Pitch £51.00 £52.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1030 
Mini Soccer League without 
accommodation per season £144.00 £147.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R1031 Mini Soccer League with accommodation £230.00 £235.00 £5.00 2.00% 

EM R1032 Rounder's League £1,162.00 £1,185.00 £23.00 2.00% 

EM R1033 
Pitch Letting without changing 
accommodation £429.00 £438.00 £9.00 2.00% 

EM R1034 
Pitch Letting with changing 
accommodation £743.00 £758.00 £15.00 2.00% 

EM R1035 
Friendly Letting without changing 
accommodation  £54.00 £55.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1036 
Friendly Letting with changing 
accommodation £79.00 £81.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R1078 Mot Tests - Private £49.00 £50.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1080 Repairs - Private £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 115



EM R0905 1100L Wheeled Bin £471.00 £480.00 £9.00 2.00% 

EM R0906 

240L Wheeled Bin (Cabinet 31st August 
2021 approved that the charge to 
developers would be set at £25.  Bins will 
be supplied free of charge to 
householders) 

£20.00 £25.00 £5.00 25.00% 

EM R0907 360L Wheeled Bin £58.00 £59.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0908 660L Wheeled Bin £394.00 £402.00 £8.00 2.00% 

EM R1888 

140L Wheeled Bin (Cabinet 31st August 
2021 approved that the charge to 
developers would be set at £25.  Bins will 
be supplied free of charge to 
householders) 

£20.00 £25.00 £5.00 25.00% 

EM R2087 880L Wheeled Bin £412.00 £420.00 £8.00 2.00% 

EM R0984 Individual Rides £72.00 £73.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0985 Bouncy Castles £72.00 £73.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0986 Adult Season Ticket £56.00 £57.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0987 Adult Day Pass £6.00 £6.00 £0.00 2.00% 

EM R0988 Junior/Concession Season Ticket £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0989 Junior/Concession Day Pass £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 2.00% 

EM   Allotments Charge per square metre £0.50 £0.50 £0.00 2.00% 

EM R0943 Medical Referee Fee £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 116



EM   Non-attended cremations £425.00 £434.00 £9.00 2.00% 

EM   Accompanied visits/search £100.00 £102.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R1898 Transfer of ownership of plot £75.00 £77.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM   Lost papers/deeds £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM   Scattering of ashes £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1896 Sedum Matting £105.00 £107.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R0956 Cremated Remains Up To FT Resident £256.00 £261.00 £5.00 2.00% 

EM R0957 
Cremated Remains Up To FT Non-
Resident £461.00 £470.00 £9.00 2.00% 

EM R0958 
Cremated Remains Per Additional (No 
Suggestions) £72.00 £73.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0959 Cremated Remains Under Turf £56.00 £57.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0960 
General Charges: Use Of Cemetery 
Chapel £113.00 £115.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R0961 General Charges: Concrete Heading £252.00 £257.00 £5.00 2.00% 

EM R0962 General Charges: Additional Inscription £42.00 £43.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0963 Right To Erect Memorial £141.00 £144.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R0964 Number stone £102.00 £104.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R0967 Cremation Fees Adult £726.00 £741.00 £15.00 2.00% 

P
age 117



EM R0968 
Burial Of Remains Cremated Elsewhere 
In Garden £68.00 £69.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0990 Book Of Remembrance £108.00 £110.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R0991 Book Of Remembrance £145.00 £148.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R0992 Book Of Remembrance £202.00 £206.00 £4.00 2.00% 

EM R0993 Floral Designs £108.00 £110.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R0994 Other Designs £189.00 £193.00 £4.00 2.00% 

EM R0995 Memorial Cards £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0996 Memorial Cards £51.00 £52.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0997 Memorial Cards £70.00 £71.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R0998 Rose Bush & Plaque For 10 yrs. £155.00 £158.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R0999 Memorial Wall Plaque For 10 yrs. £143.00 £146.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R1667 Replacement/Additional Plaques £78.00 £80.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM R1668 Replacement Memorial £42.00 £43.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1000 Children's Garden Plaque For 10 yrs. £143.00 £146.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R1001 Memorial Stone Vase For 10 yrs. £547.00 £558.00 £11.00 2.00% 

EM R1002 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Small £293.00 £299.00 £6.00 2.00% 

EM R1003 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Large £421.00 £429.00 £8.00 2.00% 

EM R1004 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Re Open £63.00 £64.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 118



EM R1005 Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Urn £52.00 £53.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1006 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Black £3.80 £3.90 £0.10 2.00% 

EM R1007 Letters for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - Gold £4.00 £4.10 £0.10 2.00% 

EM R1008 
Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - 
Black £1.05 £1.10 £0.05 2.00% 

EM R1009 
Re-letter for Stone Niche For 20 yrs. - 
Gold £2.00 £2.05 £0.05 2.00% 

EM R1010 New Tree & Plaque £192.00 £196.00 £4.00 2.00% 

EM R1011 
Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs. - 
Double £366.00 £373.00 £7.00 2.00% 

EM R1012 
Bronze Memorial Plaque For 10 yrs. - 
Single £185.00 £189.00 £4.00 2.00% 

EM R1013 Search Fee £42.00 £43.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1014 Wooden Casket £59.00 £60.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1015 Wooden Cross / Stone Marker & Plaque £133.00 £136.00 £3.00 2.00% 

EM R1016 Accompanied Selection Of New Graves £51.00 £52.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM R1513 Memorial Bench and Plaque with ten year 
lease 
 

£948.00 £967.00 £19.00 2.00% 

EM R0983 Site Fees 
 

£800.00 £816.00 £16.00 2.00% 

EM  Granite ashes vaults 10 year lease £895.00 £913.00 £18.00 2.00% 

EM  Granite ashes vaults 20 year lease £1,200.00 £1,224.00 £24.00 2.00% 

P
age 119



EM  Granite ashes vaults 30 year lease £1,475.00 £1,505.00 £30.00 2.00% 

EM  Granite ashes vaults 50 year lease £2,100.00 £2,142.00 £42.00 2.00% 

EM  Granite ashes vaults additional ceramic 
photo £105.00 £107.00 £2.00 2.00% 

EM  Granite ashes vaults additional motif/ 
flower £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 2.00% 

EM  Granite ashes vaults extra lettering (per 
letter) £3.00 £3.05 £0.05 2.00% 

No increase proposed     
    

EM R2088 Any Household White Goods Item that 
would be taken on moving house  £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 - 

EM R0913 Small Electrical Items (Hi - Fi Systems, 
Microwaves, TV's) Up To 5 Items £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 - 

EM R0942 
Bed, Mattress, Carpet, Chairs, Suites - 
Any General household item That would 
be taken on moving house. 

£11.00 £11.00 £0.00 - 

EM R1037 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Car Park £2.50 £2.50 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R1038 Bowlee Car Boot Sales - Sellers (Car) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R1039 
Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Estate cars, 
Small Vans & 4x4) £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R1040 
Bowlee Car Boot Sellers (Transit Van and 
upward) £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 120



EM R0944 Full Grave £1,098.00 £1,098.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0946 Cremated Remains - Resident £722.00 £722.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0947 Cremated Remains - Non-Resident £1,305.00 £1,305.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0950 Private Grave Adult Resident £950.00 £950.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0951 Private Grave Adult Non-Resident £1,425.00 £1,425.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0952 Private Grave With Chamber £353.00 £353.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0945 Non-Resident £1,976.00 £1,976.00 £0.00 0.00% 

EM R0955 Public Grave Adult £225.00 £225.00 £0.00 0.00% 

  

  

P
age 121



       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           
       
Public Protection           
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
Public Protection R1112 Administration Fee For Work In 

Default £48.00 £49.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1113 Information Search Fee: Minimum 
Charge (Up To First Hour) £103.00 £105.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1114 Information Search Fee: Each 
Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof £42.00 £43.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1115 Information Search Fee: Reclamation 
Of Stray Dogs £107.00 £109.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1117 Individual Export Certificate request 
with 5 or more working days notice £83.00 £85.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1118 

Batch Certs Only Applicable In Strictly 
Limited Circumstances (Inc. Low Risk 
Product And Subject To A Audit 
System) 

£197.00 £201.00 £4.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1268 Grant, renewal, transfer fee for Sexual 
Establishment Venue (SEV) £1,642.00 £1,675.00 £33.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1269  Street Trading: - Annual Consent £982.00 £1,002.00 £20.00 2.00% 
Public Protection R1270 Street Trading: - Annual Licence £1,419.00 £1,447.00 £28.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1271 
Street Trading: - Consent To Cover 
Trading At Specific Event: Up To 5 
days 

£228.00 £233.00 £5.00 2.00% 

P
age 122



Public Protection R1272 
Street Trading: - Consent To Cover 
Trading At Specific Event: Up To 2 
days 

£91.00 £93.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1273 Ear Piercing/Tattooing/Acupuncture £164.00 £167.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1274 Animal Boarding 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

n/a n/a 

Public Protection R1275 Dog Breeding 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

n/a n/a 

Public Protection R1277 Riding Establishment 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

n/a n/a 

Public Protection R1278 Dangerous Animals 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

n/a n/a 

Public Protection   Selling Animals 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

n/a n/a 

Public Protection   Animals for exhibition 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

See 
Animal 

Licensing 
Fees tab 

n/a n/a 

Public Protection R1282 Licensing Pre - Application 
Consultation Fee £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1283 Licensing Street Trading - Change Of 
Vehicle £58.00 £59.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 123



Public Protection R1825 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence 
(grant and renewal) £745.00 £760.00 £15.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1826 Scrap Metal Dealers Site Licence 
(multiple sites) 

£745 plus 
£620 per 

additional 
site 

£745 plus 
£620 per 

additional 
site 

£15.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1828 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change 
from collector's licence to site licence £745.00 £760.00 £15.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1829 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change 
from site licence to collector's licence £308.00 £314.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1830 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change 
of licensee's details £17.00 £17.00 £0.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1831 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change 
licenced sites £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1832 Scrap Metal Licence Variation; change 
site managers £57.00 £58.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1833 Scrap Metal certified copy of licence £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1890 
Domestic Premises (1 Bed Flat / 
Studio) - Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas 
with advanced payment  

£63.00 £64.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1891 
Domestic Premises (2/3 Bed) - 
Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with 
advanced payment  

£82.00 £84.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1892 
Domestic Premises (4/5 Bed) - 
Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with 
advanced payment 

£99.00 £101.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1893 
Domestic Premises (6+ Bed) - 
Cockroaches, bedbugs, fleas with 
advanced payment 

£116.00 £118.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1894 
Domestic Premises (1 Bed Flat / 
Studio) - Demestes , carpet beetles 
with advanced payment  

£82.00 £84.00 £2.00 2.00% 

P
age 124



Public Protection R1895 
Domestic Premises (2/3 Bed) -  
Demestes , carpet beetles with 
advanced payment  

£99.00 £101.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1896 
Domestic Premises (4/5 Bed) -  
Demestes , carpet beetles with 
advanced payment 

£116.00 £118.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1897 
Domestic Premises (6+ Bed) -  
Demestes , carpet beetles with 
advanced payment 

£136.00 £139.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1293 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - 
price per nest invoice requested £125.00 £128.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1295 
Domestic Premises - Assessment / 
monitoring charge, including call out 
charge if treatment inappropriate. 

£45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1296 Domestic Premises - Advisory visit 
with not treatment. £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1297 
Domestic Premises - re-booking fee - 
to rebook/ change an appointment 
time 

£27.00 £28.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1298 Domestic Premises - cancellation of 
appointment £27.00 £28.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection   Pest Port Scheme - 12 months 
scheme with up to 3 treatments £134.00 £137.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1440 
Misc.: Information Letter (Cost 
Includes Up To 1 Hours Work And A 
Cost Of Letter) 

£97.00 £99.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1441 Misc.: Information Check (Each 
Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof) £23.00 £23.00 £0.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1442 Misc.: Insurance £50.00 £51.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1443 Hourly Rate For Work Not Included 
Below £115.00 £117.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1444 Hourly Rate : Weights Up To 5 kg £9.00 £9.00 £0.00 2.00% 

P
age 125



Public Protection R1445 Hourly Rate: Weights Above 5 kg £11.00 £11.00 £0.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1446 Linear Measures - Not Exceeding 3 
Meters £12.00 £12.00 £0.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1447 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without 
Division): Not Exceeding 1 Litre £236.00 £241.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1448 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without 
Division): Cubic Ballast £40.00 £41.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1449 Linear Measures: Capacity (Without 
Division) Liquid Capacity: Templates £69.00 £70.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1450 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 15 kg £42.00 £43.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1451 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 100 kg  £59.00 £60.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1452 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 250 kg £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1453 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 1 Tonne £146.00 £149.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1454 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 10 Tonne £231.00 £236.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1455 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 30 Tonne £481.00 £491.00 £10.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1456 Weighing Instruments Imperial Or 
Metric Units: Up To 60 Tonne £722.00 £736.00 £14.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1457 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating 
Liquors: Up To 150 ml £30.00 £31.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1458 Measuring Instruments: Intoxicating 
Liquors: Other £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1459 Liquid Fuel And Lubricants £102.00 £104.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1460 Unsubdivisional Container: 
Multigrade-Single Outlet £141.00 £144.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1461 Unsubdivisional Container: Price 
Adjustment: Other £252.00 £257.00 £5.00 2.00% 

P
age 126



Public Protection R1462 Unsubdivisional Container: Price 
Adjustment: Other-Single Outlet £113.00 £115.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1463 Unsubdivisional Container: Price 
Adjustment: Other   £151.00 £154.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1464 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 1 Meter £164.00 £167.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1465 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 2 Meters £265.00 £270.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1466 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 3 Meters £362.00 £369.00 £7.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1467 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 4 Meters £457.00 £466.00 £9.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1468 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 5 Meters £556.00 £567.00 £11.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1469 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 6 Meters £648.00 £661.00 £13.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1470 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 7 Meters £763.00 £778.00 £15.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1471 Unsubdivisional Container: Multi-
Outlets: 8 Meters £847.00 £864.00 £17.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1472 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): 
Meter System: Wet Hose £267.00 £272.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1473 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): 
Meter System: Dry Hose £300.00 £306.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1474 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): 
Dipstick System: To 7600 Litres £236.00 £241.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1475 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): 
Dipstick System: Initial £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1476 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): 
Dipstick System: Spare £32.00 £33.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1477 Road Tanker Fuel (Above 100 Litres): 
Dipstick System: Replace £64.00 £65.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 127



Public Protection R1481 Primary Authority Agreement Hourly 
rate £99.00 £101.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1290 

Commercial Premises - Pest Control 
Work -  price per hour minimum 
charge of 1 hour (Based on historical 
data, if new data identifies that the full 
unit cost/hourly 

£119.00 £121.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1291 Commercial Premises - Wasp Nest - 
price per nest with advanced payment £79.00 £81.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1292 Domestic premises - Wasp nest - 
price per nest with advanced payment £79.00 £81.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R2090 Domestic premises - Ants with 
advanced payment £79.00 £81.00 £2.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1294 Domestic Premises - Squirrel 
Treatment £151.00 £154.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1893 New - Treatment for Rats (including 2 
revisits) £27.00 £28.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1894 New - Treatment for Mice (including 2 
revisits) £27.00 £28.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1279 Grant, renewal or transfer fee for Sex 
Shop Establishment £1,194.00 £1,218.00 £24.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1827 Scrap Metal Collectors Licence (grant 
and renewal) £308.00 £314.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public Protection R1276 Pet Shop £0.00 £0.00 £0.00   

Public Protection   
Hand delivery of export certificates to 
trader premises within Rochdale 
borough 

£37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public Protection   Pleasure Boat Licence (carrying up to 
12 passengers) £353.00 £360.00 £7.00 2.00% 

Public Protection   Public Health funeral officer recharge 
cost - hourly rate per officer £85.00 £87.00 £2.00 2.00% 

P
age 128



Public Protection   
Work in default / non-compliance 
officer recharge cost - hourly rate per 
officer 

£85.00 £87.00 £2.00 2.00% 

No increase proposed             
Public Protection R1891 Food Hygiene Rescore £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection NEW New - Food premises pre-inspection £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1107 Car Boot Sales - Fee per car £4.30 £4.30 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1109 Council Car Boot Sales - fee per car £4.30 £4.30 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1877 Food hygiene Advisory Visit - hourly 
rate £81.00 £81.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1435 Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (1 
year licence) £208.00 £208.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 1 Vehicle (5 
year licence) £1,042.00 £1,042.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1436 Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles 
(1 year licence) £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 2 - 10 Vehicles 
(5 year licence) £1,980.00 £1,980.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1437 Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £556.00 £556.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 11 - 20 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £2,781.00 £2,781.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1438 Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £713.00 £713.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 21 - 30 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £3,561.00 £3,561.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £872.00 £872.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 129



Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 31 - 40 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £4,356.00 £4,356.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,028.00 £1,028.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 41 - 50 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £5,138.00 £5,138.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,184.00 £1,184.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 51 - 60 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £5,919.00 £5,919.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,340.00 £1,340.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: 61 - 70 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £6,700.00 £6,700.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: above 70 
Vehicles (1 year licence) £1,495.00 £1,495.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Private Hire Operators: above 70 
Vehicles (5 year licence) £7,478.00 £7,478.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1417 Drivers: Initial Application (1 year 
licence) £110.00 £110.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection   Drivers: Initial Application (3 year 
licence) £258.00 £258.00 £0.00 0.00% 

Public Protection R1418 Drivers: Renewal (1 year licence) £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1419 Drivers: Combined Initial (1 year) £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers: Combined initial (3 year)  £420.00 £420.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1420 Drivers: Combined Renewal (1 year) £126.00 £126.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1422 Drivers: Replacement Badge £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1424 Drivers: Duplicate Licence £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1425 Drivers: Replacement Lanyard £3.20 £3.20 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1426 Drivers: Drivers Declaration £8.40 £8.40 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1428 Vehicles: Plate Fee £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 130



Public Protection R1429 Change Of Vehicle £122.00 £122.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1430 Change Of Owner £38.00 £38.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1431 Retest Charge £62.00 £62.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1432 Duplicate Licence £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1433 Replacement Window Stickers £6.30 £6.30 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Front plate carrier £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Rear plate carrier £29.00 £29.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Button and key £1.10 £1.10 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Window pouch £6.30 £6.30 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Area Knowledge Re-test £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Coaching session £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Coaching (missed appointment) £43.00 £43.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers Renewal (3 year licence) £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection   Drivers: Combined Renewal (3 year) £378.00 £378.00 £0.00 0.00% 
Public Protection R1427 Vehicles: Annual Fee £291.00 £291.00 £0.00 0.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 131



       
       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23         
       
Public Protection - Animal Licensing Fees         
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to nearest 
£) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
    Dog Breeding:         

Public 
Protection   Application Fee £290.00 £296.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year < 5 dogs £147.00 £150.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 5 - 10 dogs £152.00 £155.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 15 dogs £157.00 £160.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee  1 year > 15 dogs £162.00 £165.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year < 5 dogs £256.00 £261.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 5 - 10 dogs £261.00 £266.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 15 dogs £266.00 £271.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee  2 year > 15 dogs £271.00 £276.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year < 5 dogs £365.00 £372.00 £7.00 2.00% 

P
age 132



Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 5 - 10 dogs £370.00 £377.00 £7.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 15 dogs £375.00 £383.00 £8.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee  3 year > 15 dogs £380.00 £388.00 £8.00 2.00% 

              
    Boarding of cats and / or dogs:         

Public 
Protection   Application Fee £288.00 £294.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 years £142.00 £145.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 years £251.00 £256.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 years £317.00 £323.00 £6.00 2.00% 

              
    Selling Animals as Pets (Pet Shops):         

Public 
Protection   Application Fee £288.00 £294.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year £142.00 £145.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 years £251.00 £256.00 £5.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 years £360.00 £367.00 £7.00 2.00% 

              
    Hiring out Horses:         

Public 
Protection   Application Fee £392.00 £400.00 £8.00 2.00% 

P
age 133



Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year < 10 horses £147.00 £150.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 10 - 19 horses £152.00 £155.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year 20 - 29 horses £157.00 £160.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 1 year > 30 horses £162.00 £165.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year < 10 horses £318.00 £324.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 10 - 19 horses £323.00 £329.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year 20 - 29 horses £328.00 £335.00 £7.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 2 year > 30 horses £334.00 £341.00 £7.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year < 10 horses £490.00 £500.00 £10.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 10 - 19 horses £496.00 £506.00 £10.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year 20 - 29 horses £501.00 £511.00 £10.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee 3 year > 30 horses £506.00 £516.00 £10.00 2.00% 

              

    
Dangerous Wild Animals (2 year licence 
only):         

Public 
Protection   Application Fee Dwarf Caiman or Serval £288.00 £294.00 £6.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Application Fee Other animal Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 

P
age 134



Public 
Protection   

Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Dwarf Caiman or 
Serval £142.00 £145.00 £3.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee ( 2 year licence) Other animal Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 

              
    Zoo Licence:         

Public 
Protection   Application Fee Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 

Public 
Protection   Grant Fee Price on 

application 
Price on 

application n/a n/a 

              
    All Licenses:         

Public 
Protection   Variation Fee £47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Inspection of additional premises 

£52.00 per 
hour 

£52.00 per 
hour £1.00 2.00% 

Public 
Protection   Certified copy of licence £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 2.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 135



 

       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           
       
Registrars             
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
REGISTRARS R1375F Ceremonies: Confetti £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 2.00% 
REGISTRARS R1376F Plastic Wallets £0.80 £0.80 £0.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1388F 
Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App 
Ven: M-F £314.00 £320.00 £6.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1389F 
Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App 
Ven: Sat £336.00 £343.00 £7.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1390F 
Att At Partnership Ceremonies At App 
Ven: Sun/BH £385.00 £393.00 £8.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1382F 
Attendance At Weddings At Approved 
Venues: Sat £412.00 £420.00 £8.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1383F 
Attendance At Weddings At Approved 
Venues: Sun/BH £439.00 £448.00 £9.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1394F 
Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - 
App Ven: M-F £223.00 £227.00 £4.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1395F 
Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - 
App Ven: Sat £276.00 £282.00 £6.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1396F 
Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - 
App Ven: Sun/BH £314.00 £320.00 £6.00 2.00% 

P
age 136



REGISTRARS R1393F 
Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - 
Roche Ste: Sun/ £270.00 £275.00 £5.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1391F 
Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - 
Roche Suite: M- £152.00 £155.00 £3.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1392F 
Civil Naming and Renewal Of Vows - 
Roche Suite: Sa £201.00 £205.00 £4.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1385F 
Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees - 
Roche Ste: Sun/BH £240.00 £245.00 £5.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1384F 
Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Roche 
Suite: Sat £179.00 £183.00 £4.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1397F Name Deed - Adult £59.00 £60.00 £1.00 2.00% 
REGISTRARS R1398F Name Deed - Child £64.00 £65.00 £1.00 2.00% 
REGISTRARS R1408F Name Deed - Family Application £194.00 £198.00 £4.00 2.00% 
REGISTRARS R1399F Purchase Of Additional Name Deed £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1400F 
Licensing Of Venues Of Civil 
Ceremonies £1,332.00 £1,359.00 £27.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1367F 
Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees: Roche 
Suite (M-Th) £116.00 £118.00 £2.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1374F 
Ceremonies: Provisional Ceremony 
Booking Fee £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1401F 
Citizenship Ceremonies - Private 
Ceremonies: M-F £167.00 £170.00 £3.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1402F 
Citizenship Ceremonies - Private 
Ceremonies: Sat £248.00 £253.00 £5.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1403F 
Citizenship Ceremonies - Private 
Ceremonies: Sun £336.00 £343.00 £7.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1886 
Marriage / Civil Ceremony Fees : 
Roche Suite( Fri) £142.00 £145.00 £3.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1812 
Credit Card Fee (non-VATable 
Purchases) £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 2.00% 

REGISTRARS R1381F 
Attendance At Weddings At Approved 
Venues: Mon-Fri £388.00 £396.00 £8.00 2.00% 

P
age 137



 

       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           
       
Libraries           
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
LIBRARIES Various Item Request £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various 
Talking Books, Playaways & Learn a 
Language £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various Library Fine (overdue items per day) £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various 
Maximum Level Of Fine For Overdue 
Books £13.00 £13.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various 
Meeting Room - Priv Sect / Profit Making 
Groups £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various Computer Printouts (A4 B and W) £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 2.00% 
LIBRARIES Various Photocopying (A4 B+W) £0.30 £0.30 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various Play Sets / Music Sets £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various Microfilm prints £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various Replacement Membership Cards (Adult) £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various 
Replacement Membership Cards (Under 
17 / Over 60) £1.35 £1.35 £0.00 2.00% 

P
age 138



LIBRARIES Various Computer Printouts (A4 Colour) £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES   Local History Digital Photography prints £4.20 £4.20 £0.00 2.00% 
LIBRARIES   Local History Digital Photography prints £8.00 £8.00 £0.00 2.00% 
LIBRARIES   Local History Digital Photography prints £16.00 £16.00 £0.00 2.00% 
LIBRARIES Various A4 colour  £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES Various Lost or damaged Books £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES   A3 colour £1.20 £1.20 £0.00 2.00% 

LIBRARIES   A3 Black & White £0.40 £0.40 £0.00 2.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 139



 

       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           
       
Resources           
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 

FINANCE SERVICES R0107 
Charities Support Management 
Charge £46.00 £47.00 £1.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0090 
Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg – 
Current Year £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0091 
Confirmation Letter – Elect Reg - 
Historic £45.00 £46.00 £1.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0092 
Conf On Official Docs – to prove on 
Elect Reg £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0093 
Public Path Orders:- Within Gen 
Range + Adv Costs £1,569.00 £1,600.00 £31.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0094 Public Path Orders:- Additional Rates £169.00 £172.00 £3.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0095 
Street Closure:- Within A General 
Range £1,569.00 £1,600.00 £31.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0096 Street Closure:- Additional Rates £169.00 £172.00 £3.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0098F - a 
Local Land Charges Search:- Full 
Search CON29 £161.00 £161.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0098F - b Local Land Charges Search £21.00 £21.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0099F Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 
Enquiries numbered 4 to 21 £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 140



LEGAL & HR   Local Land Charges Search:- Part 2 
Enquiries number 22 common land £24.00 £24.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0100F 
Local Land Charges Search:- 
Additional Enquiries £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0101F 
Local Land Charges Search:- Extra 
Parcels Of Land £24.00 £24.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0103F 
Local Land Charges Search:- Copy 
Searches £26.00 £26.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR NEW 
Local Land Charges Search:- Extra 
Parcels Of Land - LLC1 £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR NEW 
Local Land Charges Search:- Personal 
Searches £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 0.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0113 
Sales Of Land And Property: Under 
£5,000 £954.00 £973.00 £19.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0114 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£5,001 - £10,000 £954.00 £973.00 £19.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0115 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£10,001 - £15,000 £954.00 £973.00 £19.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0116 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£15,001 - £20,000 £1,414.00 £1,442.00 £28.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0117 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£20,001 - £25,000 £1,414.00 £1,442.00 £28.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0118 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£25,001 - £30,000 £1,414.00 £1,442.00 £28.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0119 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£30,001 - £60,000 £1,752.00 £1,787.00 £35.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0120 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£60,001 - £100,000 £2,183.00 £2,227.00 £44.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0121 Sales Of Land And Property: 
£100,001 - £250,000 £2,858.00 £2,915.00 £57.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0122 
Sales Of Land And Property: Over 
£250,000 £3,473.00 £3,542.00 £69.00 2.00% 

P
age 141



LEGAL & HR R0123 Auctions 
4% or 
£2000 

min 

4% or 
£2000 

min 
n/a n/a 

LEGAL & HR R0124 Redemptions (One Per Charge) £228.00 £233.00 £5.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0125 Redemptions (Two Charges) £445.00 £454.00 £9.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0126 Mortgage Questionnaires £223.00 £227.00 £4.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0127 Deeds Of Postponement £785.00 £801.00 £16.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0128 
Title Questionnaires:- Up To 20 
Questions £151.00 £154.00 £3.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0129 
Title Questionnaires:- Above 20 
Questions £151.00 £154.00 £3.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0130 
Title Questionnaires:- Per Additional 
Question (>20) £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0132 Registration Fees:- Commercial £223.00 £227.00 £4.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0133 Registration Fees:- Private £118.00 £120.00 £2.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0134 Registration Fees:- Sealing Fee £80.00 £82.00 £2.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0135 
Registration Fees:- Copies For 
Solicitors £80.00 £82.00 £2.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0136 Shop Leases £2,081.00 £2,123.00 £42.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0137 
Licenses:- Community and Residential 
Commercial £764.00 £779.00 £15.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0138 Licenses:- License To Assign £1,089.00 £1,111.00 £22.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0139 
Licenses:- License To Sublet (Multiple 
Licenses) £1,089.00 £1,111.00 £22.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0140 Deeds Of Variation, Rectification etc. £785.00 £801.00 £16.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0141 Surrender £785.00 £801.00 £16.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0142 Deeds Of Easement:- Residential £785.00 £801.00 £16.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0143 Deeds Of Easement:- Commercial £1,569.00 £1,600.00 £31.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0144 Agreements To Adopt Highways £1,821.00 £1,857.00 £36.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0145 
Section 106 Agreements (Planning 
Agreements) £1,569.00 £1,600.00 £31.00 2.00% 

P
age 142



LEGAL & HR R0146 
Section 278 Agreements (Highway 
Works) £1,569.00 £1,600.00 £31.00 2.00% 

LEGAL & HR R0147 Building Agreements £2,081.00 £2,123.00 £42.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0148 Leases/Premiums – Residential £2,081.00 £2,123.00 £42.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR R0149 Industrial Leases - £2,081.00 £2,123.00 £42.00 2.00% 

COMMERCIAL R0110 Copies Of Documents 
£1.15 

(min £25) 
£1.15 

(min £25) £0.00 2.00% 

COMMERCIAL R0111 
Charities Admin – Committee Services 
Meeting £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.00% 

COMMERCIAL R1882 Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR   Loan/Facility Agreements £2,081.00 £2,123.00 £42.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR   Temporary Public Path Orders £832.00 £849.00 £17.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR   Commercial Leases £2,081.00 £2,123.00 £42.00 2.00% 
LEGAL & HR   Community Leases £1,040.00 £1,061.00 £21.00 2.00% 

FINANCE SERVICES R0410 Liability Order - Council Tax £101.50 £101.50 £0.00 0.00% 
FINANCE SERVICES R0411 Liability Order - NNDR £123.50 £123.50 £0.00 0.00% 

No increase proposed             

FINANCE SERVICES R0507 Charges for Blue Badge £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 143



       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           
       
Highways             
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest £) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
HIGHWAYS R0838 Parking Dispensations £43.00 £44.00 £1.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0839 
Parking Suspensions: Pay & Display 
Bays £33.00 £34.00 £1.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0840 
Parking Suspensions: Limited Waiting 
Bays/Disabled Bays/Loading 
Bays/Taxi Ranks 

£33.00 £34.00 £1.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0618 Extension Of S.38 Agreement £1,041.00 £1,062.00 £21.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0619 
S.278/S.106 Agreement Where Built 
By RMBC £1,850.00 £1,887.00 £37.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0626 

Where Built By Developer, Value Of 
Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 
£45,000 £4,691.00 £4,785.00 £94.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0627 

Where Built By Developer, Value Of 
Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 
£20,000 £3,481.00 £3,551.00 £70.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0628 

Where Built By Developer, Value Of 
Works Assessed By RMBC: Up To 
£10,000 £2,193.00 £2,237.00 £44.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0629 

Re-Submission Of Plans To Check 
Compliance With Specification And 
Design £132.00 £135.00 £3.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0630 Highway Records Information £95.00 £97.00 £2.00 2.00% 

P
age 144



HIGHWAYS R0634 
Placement Of Skips On The Highway: 
Registration Of Firm & Vetting £438.00 £447.00 £9.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0635 

Placement Of Skips On The Highway: 
One-Off Permit For Non-Registered 
Firm £119.00 £121.00 £2.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0636 
Placement Of Skips On The Highway: 
Removal Of Skip £353.00 £360.00 £7.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0637 
Licence For Placement Of Scaffold 
Over Highway £139.00 £142.00 £3.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0638 
Licence For Placement Of Hoardings, 
Cranes & MEWP's On The Highway £139.00 £142.00 £3.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0639 Vehicular Crossings: Domestic £116.00 £118.00 £2.00 2.00% 
HIGHWAYS R0640 Vehicular Crossings: Industrial £176.00 £180.00 £4.00 2.00% 
HIGHWAYS R0641 Accident Debris Removal £193.00 £197.00 £4.00 2.00% 
HIGHWAYS R0642 Recoverable Works: Admin Fees £123.00 £125.00 £2.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0650 
Street Café License’s: Annual 
License – permanent fittings £541.00 £552.00 £11.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Erection of tourist signs on the 
highway £270.00 £275.00 £5.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Erection of new housing site signs in 
the highway £270.00 £275.00 £5.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS   

Road closures for commercial events 
on the highway using RTRA section 
16A. £569.00 £580.00 £11.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Supply of copies of Traffic Orders 
(excludes requests from GMP) £170.00 £173.00 £3.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0650 
Street Café License’s: Annual 
License £497.00 £507.00 £10.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0652 
Street Café License’s: Annual 
Renewal Of License £156.00 £159.00 £3.00 2.00% 

P
age 145



HIGHWAYS R0853 

Home Watch Sign Consents 
(approval to place sign on the 
highway only) £50.00 £51.00 £1.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0854 

Application For Privately Funded 
Temporary Direction Signs (Housing 
Dev't Signs) £143.00 £146.00 £3.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0855 
Advance Direction Signs: Non 
Commercial (per sign face) £307.00 £313.00 £6.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0856 
Advance Direction Signs: Commercial 
(per sign face) £511.00 £521.00 £10.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0614 Sponsored Boundary Signs Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 
HIGHWAYS R0615 Sponsored Roundabout Signs Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0616 
S38/S278 & S228 Agreements 
(Highways) Value Of Works 
Assessed By RMBC: Over £1.5M 

5% 5% n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0617 
S38/S278 & S228 Agreements 
(Highways) Value Of Works 
Assessed By RMBC: Over £100,000 

6% 6% n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0620 
Design And Supervision For Works 
Up To: £100,000 18% 18% n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0621 
Design And Supervision For Works 
Up To: £150,000 15% 15% n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0624 

Where Built By Developer, Value Of 
Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 
£100,000 5% 5% n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0625 

Where Built By Developer, Value Of 
Works Assessed By RMBC: Over 
£45,000 6% 6% n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0632 Use Of Planning-Provide And Layout         

HIGHWAYS R0633 
Bollards To Prevent Access (Non-
Highway) Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

P
age 146



HIGHWAYS R0643 

S38/S278 & S228 Agreements 
(Highways) Value Of Works 
Assessed By RMBC: Up To £100,000 Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0645 
Traffic Regulation Orders: 
Permanent/Experimental Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0648 
Traffic Regulation Orders: Permanent 
Road Closures Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0649 Road Marking Requests Negotiable Negotiable n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS   Production of Traffic management 
Plan for events or roadworks 

At cost 
(min £500) 

At cost 
(min £500) n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS   
Design and provision of road signage, 
barriers, etc. to facilitate an event or 
roadworks. 

At cost 
(min £500) 

At cost 
(min £500) n/a n/a 

HIGHWAYS R0836 Parking Permits: Residents £53.00 £54.00 £1.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0849 
Parking Permits: Replacement for lost 
permit £28.00 £29.00 £1.00 2.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0646 
Traffic Regulation Orders: 
Temporary/Emergency £967.00 £986.00 £19.00 2.00% 

No increase proposed             

HIGHWAYS R0647 

Traffic Regulation Orders: Temporary 
Carnivals, Fetes & Similar Events I.E. 
Charity Or Non-Commercial/Non-
Profit Making 

£200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0653 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 1 £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0654 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 2 £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0655 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 3 £111.00 £111.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 147



HIGHWAYS R0656 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 4 £148.00 £148.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0657 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 5 £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0658 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 6 £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0659 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 7 £259.00 £259.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0660 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 8 £296.00 £296.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0661 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 9 £333.00 £333.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0662 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 10 £370.00 £370.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0663 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 11 £407.00 £407.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0664 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 12 £444.00 £444.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0665 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 1 £44.00 £44.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 148



HIGHWAYS R0666 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 2 £88.00 £88.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0667 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 3 £132.00 £132.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0668 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 4 £176.00 £176.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0669 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 5 £220.00 £220.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0670 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 6 £264.00 £264.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0671 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 7 £308.00 £308.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0672 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 8 £352.00 £352.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0673 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 9 £396.00 £396.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0674 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 10 £440.00 £440.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0675 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 11 £484.00 £484.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 149



HIGHWAYS R0676 

Five Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 12 £528.00 £528.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0677 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 1 £41.00 £41.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0678 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 2 £82.00 £82.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0679 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 3 £123.00 £123.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0680 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 4 £164.00 £164.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0681 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 5 £205.00 £205.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0682 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 6 £246.00 £246.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0683 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 7 £287.00 £287.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0684 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 8 £328.00 £328.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0685 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 9 £369.00 £369.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 150



HIGHWAYS R0686 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 10 £410.00 £410.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0687 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 11 £451.00 £451.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0688 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 1 - 
Month 12 £492.00 £492.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0689 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 1 £48.00 £48.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0690 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 2 £96.00 £96.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0691 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 3 £144.00 £144.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0692 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 4 £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0693 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 5 £240.00 £240.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0694 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 6 £288.00 £288.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0695 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 7 £336.00 £336.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 151



HIGHWAYS R0696 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 8 £384.00 £384.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0697 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 9 £432.00 £432.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0698 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 10 £480.00 £480.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0699 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 11 £528.00 £528.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0700 

Six Day Car Park Pass - The 
Holme/Leisure Centre Class 2 - 
Month 12 £576.00 £576.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0701 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 1 £25.00 £25.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0702 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 2 £50.00 £50.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0703 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 3 £75.00 £75.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0704 
Five Day Car Park Passes-  
Middleton Class 1 - Month 4 £100.00 £100.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0705 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 5 £125.00 £125.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0706 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 6 £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0707 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 7 £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0708 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 8 £200.00 £200.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 152



HIGHWAYS R0709 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 9 £225.00 £225.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0710 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 10 £250.00 £250.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0711 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 11 £275.00 £275.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0712 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 1 - Month 12 £300.00 £300.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0713 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 1 £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0714 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 2 £64.00 £64.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0715 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 3 £96.00 £96.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0716 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 4 £128.00 £128.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0717 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 5 £160.00 £160.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0718 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 6 £192.00 £192.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0719 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 7 £224.00 £224.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0720 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 8 £256.00 £256.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0721 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 9 £288.00 £288.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0722 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 10 £320.00 £320.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0723 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 11 £352.00 £352.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0724 
Five Day Car Park Passes - 
Middleton Class 2 - Month 12 £384.00 £384.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 153



HIGHWAYS R0725 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 1 £28.00 £28.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0726 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 2 £56.00 £56.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0727 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 3 £84.00 £84.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0728 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 4 £112.00 £112.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0729 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 5 £140.00 £140.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0730 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 6 £168.00 £168.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0731 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 7 £196.00 £196.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0732 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 – Month 8 £224.00 £224.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0733 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 – Month 9 £252.00 £252.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0734 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 – Month 10 £280.00 £280.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0735 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 11 £308.00 £308.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0736 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 1 - Month 12 £336.00 £336.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0737 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 1 £35.00 £35.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0738 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 2 £70.00 £70.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0739 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 3 £105.00 £105.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0740 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 4 £140.00 £140.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 154



HIGHWAYS R0741 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 5 £175.00 £175.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0742 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 6 £210.00 £210.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0743 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 7 £245.00 £245.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0744 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 8 £280.00 £280.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0745 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 9 £315.00 £315.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0746 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 10 £350.00 £350.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0747 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 11 £385.00 £385.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0748 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Middleton 
Class 2 - Month 12 £420.00 £420.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0749 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 1 £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0750 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 2 £60.00 £60.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0751 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 3 £90.00 £90.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0752 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 4 £120.00 £120.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0753 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 5 £150.00 £150.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0754 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 6 £180.00 £180.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0755 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 7 £210.00 £210.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0756 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 8 £240.00 £240.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 155



HIGHWAYS R0757 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 9 £270.00 £270.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0758 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 10 £300.00 £300.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0759 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 11 £330.00 £330.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0760 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 12 £360.00 £360.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0761 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 1 £37.00 £37.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0762 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 2 £74.00 £74.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0763 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 3 £111.00 £111.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0764 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 4 £148.00 £148.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0765 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 5 £185.00 £185.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0766 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 6 £222.00 £222.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0767 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 7 £259.00 £259.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0768 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 8 £296.00 £296.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0769 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 9 £333.00 £333.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0770 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 10 £370.00 £370.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0771 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 11 £407.00 £407.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0772 
Five Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 12 £444.00 £444.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 156



HIGHWAYS R0773 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 1 £34.00 £34.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0774 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 2 £68.00 £68.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0775 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 3 £102.00 £102.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0776 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 4 £136.00 £136.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0777 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 5 £170.00 £170.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0778 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 6 £204.00 £204.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0779 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 7 £238.00 £238.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0780 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 8 £272.00 £272.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0781 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 9 £306.00 £306.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0782 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 10 £340.00 £340.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0783 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 11 £374.00 £374.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0784 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 1 - Month 12 £408.00 £408.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0785 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 1 £41.00 £41.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0786 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 2 £82.00 £82.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0787 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 3 £123.00 £123.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0788 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 4 £164.00 £164.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 157



HIGHWAYS R0789 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 5 £205.00 £205.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0790 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 6 £246.00 £246.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0791 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 7 £287.00 £287.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0792 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 8 £328.00 £328.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0793 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 9 £369.00 £369.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0794 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 10 £410.00 £410.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0795 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 11 £451.00 £451.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0796 
Six Day Car Park Passes - Rochdale 
Others Class 2 - Month 12 £492.00 £492.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0797 
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 1 £71.00 £71.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0798 
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 2 £142.00 £142.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0799 
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 3 £213.00 £213.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 4 £284.00 £284.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 5 £355.00 £355.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0800 
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 6 £426.00 £426.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 7 £497.00 £497.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 8 £568.00 £568.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 158



HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 9 £639.00 £639.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 10 £710.00 £710.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS   
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 11 £781.00 £781.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0801 
Car Park Passes Premium Pass - 
Month 12 £852.00 £852.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0805 
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 
hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0806 
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 
hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0807 
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 
hr £1.60 £1.60 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0808 
On Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 
6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0809 
Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 3 - 4 
hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0810 
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: 4 - 5 
hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0811 
Off Street long Stay Rochdale: 5 - 6 
hr £1.60 £1.60 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0817 
Off Street Long Stay Rochdale: Over 
6 hr £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 

HIGHWAYS R0830 Middleton Short Stay 3 - 4 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 
HIGHWAYS R0831 Middleton Short Stay 4 - 5 hr £1.30 £1.30 £0.00 0.00% 
HIGHWAYS R0832 Middleton Short Stay 5 - 6 hr £1.60 £1.60 £0.00 0.00% 
HIGHWAYS R0828 Middleton Long Stay - Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 
HIGHWAYS NEW Hollingworth Lake 0 - 2 hr £1.00 £1.00 £0.00 0.00% 
HIGHWAYS NEW Hollingworth Lake 2 - 4 hr £2.00 £2.00 £0.00 0.00% 
HIGHWAYS NEW Hollingworth Lake 4 - 6 hr £3.00 £3.00 £0.00 0.00% 

P
age 159



HIGHWAYS NEW Hollingworth Lake - Over 6 hrs £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 160



       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23         
       
Planning & Estates           
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 
Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to nearest 
£) 

Increase 
(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 

ESTATES   
Annual licence fees for garden 
tenancies - current income 
receivable £80,000 per annum 

Variable 
depending 

upon the size 
of the plot 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 
n/a n/a 

ESTATES   
Average annual licence fees for 
garage plots current income 
receivable £64,000 per annum 

Variable 
depending 

upon the size 
of the plot 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 
n/a n/a 

ESTATES   
Annual licence fees for grazing 
licences - total income expected in 
2017/18 = £29,000 per annum 

Variable 
depending 

upon the size 
of the plot 

3% or RPI 
whichever is 

greater 
n/a n/a 

ESTATES   
Minimum fee for granting landlord 
consent to the Council's tenants - 
increase to £250. 

£266.00 £275.00 £9.00 3.38% 

ESTATES   
Increase non-returnable reservation 
fee for off-market disposals from 
£100 to £200 

£213.00 £217.00 £4.00 1.88% 

ESTATES   
Introduction of a minimum 
surveyor's fee of £500 charged on 
any disposal 

£531.00 £542.00 £11.00 2.07% 

P
age 161



PLANNING   Pre application consultancy charge - 
Assistant Director (hourly rate)  £80.00 £82.00 £2.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   Pre application Consultancy charge 
- Chief Planning Officer (hourly rate) £54.00 £55.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   
Pre application consultancy charge - 
Development Manager (Grade 10) 
(hourly rate) 

£48.00 £49.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   
Pre application consultancy charge - 
Assistant Development Manager 
(Grade 9) (hourly rate) 

£43.00 £44.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   
Pre application consultancy charge - 
Senior Planning Officer (Grade 8) 
(hourly rate) 

£41.00 £42.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   
Pre application consultancy charge - 
Planning Officer (Grade 7) (hourly 
rate) 

£34.00 £35.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   
Pre application consultancy charge - 
Assistant Planning Officer (Grade 5) 
(hourly rate) 

£23.00 £23.00 £0.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1357 Tree Preservation Order Notice 
(Copy) £37.00 £38.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1358 

Printed Copy Of Scanned Planning 
Application (Up To 10 Documents) - 
Excluding Large Format Plans (Over 
A4 Size) 

£35.00 £36.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1359 Copy Of Large Application Plans 
(Over A4 Size) £9.00 £10.00 £1.00 11.11% 

PLANNING R1360 
Photocopies Of Correspondence 
And Other Papers On Planning 
Application Files, Up To A4 Size 

£0.30 £0.35 £0.05 16.67% 

PLANNING R1361 Township Green Infrastructure 
Plans £28.00 £29.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 162



PLANNING R1362 Public Art Strategy £14.00 £14.00 £0.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1363 Strategic Housing Land Availability 
Assessment Site Plans >10 £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1364 Employment Land Study £147.00 £150.00 £3.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1284 LDF Core Strategy - Publication 
2016 £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1285 LDF Background Paper 2010 £25.00 £26.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1286 LDF Report On Consultation On 
Preferred Options £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1287 LDF Statement Of Community 
Involvement £15.00 £15.00 £0.00 2.00% 

PLANNING R1288 LDF Core Strategy Preferred 
Options Report £20.00 £20.00 £0.00 2.00% 

PLANNING NEW S106 monitoring fee – financial 
obligations N/A 2% (capped 

at £10,000) N/A N/A 

PLANNING NEW S106 monitoring fee – non-financial 
obligations N/A 

£1,000 (per 
non-financial 

obligation) 
N/A N/A 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1094 

Building Regulation Decision Notice 
Enquiry (Including Copy Of Any 
Notice) 

£47.00 £48.00 £1.00 2.13% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1095 

Building Completion 
Notice/Certificate Enquiry (Including 
Copy Of Any Notice) 

£63.00 £64.00 £1.00 2.00% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1096 Site History Search: Minimum 

Charge (Up To First Hour) £81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1097 Site History Search: Each 

Subsequent Hour Or Part Thereof £81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

P
age 163



BUILDING 
CONTROL R1102 

Provision Of Late Completion 
Inspections & Issue Of Completion 
Certificates 

£193.00 £197.00 £4.00 2.07% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1103 Administration Fee For Building 

Control Fee Refunds £68.00 £68.00 £0.00 0.00% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1104 

Administration Charges To Building 
Owners For Inspection/Specification 
For Securing Buildings Open To 
Access/Dilapidated 

£156.00 £159.00 £3.00 1.92% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL R1105 Section 80/81 Notices £188.00 £192.00 £4.00 2.13% 

PLANNING   

Planning Performance Agreements 
(to cover large scale, complex or 
strategic proposals where a 
bespoke fee is necessary to cover 
the work of the service) 

Bespoke Fee Bespoke Fee n/a n/a 

PLANNING   

Pre application advice - Large Scale 
Major Development - 10,000m2 of 
commercial floor space / 100 plus 
homes / major infrastructure 
projects (roads and utilities) / sites 
bigger than 2 hectares / energy 
projects (Case Officer Meeting and 
written advice) 

£3,900.00 £3,978.00 £78.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   

Pre application advice - Major 
Development - 50-99 homes / 
5,000m2 - 9,999m2 commercial 
floor space / 1000m2 - 1999m2 
retail floor space / 1.5 - 1.99 hectare 
site (Case Officer Meeting and 
Written Advice) 

£3,000.00 £3,060.00 £60.00 2.00% 

P
age 164



PLANNING   

Pre application advice - Major 
Development - 1000m2 - 4999m2 
commercial floor space / up to 
500m2-999m2 retail floor space / 20 
- 49 homes / Site area between 1 
and 1.49 hectares (Case Officer 
Meeting and written advice 

£2,400.00 £2,448.00 £48.00 2.00% 

PLANNING NEW 

Pre application advice - Major 
Development of between 10 and 19 
residential units/Between 1,000 and 
4,999 square metres of floor space/ 
Between 100 and 499 square 
metres of net retail floor space 
(Case Officer Meeting and written 
advice) 

£1,900.00 £1,938.00 £38.00 2.00% 

PLANNING NEW 

Pre application advice -Minor 
Development of between 5 and 9 
residential units/ Between 100 and 
999 square metres of floor space/ 
Between 50 and 99 square metres 
of retail net floor space/ Section 73 
relevant to this category/ Public 
realm and engineering work/Site 
area between 0.5 and 0.99 
hectares/ Single wind turbine  

£1,000.00 £1,020.00 £20.00 2.00% 

PLANNING NEW 

Pre application advice - 2 and 4 
Dwellings / small commercial 
changes of use /Between 50 and 99 
square metres of floor space/ Up to 
49 square metres of net retail floor 
space/ Telecommunications 
developments/ Site area up to 0.49 

£550.00 £561.00 £11.00 2.00% 

P
age 165



hectares/ (Case Officer Meeting and 
Written Advice) 

PLANNING NEW 

Pre application advice -Minor 
changes of use/construction of 1 
dwelling / For 1 residential dwelling/ 
Up to 50 square metres of floor 
space. 

£295.00 £301.00 £6.00 2.03% 

PLANNING   
Pre application advice - Written 
advice only for householder 
extensions or alterations 

£95.00 £97.00 £2.00 2.11% 

PLANNING   

Charge to cover Officer time to visit 
property and provide written advice 
on works to fell/prune protected or 
dangerous trees 

£125.00 £128.00 £3.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   

Fee to cover works incurred in 
processing requests to modify terms 
of an existing S106 agreement 
following a grant of planning 
permission  

£1,251.00 £1,276.00 £25.00 2.00% 

P
age 166



PLANNING   

Requests for a more bespoke pre 
application service, including 
meetings with more senior officers 
or officers from other services (e.g. 
the Local Highway Authority), or 
where a quicker response is 
required, for example, to meet a bid 
or funding deadline, will be subject 
to a bespoke charge to cover the 
work of the service. 

Bespoke Fee Bespoke Fee n/a n/a 

PLANNING   

Pre application advice - Large Scale 
Major Development - 10,000m2 of 
commercial floor space / 50 plus 
homes / major infrastructure 
projects (roads and utilities) / sites 
bigger than 1.5 hectares / energy 
projects  (Written advice only)  

£1,561.00 £1,592.00 £31.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   

Pre application advice – Major 
development proposals of 100 + 
dwellings / floor space of 10,000m2 
+ / 2000m2 + net retail floor space / 
major infrastructure projects (roads 
and utilities) / site area over 2 
hectares / energy projects   (Charge 
for follow up meeting with Case 
Officer)  

£1,950.00 £1,989.00 £39.00 2.00% 

P
age 167



PLANNING NEW 

Pre application advice- Major 
development 
Development of between 50 and 99 
residential units/Between 5,000 and 
9,999 square metres of floor 
space/Between 1,000 and 1,999 
square metres of net retail floor 
space/Site area between 1.5 and 
1.99 hectares (Charge for follow up 
meeting with Case Officer)  

£1,500.00 £1,530.00 £30.00 2.00% 

PLANNING    

Pre application advice - Major 
Development - 20 - 49 homes / floor 
space of 1,000m2 - 4,999m2 / 
500m2- 999m2 net retail floor space 
/site area  of 1 - 1.49 hectares  
(Written advice only) 

£1,040.00 £1,061.00 £21.00 2.00% 

PLANNING    

Pre application advice - Major 
Development - 20 - 49 homes / floor 
space of 1,000m2 - 4,999m2 / 
500m2- 999m2 net retail floor space 
/site area  of 1 - 1.49 hectares  
(Charge for follow - up meeting with 
Case Officer) 

£1,200.00 £1,224.00 £24.00 2.00% 

PLANNING  NEW 

Pre application advice-Major 
development 
Development of between 10 and 19 
residential units/Between 1,000 and 
4,999 square metres of floor 
space/Between 100 and 499 square 
metres of net retail floor space 
(Charge for follow - up meeting with 
Case Officer) 

£950.00 £969.00 £19.00 2.00% 

P
age 168



PLANNING   

Pre application advice - Minor 
Development - 100m2 - 999m2 
commercial floor space / up to 
100m2 retail floor space / 5 - 9 
homes / telecommunications 
development / Section 73 variation 
of conditions relevant to this 
category / change of use (excluding 
retail) / public realm and engineering 
work / minerals, waste and energy 
projects / wind turbine / telecoms 
(Written Advice only) 

£416.00 £424.00 £8.00 2.00% 

PLANNING NEW 

Pre application advice - Minor 
Development proposals of 5 - 9 
dwellings / floor space of 100- 
999m2 / 50- 99m2 net retail floor 
space / Section 73 relevant to this 
category / change of use / public 
realm and engineering work / site 
area up to 0.5-99ha / single wind 
turbine  (Charge for follow up 
meeting with Case Officer) 

£500.00 £510.00 £10.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   

Pre application advice - Minor 
Development -  2-4 dwellings / floor 
space of 50- 99m2 / up to 49m2 net 
retail floor space / site area up to 
0.49ha / telecommunications 
development (Charge for follow up 
meeting with Case Officer) 

£275.00 £281.00 £6.00 2.00% 

P
age 169



PLANNING   

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling 
/small commercial changes of use 
or alterations e.g. up to 50m2 
(Written advice only) 

£295.00 £301.00 £6.00 2.03% 

PLANNING   

Pre application advice - 1 dwelling / 
small commercial changes of use or 
alterations e.g. up to 50m2 (Charge 
for Follow up meeting with Case 
Officer) 

£147.00 £150.00 £3.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   

Pre application enquiry to vary / 
modify / discharge legal agreement 
for residential / commercial 
development (Meeting with Case 
Officer and written advice) 

£520.00 £530.00 £10.00 2.00% 

PLANNING   

Pre application enquiry to vary / 
modify/ discharge legal agreement 
for residential development (single 
plot) Meeting with Case Officer and 
written advice 

£312.00 £318.00 £6.00 2.00% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Copies of correspondence 
(excluding Decision 
Notice/Completion Certificates) 

£12.50 up to 
10 A4 sides if 
over 10 then 

40p per A4 
side 

£12.50 up to 
10 A4 sides if 
over 10 then 

40p per A4 
side 

n/a n/a 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Provision of certificate/written 
confirmation of exemption from the 
provisions of Building 
Regulations(PER HOUR) 

£81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Site inspection and written report 
relating to structures exempt from 
the building regulations (PER 
HOUR) 

£81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

P
age 170



BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Registering a change of 
agent/applicant/change of main 
contractor when work has 
commenced on site 

£81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Provision of pre-submission 
consultancy advice and research for 
technical information relating to an 
existing building e.g. foundation 
detail(PER HOUR) 

£81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   Pre-submission site visits (COST 

PER VISIT) £81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

To provide a letter relating to the 
building regulations for work which 
is not covered by a valid building 
regulation application (PER HOUR) 

£81.00 £83.00 £2.00 2.47% 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   Dangerous building Call Out 

(contractor cost <£300) 

40% of cost 
(min £75.00) 

+ £230.00 
out of hours 

charge) 

40% of cost 
(min £75.00) 

+ £230.00 
out of hours 

charge) 

n/a n/a 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Dangerous building Call Out 
(contractor cost Between £301 - 
£1500) 

20% of cost 
(min 

£120.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

20% of cost 
(min 

£120.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Dangerous building Call Out 
(contractor cost Between £1501 - 
£5000) 

15% of cost 
(min 

£300.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

15% of cost 
(min 

£300.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

P
age 171



BUILDING 
CONTROL   

Dangerous building Call Out 
(contractor cost Between £5001 - 
£10000) 

10% of cost 
(min 

£700.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

10% of cost 
(min 

£700.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

BUILDING 
CONTROL   Dangerous building Call Out 

(contractor cost over £10000) 

5% of cost 
(min 

£1500.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

5% of cost 
(min 

£1500.00) + 
£230.00 out 

of hours 
charge) 

n/a n/a 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 172



       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23         
       
Facilities Management           
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 
FM   Ogden Room Hire - Evening £61.00 £62.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Ogden Room Hire - Saturday £77.00 £79.00 £2.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Day £55.00 £56.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Evening £66.00 £67.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Saturday £83.00 £85.00 £2.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Saturday £132.00 £135.00 £3.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Sunday £145.00 £148.00 £3.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B & C - Day £115.00 £117.00 £2.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B & C - Evening £138.00 £141.00 £3.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B & C - Saturday £173.00 £176.00 £3.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B & C - Sunday £190.00 £194.00 £4.00 2.00% 
FM   Greenbooth A - Day £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Greenbooth A - Evening £49.00 £50.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Greenbooth B - Day £56.00 £57.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Greenbooth B - Evening £66.00 £67.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Roch - Day £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Roch - Evening £49.00 £50.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Watergrove - Day £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Watergrove - Evening £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Piethorne - Day £29.00 £30.00 £1.00 2.00% 

P
age 173



FM   Piethorne - Evening £39.00 £40.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Beal - Day £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 2.00% 
FM   Beal - Evening £34.00 £35.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Irk - Day £22.00 £22.00 £0.00 2.00% 
FM   Irk - Evening £34.00 £35.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Ogden Room Hire - Day £49.00 £50.00 £1.00 2.00% 
FM   Ogden Room Hire - Sunday £86.00 £88.00 £2.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A or B or C Room Hire - Sunday £91.00 £93.00 £2.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Day £88.00 £90.00 £2.00 2.00% 
FM   Hollingworth A & B or B & C - Evening £105.00 £107.00 £2.00 2.00% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           

P
age 174



       
Adult Care             

       
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 

ADULT CARE   

Appointeeship fee – non-
residential care (annual fee) 
Where available resources less 
than £5,000 

£612.00 £643.00 £31.00 5.00% 

ADULT CARE   

Appointeeship fee – non-
residential care (annual fee) 
Where available resources 
between £5,000 and £10,000 

£660.00 £693.00 £33.00 5.00% 

ADULT CARE   

Appointeeship fee – non-
residential care (annual fee) 
Where available resources 
over £10,000 

£721.00 £757.00 £36.00 5.00% 

ADULT CARE   

Appointeeship fee – residential 
care (annual fee) Where 
available resources less than 
£5,000 

£320.00 £336.00 £16.00 5.00% 

ADULT CARE   

Appointeeship fee – residential 
care (annual fee) Where 
available resources between 
£5,000 and £10,000 

£344.00 £361.00 £17.00 5.00% 

ADULT CARE   Appointeeship fee – residential 
care (annual fee) Where £375.00 £394.00 £19.00 5.00% 

P
age 175



available resources over 
£10,000 

ADULT CARE   
Court of Protection Deputy 
fees - annual management fee 
first year  

£657.00 £675.00 £18.00 2.74% 

ADULT CARE   
Court of Protection Deputy 
fees - annual management fee 
subsequent years  

£597.00 £650.00 £53.00 8.88% 

ADULT CARE   
Court of Protection Deputy 
fees - where net assets are 
below £16k  

3.5% of net assets  3.5% of 
net assets  £0.00 n/a 

ADULT CARE   
Court of Protection Deputy 
fees - annual property 
management fee  

£275.00 £300.00 £25.00 9.09% 

ADULT CARE   

Court of Protection Deputy 
fees - preparation and 
lodgement of annual account 
or report  

£195.00 £216.00 £21.00 10.77% 

ADULT CARE   

Court of Protection Deputy 
fees - work up to the court 
order  £728.00 £745.00 £17.00 2.34% 

ADULT CARE   
* NEW* Court of Protection 
Deputy fees - preparation of a 
Basic HMRC income tax return  

n/a £70.00 n/a n/a 

ADULT CARE   

* NEW* Court of Protection 
Deputy fees - preparation of a 
Complex HMRC income tax 
return  

n/a £140.00 n/a n/a 

ADULT CARE   
Deferred Payment Admin Fee 
(new scheme) £612.00 £653.00 £41.00 6.70% 

ADULT CARE   Transport (per journey) £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 2.38% 

P
age 176



ADULT CARE   Deferred Payment Interest 
Rate (old scheme) 

3.06% to 6.12% 
depending on age 

of debt. 

3.06% to 
6.12% 

depending 
on age of 

debt. 

n/a n/a 

ADULT CARE   
Full Cost Admin Fee for 
Managed Budgets £12.00 £12.50 £0.50 4.17% 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       
Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23           

P
age 177



       
Children's Services             
       
       

Sub-Area Ref Desc 

Current 
Charge 
2021/22 

(£) 

Proposed 
Charge 
2022/23 

(to 
nearest 

£) 
Increase 

(£) 

Proposed 
% 

Increase 

YOUTH SERVICE R0075 
Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or 
Silver – Other organisations £23.00 £23.00 £0.00 2.00% 

YOUTH SERVICE R0076 
Duke of Edinburgh Award – Bronze or 
Silver – Schools £23.00 £23.00 £0.00 2.00% 

YOUTH SERVICE R0077 
Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – Other 
organisations £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 2.00% 

YOUTH SERVICE R0078 
Duke of Edinburgh Award – Gold – 
Schools £31.00 £32.00 £1.00 2.00% 

ROCH & OLD SUPPLY 
AGENCY R0054 Supply Teacher DBS £54.00 £55.00 £1.00 2.00% 

ROCH & OLD SUPPLY 
AGENCY R0055 Supply Teacher ID £4.00 £4.00 £0.00 2.00% 

CHILDRENS CENTRES R1807 Room Hire £27.00 £28.00 £1.00 2.00% 
SURESTART R0064 CPD/Welfare Training Autumn £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 2.00% 
SURESTART R0065 CPD/Welfare Training non attendance £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 2.00% 
SURESTART R0066 CPD/Welfare Training Spring £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 2.00% 

SURESTART R0067 
 
CPD/Welfare Training Summer £19.00 £19.00 £0.00 2.00% 

SURESTART R1674 
 
Childminder pre-registration Training £14.00 £14.00 £0.00 2.00% 

No increase proposed             

P
age 178



MUSIC SERVICE R0045 
Music Service Termly membership – 
Individual £30.00 £30.00 £0.00 0.00% 

MUSIC SERVICE R0046 
Music Service Termly membership – 
Family £50.00 £50.00 £0.00 0.00% 

MUSIC SERVICE R0047 15 minute lesson £8.00 £8.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE R0048 20 minute lesson £10.60 £10.60 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE R0049 30 minute lesson £16.00 £16.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE R0043 60 minute lesson £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE R1866 Music Festival entry – Individual £5.00 £5.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE   Music Festival entry – duets/trios £6.00 £6.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE R1867 Music Festival entry – large ensemble £10.00 £10.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE   Exam accompaniment £32.00 £32.00 £0.00 0.00% 
MUSIC SERVICE R0037 Ticket sales variable variable n/a n/a 

P
age 179



Agenda 
Item 

 

 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 23rd November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Finance and Corporate 
Report Author Julie Murphy 

 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

 

Revenue Budget Update 2022/23 to 2024/25  

 
Executive Summary 

 
1. 
 
2. 
 

To provide an update on the Revenue Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25.  
 
To provide an update on the Council’s Medium Term Financial Strategy.  
 

Recommendation 
 
2.1 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 

Cabinet consider and note the updated Revenue Budget position 2022/23 to 
2024/25. 
 
Cabinet consider and note the update on the Council’s Medium Term 
Financial Strategy. 
 
Cabinet note that the 2021 Spending Review announcement allows for a 
further 1% increase in Council Tax by way of an Adult Social Care Precept 
for 2022/23, which has been included in the latest budget estimate. 
 
 

Reason for Recommendation 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 

Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2022/23 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2023/24 to 2024/25. The 
Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2022/23 by 11th March 2022.  
 
The Revenue Budget and Medium Term Financial Strategy are key elements 
of the budget setting process.  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 180

Agenda Item 10



Key Points for Consideration 
 
4.1 
 
4.1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.1.3 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.4 
 

Timetable 
 

The Council’s budget must be approved by full Council before 11th March 
each year; this is a statutory requirement. The process begins in July 
with approval being sought for the assumptions and principles on which 
the budget is to be based. These are used as a part of the determination 
of the overall budget position. The budget timetable is detailed in 
Appendix 1. 

 
Financial projections are updated as further information becomes 
available in relation to the Local Government Finance Settlement and 
other known changes, including local decisions. The updated budget 
and feedback from consultations will be reported to Cabinet 10th 
February 2022 with recommendations for Budget Council 23rd February 
2022, who in turn set the budget. 

 
Services are notified of their final approved budgets following Budget 
Council.  
 
Revenue Budget Update 2022/23 to 2024/25 
 
As part of the budget setting process, the Council makes a number of 
assumptions in respect of the key elements of the Council’s revenue 
budget.   
 
Provisional budget assumptions were approved for 2022/23 to 2024/25 
at Cabinet 27th July 2021. The budget assumptions have been reviewed 
and updated the latest information available. Future reports will make 
Cabinet aware of any changes that impact on the current budget 
assumptions. 
 
An updated position is detailed in Table 1 
 
Table 1 Updated Budget Gap 2022/23 to 2024/25 
  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
  £m £m £m 
        
Budget Council March 2021 5.127 13.380 15.548 
        
Changes to Budget Assumptions 4.336 5.684 8.969 
Updated Budget Gap 9.463 19.064 24.517 
    
Mitigating Actions (9.463) (9.050) (9.050) 
        
Updated Budget Gap 0.000 10.014 15.467 

 
The report to Cabinet 27th July discussed the major changes to the budget 
assumptions from those contained in the provisional budget 2022/23 to 

Page 181



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2023/24 reported to Budget Council 3rd March 2021. There have been 
further changes to budget assumptions and several mitigating actions 
since the position reported to Cabinet on 27th July 2021, and these are 
reflected in the latest Revenue budget position. Table 2 details the 
changes to budget assumptions and mitigating actions since the position 
reported to Budget Council 3rd March 2021 Section 4.5 provides further 
detail of the budget assumptions and mitigating actions. 
 
Table 2 Changes from March Budget Council to November Cabinet  
 
  2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
  £m £m £m 
        
Budget Gap Council 3rd March 2021 5.127 13.380 15.548 
        
Changes to assumptions       
Adult Care Growth & Transitions 0.985 1.415 2.016 
Adult Care reduction in forecast Fee 
Increase 0.000 (0.419) (0.419) 
Impact of Capital Programme changes (0.213) 1.127 1.925 
Rochdale Riverside 1 0.350 0.350 0.350 
HB Subsidy shortfall 0.350 0.500 0.500 
Highways Maintenance contract 0.505 0.400 0.400 
Property growth fund income 0.426 0.426 0.426 
Homelessness Contract 0.500 0.500 0.500 
Service Budget Pressures 0.237 0.237 0.237 
Prevention Review (Place Based) 0.150 0.150 0.150 
Contingency 1.295 1.223 2.223 
Member Initiatives 0.400 0.400 0.400 
Pay Award 2022/23 (0.373) (0.380) (0.387) 
Government funding  (0.182) (0.182) (0.182) 
Business Rates retained 0.007 0.044 0.888 
Other minor changes (0.101) (0.107) (0.058) 
        
Mitigating Actions       
Capital programme/Treasury review (0.500) (0.500) (0.500) 
ASC Council Tax Precept 2022/23 (0.972) (0.972) (0.972) 
Increase Adult Social Care funding        - (1.028) (1.028) 
BR Growth reserve/contingency (3.400) (3.400) (3.400) 
Delay/ reduction in repayment of reserves  (3.900) (2.400) (2.400) 
Savings Proposals (0.691) (0.750) (0.750) 
        
Net Changes (5.127) (3.366) (0.081) 
        
Updated Budget Gap 0.000 10.014 15.467 

 
 
 

Page 182



4.3 
 
4.3.1 
 
 
 
 
4.3.2 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.3 
 
 
 
4.3.4 
 
 
4.3.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.6 
 
 
 
4.3.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Spending Review 2021 
 
The key message provided from the 2021 Spending Review (SR21) was 
that it provides a multi-year settlement to enable local authorities to support 
the ambition to level up communities across the country, with an estimated 
average real-terms increase of 3% a year in core spending power. 
 
There is new/ increased grant funding in each of the next 3 years indicated 
to be on top of the funding to implement social care reform of £1.6bn from 
2022/23.   It has been confirmed this is intended to cover the new national 
insurance rate, national living wage (NLW) increases and other new 
burdens. 
 
SR21 confirmed the core Council Tax referendum limit will remain at 2% 
for each year within the 3 year spending review period.  In addition the 
social care precept will be up to 1% per year. 
 
SR21 also confirmed increased funding to the Supporting Families 
Programme of £200m by 2024/25. 
 
Social Care reforms 
 
On 7th September 2021, the government published ‘Building Back Better: 
Our Plan for Health and Social Care’. The plan outlines plans to tackle the 
backlog in the NHS resulting from the pandemic, and the long standing 
challenges for delivering Adult Social Care.  
 
This includes the introduction of a new £86k cap from October 2023 on the 
amount anyone in England will need to spend on their personal care over 
their lifetime. 
 
The additional health and social care funding announced will be funded 
through the introduction of a UK-wide 1.25% Health and Social Care Levy, 
based on National Insurance contributions (NICs) to be introduced from 
April 2022. The government confirmed they would compensate 
departments and other public sector employers in England at SR21 for the 
increased cost of the Levy. 
 
Local Government Funding for Social Care reforms 
 
The government will invest £5.4bn in adult social care over the next three 
years to deliver the funding and system reform commitments set out in the 
Plan.  The funding package is intended to cover the costs to local 
government of implementing the charging reforms, including the cap, the 
increased capital limit, and moving towards paying a fair rate of care and 
the associated implementation costs.  

 
The government will consult on its proposals for the distribution of the 
£5.4bn funding, and keep this distribution under review. The following 
allocations from this fund were confirmed at SR21. 
 

Page 183



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.9 
 
 
4.3.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 £3.6bn will go directly to local government over the SR21 period to 
implement the cap on personal care costs and changes to the means 
test. This funding will also help local authorities better sustain their local 
care markets by moving towards a fairer cost of care. 

 £1.7bn over 3 years to improve the wider social care system, including 
the quality and integration of care. At least £500m of this will be 
allocated to improve qualifications, skills and wellbeing across the adult 
social care workforce. 

 Additional funding through the local government settlement to ensure 
all local authorities are able to meet core pressures in adult social care. 

 
The government expects demographic and unit cost pressures to be met 
through council tax, the social care precept, and long-term efficiencies.  
 
Potential Budget Implications for the Council of Social Care reforms 
 
There are a number of potential budget issues for the council arising from 
the Plan, and these will become clearer as further information is provided 
by the government. These include: 
 

 The impact of the cap, capital limit and other measures on local 
authority care costs. 

 The impact on adult care contracts of the cost of the 1.25% Levy. 
The forecast impact of a 1.25% increase in the NI rate from April 
2022 on the ASC fee cost for 2022/23 is currently £300k. 

 The forecast impact of the 1.25% NI increase on Rochdale Councils 
staffing costs is £500k, however the announcement confirmed that 
additional Government Grant funding would be provided to fund this 
additional burden. 

 The allocation for Rochdale from the £5.4bn to be provided to local 
government over the three years from 2022/23 to 2024/25. 

 Rochdale Adult Social Care relies heavily on client contributions and 
the proposed cap will limit the funding available via this route in the 
future. It is unclear at this stage whether current reliance on client 
contributions will be reflected in the methodology used for allocating 
the new funds. 

 Under the proposed changes, all individuals requiring care will now 
need to be administered by Adult Social Care (social work 
intervention, care assessments, financial assessments, oversight of 
care accounts), whereas previously self-funding individuals would 
not. This along with the setup / preparation for implementation of the 
new system will require a significant increase in staff numbers in 
Adult Social Care and Revenues and Benefits. 

 There is expected to be greater proportion of care home placements 
at the RBC standard rate, and a reduction in the number of 
individuals self-funding (rates above the RBC rate). 

 
 
 
 

Page 184



4.3.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Business Rates update from SR21 
 
The government has concluded its review of the business rates system. 
To support businesses in the near term, the government has decided to 
freeze the business rates multiplier in 2022/23. Local authorities will be 
fully compensated for all measures announced in the review. 
 
Local Government rate retention pilots will continue into 2022/23 and 
2024/25. 
 
Up to 400,000 retail, hospitality and leisure properties will be eligible for a 
new, temporary £1.7bn of business rates relief in 2022/23.  This is a 50% 
rate relief for businesses within the sector of up to a maximum £110k. 
 
There is a continuation of the freeze of the business rates multiplier for a 
second year, 2022/23, keeping the multipliers at 49.9p and 51.2p. The 
budget cost to the exchequer is around £900m pa. 
 
From 2023, there will be an introduction of a 100% improvement relief for 
business rates. This will provide 12 months relief from higher bills for 
occupiers where eligible improvements to an existing property increase 
the rateable value. The government will consult on how best to implement 
this relief, which will take effect in 2023 and be reviewed in 2028, no 
business will face higher business rates bills for 12 months after making 
qualifying improvements to a property they occupy. 
 
The government will also continue to explore the arguments for and 
against a UK-wide Online Sales Tax, the revenue from which would be 
used to reduce business rates for retailers with properties in England, 
consultation on this proposal is to follow shortly. 
 
There is an extension of transitional relief for small and medium sized 
businesses, and the supporting small business scheme, for 1 year. This 
will restrict bill increases to 15% for small properties (up to a rateable 
value of £20,000 or £28,000 in Greater London) and 25% for medium 
properties (up to a rateable value of £100,000). 
 
Education Funding 
 
SR21 confirms an additional £4.7bn by 2024/25 for the core schools 
budget in England, over and above the 2019 settlement for schools in 
2022/23.  This is broadly equivalent to a cash increase of over £1,500 per 
pupil by 2024/25 compared to 2019/20. 
 
There is also commitment to increase teacher starting salaries to £30,000 
a year, as well as a long-term school rebuilding programme to rebuild 500 
schools over the next decade. 
 
The announcement also noted that £2.6bn will be made available over the 
SR21 period for new school places for children with special educational 

Page 185



 
 
 
4.3.13 
 
 
 
 
4.3.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
4.4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.4.3 
 
 
 

needs and disabilities (SEND), increasing current capital funding to over 
£900m by 2024/25.  
 
Public Health 
 
The Public Health Grant will be maintained in real terms over SR21 and will 
continue to be ring fenced. 
 
Levelling Up 
 
GM was successful within the Levelling Up funding with support going to 
Bury, Tameside, Bolton, Salford and Manchester.  Wigan and Stockport 
also received funding via the Community Ownership Fund. 
In addition, GM has been successful receiving additional funding of 
£1.07bn from the City Region Sustainable Transport settlement. 
 
SR21 Impact for Rochdale 
 
The impact for Rochdale is unclear until the provisional settlement is 
received in December, however the main points to highlight for Rochdale 
following the announcements are:- 

 In December we can expect a 3 year settlement to 2024/25 
 Funding will be received for Adult Social Care reforms 
 Any Business Rates relief implemented will be fully compensated 
 there is additional funding across the SR21 period; albeit there may be 

a reduction in 2022/23 
 the Council Tax increase limit for a referendum remains at 2% 
 Adult Care Precept will continue into future years at a level of 1%  
 100% business rates retention will continue until 2024/25 
 Schools per-pupil funding will return to the 2010 levels in real terms 

 
Medium Term Financial Strategy 
 
The Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) is a five year plan which 
sets out the Council’s commitment to provide services that meet the 
needs of people locally, and that represent good value for money within 
the overall resources available. The current MTFS was approved at 
Budget Council 3rd March 2021 and is kept under review throughout the 
budget process.  
 
There has been significant uncertainty as to the level of government 
funding for local authorities beyond the current financial year, however the 
latest spending review has provided more clarity on the expected Local 
Authority funding levels over the next 3 years. There is also significant 
uncertainty over the ongoing impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s 
expenditure and income levels for future years.  
 
The loss of commercial income has caused significant funding pressures 
for the Council and therefore the MTFS has been adjusted to reduce 
reliance on commercial income, this being achieved by reallocation of 
budgets in relation to Business Rates Growth. This is being supported by 

Page 186



 
 
 
4.4.4 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
4.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

4.5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

the use of reserves to smooth this transition, with £2.3m from the 
smoothing reserve. 
 
An updated Medium Term Financial Strategy 2022/23 to 2026/27 will be 
taken to Cabinet 10th February 2022 for recommendation to Budget 
Council 23rd February 2022. 
 
Revenue Budget  2022/23 to 2024/25 – Key Areas of Note 
 
Use of Reserves 
 
The updated budget gap reported in Table 1 and 2 shows a balanced 
position for 2022/23 however this involves the use of £5.7m of reserves of 
which £3.4m was addressed in the development of the MTFS in the 20/21 
budget process. The remaining amount being £2.3m which relates to the 
smoothing model for financial losses relating to the collection fund and 
commercial income as a result of the pandemic.  
 
Business Rates 
 
In 2021/22 Rochdale continues to be part of the Greater Manchester pilot 
for 100% Business Rates Retention, which commenced in 2017/18.  The 
pilot authorities each retain 100% of locally-raised business rates. Business 
Rates growth income achieved under the pilot scheme is retained locally 
and shared up to 50% with the Greater Manchester Combined Authority 
(GMCA). It was confirmed in the 2021 Spending Review that the Local 
Government rate retention pilots will continue into 2022/23 to 2024/25. For 
planning purposes, the impact of any reforms have been assumed will be 
neutral.  There are continuing conversation across the Districts and GMCA 
with regards to the levels of growth shared. 
 
The assumptions on Business Rates income will be kept under review 
throughout the budget process. The Business Rates base for 2022/23 is 
currently estimated to be £65.258m, reflecting the 0% multiplier increase 
confirmed at SR21, and assuming the continuation of the GM 100% 
Business Rates Retention pilot. The reduced forecast from the previously 
assumed 1.2% multiplier increase was confirmed at SR21 as being offset 
by an increase in Section 31 funding. 
 
The Business Rates base 2022/23 will be formally considered by Council 
on 15th December 2021. 
 
Council Tax Increase 
 
For planning purposes, a general increase in Council Tax of 1.99% has 
been assumed for 2022/23 in line with the confirmed referendum limits as 
well as a 1% increase in the Social Care Precept. A 1.99% increase has 
been assumed for both 2023/24 and 2024/25.  
 
The government’s Health and Social Care Plan states that demographic 
and unit cost pressures are expected to be met through council tax, the 

Page 187



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

social care precept, and long-term efficiencies. It was confirmed as SR21 
that authorities can continue to raise an Adult Social Care precept of up to 
1% per annum over the next 3 years. For planning purposes no precept 
has been assumed for 2023/24 and 2024/25 at this stage.  However, £1m 
of additional income has been assumed within the estimates for 2023/24 
and 2024/25 equivalent of a precept.  
 
Adult Social Care pressures for future years have been reflected in the 
budget position reported in Tables 1 & 2and are partially offset by the 1% 
increase in the ASC precept for 2022/23.   
 
In February 2022 Cabinet will recommend the 2022/23 Council Tax to 
Budget Council for approval. 
  
Council Tax Base 
 
A Council Tax base for 2021/22 of 54,637 was approved by Council on 16th 
December 2020, representing the number of Band D equivalent properties 
that we collect Council Tax from. 
 
After taking account of the estimated growth in property numbers and 
estimated impact of the Local Council Tax Support scheme, the Council 
Tax base for 2022/23 is currently estimated to be 56,232. The Council Tax 
base will be kept under review throughout the budget process, in particular 
the ongoing impact of the pandemic on: the estimated growth in new 
properties; the cost of the Local Council Tax Support Scheme; and the 
estimated collection rate. 

 
The Council Tax base for 2022/23 will be formally considered by Council 
on 15th December 2021.  
 
Non-Pay Inflation 
The budget assumes 0% inflation per annum across the majority of the 
Council’s non-pay expenditure budgets. Contractual arrangements and 
other significant inflation issues have now been considered on a case by 
case basis and the budget adjusted as appropriate. SR21 confirmed a 
3.1% inflation rate in September, with a forecast of 4% over the next year. 
 
Highways Maintenance Contract 
 
Cabinet, 25th February 2021, approved the option to deliver the whole of 
the revenue funded Highways Maintenance service in-house, with capital 
funded works being delivered via procurement compliant frameworks. As 
reported to Cabinet 27th July 2021 an additional £0.300m has been added 
to the budget to cover the ongoing revenue implications of this decision. It 
is now proposed to adopt the Premium Reactive Service model, which will 
result in additional revenue costs of a further £0.205m in 2022/23 (£0.105m 
one-off, £0.100m ongoing), and £0.100m ongoing in future years. 
 
 

Page 188



4.5.7 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discretionary Fees and Charges 
 
The proposed 2% increase in Discretionary Fees and Charges, subject to 
certain exemptions to be agreed, would generate approximately £80k in 
2022/23 and future years – see separate item on the agenda. 
 
Budget Challenge Sessions 
 
During August 2021 a number of Budget Challenge sessions were held 
involving Members and Directors in order to understand/challenge 
Directorate budgets.  A number of actions were identified and progress 
towards these was reported to Members of the budget challenge group on 
the 22nd September 2021. Following these sessions it has been agreed that 
Directorates will bring forward savings proposals totaling £0.691m for 
2022/23, rising to £0.750m in future years, these being subject to a 
separate Cabinet report.  
 
Adult Social Care Growth and Transitions 
 
The Adult Care Service is forecasting additional demographic pressures in 
future years due to a high number of expensive Children’s Social Care 
placements transitioning to Adult Social Care over the next few years and 
the expected general growth in individuals requiring Adult Social Care 
Services. An additional provision of £0.989m for this has been made for 
2022/23 in the latest budget estimate with further increases in future years. 
 
Health & Social Care Pooled Budget 
The Health & Social Care Pooled Budget was formed between Rochdale 
Council and the Heywood, Middleton and Rochdale Clinical 
Commissioning Group (HMR CCG) in 2018/19. From the 1st of April 2022 
HMR CCG will no longer exists and will form part of the Integrated Care 
System (ICS) for Greater Manchester. It is unclear how this will impact on 
the existing relationship and future funding flows. A report to ICB in October 
identified the current funding paid from HMR CCG to RBC and the forecast 
payments in 2022/23 shown in the table below:- 
 
HMR CCG funding of RBC Social Care  
& Support Services 

2022/23 
£m 

Adult Social Care 7.524 
Children's Social Care 2.412 
Support Services 0.097 
Total contribution to RBC 10.033 
HMR CCG Contribution to the Better Care Fund 19.247 

Total Contribution to RBC and the Better Care Fund 29.280 
 
The £10.033m contributions are considered a risk within the current budget 
estimates until they are confirmed to continue under future health funding 
arrangements. 
 
 

Page 189



4.6 
 
4.6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
4.7.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Covid Impact 
 
The Council has incurred Covid related pressures of £15.557m in 2020/21 
and is forecasting pressures of £13.843m in 2021/22. These pressures 
have been or will be met from Covid specific one-off Government funding. 
The long term impact of Covid continues to be monitored and pressures 
will be managed via the smoothing reserve in the short term rather than 
implementing savings proposals whilst the impact is understood, with the 
intention of repaying reserves used over the long term. 
 
Savings Programme 2022/23 to 2023/24 
During August 2021 a number of Budget Challenge sessions were held 
involving Members and Directors in order to understand/challenge 
Directorate budgets.  A number of actions were identified and progress 
towards these was reported to Members of the budget challenge group on 
the 22nd September 2021. Following these sessions it has been agreed that 
Directorates will bring forward savings proposals totaling £0.691m for 
2022/23, rising to £0.750m in future years.  
 
Table 3 details the saving proposals being considered within this report 
towards meeting the budget gap for 2022/23 and 2023/24. There is a 
separate report to Cabinet with further details on the proposals and 
consultation process. 
 
Table 3 

 Savings proposals 
BAU / 

Consultation 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 
    £m £m £m 
Additional charges to 
Academies 

BAU (0.080) (0.080) (0.080) 

Neighbourhoods 
Additional Income 

Consultation via 
Disc. Fees & 

Charges 

(0.010) (0.010) (0.010) 

Neighbourhoods 
Additional Income 

BAU - review (0.100) (0.100) (0.100) 

Treasury Management 
Additional income 

BAU (0.090) (0.090) (0.090) 

Income sub total  (0.280) (0.280) (0.280) 
Leadership Review Workforce 

Consultation 
(0.161) (0.161) (0.161) 

Neighbourhoods 
Management Review 

Workforce 
Consultation 

(0.043) (0.043) (0.043) 

Member mail BAU (0.007) (0.007) (0.007) 
Advice  (One off 
substitution funding) 

BAU         
(0.200) 

- - 

Advice Consultation – 
Review 

- (0.200) (0.200) 

Additional savings TBC - (0.059) (0.059) 
Savings sub total  (0.411) (0.470) (0.470) 
Total   (0.691)    0.750)  (0.750) 

Page 190



4.8 
 
4.8.1 
 
 
4.9 
 
4.9.1 
 
 
 
 
4.9.2 
 
 
 
 
4.9.3 
 
 

Capital Programme 
 
A separate report is being presented to Cabinet on the Capital 
Programme for 2022/23 -2026/7. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget 
setting process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. 
It is equally important that assumptions used in the preparation of the 
budget are agreed, reasonable and consistently applied by all services. 
 
Consideration has been given to a number of options in putting forward 
the saving proposals contained in this report and the reports outline any 
alternatives. To do nothing was not considered to be an option as the 
Council is legally required to set a balanced budget. 
 
Cabinet Members could decide not to implement these proposals and 
provide alternative options to enable a balanced budget to be achieved. 
 

Costs and Budget Summary 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
5.1.1 
 
 
 

The financial implications for the Revenue Budget are considered in the main 
body of the report.  Table 1 highlights the financial pressures facing the 
Council in the medium term. 
 
Section 4.5 details the key pressures and mitigations to address the 2022/23 
gap to ensure a balanced budget is presented to Council on 23rd February 
2022.   
 

Risk and Policy Implications 
 
6.1 
 
6.1.1 
 
 
 
6.1.2 
 
 
 
6.1.3 
 
 
 
6.1.4 
 
 
 
 

Risk Implications  
 
The budget forecast has been based on a number of assumptions, known 
levels of expenditure and anticipated levels of resources. Final confirmation 
of these assumptions is not expected to be known until December 2021.  
 
There are a number of areas of the Council’s budget where risks to the 
projections contained in this report have been identified. The most 
significant of these are detailed below. 
 
Ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic – the budget assumptions will be 
kept under review as more information becomes available on the ongoing 
impact of the pandemic on Council services.  

 
Monitoring of the 2021/22 budget will provide Cabinet with regular updates 
on any budget pressures and savings for the Council. Any associated 
ongoing implications will be incorporated into the budget projections for 
2022/23 and future years.  

 

Page 191



6.1.5 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.7 
 
 
6.1.8 
 
 
6.1.9 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.11 
 
 
 
 
6.1.12 
 
 
 
 
 

Government Funding – the level of government funding that the Council will 
receive in 2022/23 to 2024/25, including the Improved Better Care Fund and 
Social Care grant, is unknown at this stage. This will be dependent on the 
Spending Review 2021, the Local Government Finance Settlement 2022/23 
and the funding reforms scheduled for 2022/23. 
 
Council Tax increase – Central Government provides a cap on the Council 
Tax increase a Local Authority can make before a referendum of the local 
residents is required. The referendum limit for 2021/22 was a 1.99% 
increase. SR21 confirmed that the government will allow a 1% further Adult 
Social Care precept each year from 2022/23 to 2024/25. A 1.99% general 
increase has been assumed for 2022/23, along with a 1% social care 
precept. The assumptions included in this report are for planning purposes 
only, and will be reviewed by Cabinet leading up to a Council Tax 
recommendation at Budget Council. The impact of a 1% change in the level 
of Council Tax increase would be approximately £1m. 

 
Council Tax Collection – the ongoing impact of the pandemic or other 
economic factors could affect the level of Council Tax collection. 

 
Council Tax Base – the estimated growth in new properties could be 
affected by the ongoing impact of the pandemic or other economic factors. 

 
Local Council Tax Support Scheme – the budget assumes that the Local 
Council Tax Support Scheme remains unchanged. The impact on the 
budget of a 5% change in the maximum discount allowed (currently 85%) 
would be approximately £0.6m. The ongoing impact of the pandemic or 
other economic factors could also affect the level of take up of the scheme. 

 
Business Rates – it has been assumed for planning purposes that the 
Greater Manchester 100% Retention pilot scheme will continue in 2022/23. 
It was confirmed in the 2021 Spending Review that the Local Government 
rate retention pilots will continue into 2022/23 to 2024/25. The budget 
assumptions have been reviewed, and reflect the latest announcements in 
the Spending Review. The ongoing impact of the pandemic or other 
economic factors could affect the level of Business Rates income collected, 
the estimated growth in rateable values, or the estimated number of 
unoccupied properties.  

 
Council Services - the economic climate following the pandemic, other 
economic issues or general demographic changes could impact on the 
residents of the borough, leading to an increased cost of, or demand for, 
Council services.  
 
The Plan for Health and Social Care – the implications of the government’s 
Plan for Health and Social Care for local authorities are likely to be 
significant, but are not yet known in any detail. The implications will be 
reviewed and reported to Members as further detail is provided by the 
government. 
 

Page 192



6.1.13 
 
 
 
 
6.1.14 
 
 
 
6.1.15 
 
 
 
 
 
6.1.16 
 
 
 
6.1.17 
 
 
 
 
6.1.18 
 
 
 
6.1.19 
 
 
 
 
6.1.20 
 
 
 
6.1.21 
 
 
6.1.22 
 
 
6.2 
 
6.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 

Health and Social Care - From April 2022 the current arrangement of having 
local Clinical Commissioning Groups will be replaced by Integrated Care 
Systems covering a wider area. The impact this may have on Local 
Authority funding is not yet known 
 
Greater Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) budgets – there is a risk 
that the ongoing impact of the pandemic could affect the level of levies and 
other charges to districts. 
 
Waste Disposal Levy – the Waste Disposal Levy is calculated by a formula 
across Greater Manchester, which takes account of recycling levels. If 
Rochdale did not increase recycling at the same level as other GM 
Authorities this would impact on the levy, resulting in an increased cost to 
the Council.  
 
Pay Award – the budget currently assumes a 1.5% pay award in 2022/23. 
An increase in the pay award of an additional 1% would increase the 
Council’s budget by approximately £0.7m. 
 
Inflation – impact of changes in the price of goods and services used by the 
Council compared to the percentage assumed in the budget projections. A 
1% increase in price inflation equates to an increase in the budget of 
approximately £0.6m. 
 
Fees and charges income – the impact of any economic slowdown on levels 
of usage of charged-for Council services could lead to income levels not 
being achieved. 

 
Commercial Income – levels of anticipated income from commercial 
investments such as the Manchester Airport are dependent on 
performance. The pandemic has had a significant impact on delivery of such 
commercial investment income. 
 
Rochdale Riverside – the impact of the economic climate on the Rochdale 
Riverside development. This could result in financial implications for the 
Council under contractual arrangements and on business rates income. 
 
Investment income – the impact of low interest rates and implications of any 
economic factors on the level of dividends/interest received by the Council. 
 
Academies – the impact of any further schools converting to Academies on 
the Council’s budget. 

 
Legal Implications 
 
The Council is under a duty to calculate the budget in accordance with 
Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must make three 
calculations namely: an estimate of the Council’s gross revenue 
expenditure; an estimate of anticipated income; and a calculation of the 
difference between the two. The amount of the budget requirement must be 
sufficient to meet the Council’s budget commitments and ensure a balanced 

Page 193



budget. The amount of the budget requirement must leave the Council with 
adequate financial reserves. The level of budget requirement must not be 
unreasonable having regard to the Council’s fiduciary duty to its Council Tax 
payers and non-domestic rate payers.   
 
Failure to make a lawful Council Tax on or before 11th March could have 
serious financial results for the Council and make the Council vulnerable to 
an Order from the Courts requiring it to make a specified increase in Council 
Tax. 
 
Section 151 of the Local Government Act 1972 places a general duty on 
local authorities to make arrangements for ‘the proper administration of their 
financial affairs'. 
  
Information must be published and included in the Council Tax demand 
notice. The Secretary of State has made regulations, which require charging 
authorities to issue demand notices in a form and with contents prescribed 
by these regulations.  
 
There is also a duty under Section 65 of the 1992 Act to consult persons or 
bodies appearing to be representative of persons subject to non-domestic 
rates in each area about proposals for expenditure (including capital 
expenditure) for each financial year. 

 
 
 
 
 
6.2.2 
 
 
 
 
6.2.3 
 
 
 
6.2.4 
 
 
 
 
6.2.5 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Consultation 
 
7.1 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Consultation will be undertaken throughout the year on various aspects of 
the budget setting process.  
 
Discretionary Fees and Charges – the proposed fees and charges for 
2022/23 will be brought forward for consultation with Cabinet on the 23rd of 
November 2021 (see separate item on this agenda) and Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 8th December 2021. Following consultation the 
fees and charges for 2022/23 will be recommended by Cabinet on 10th 
February 2022 for approval at Budget Council on 23rd February 2022. 
 
The updated Revenue Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 and Medium Term 
Financial Strategy will be reported to Corporate Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on 16th November 2021. The Revenue Budget 2022/23 and 
provisional budgets for 2023/24 and 2024/25, and the Council Tax 2022/23, 
will be recommended by Cabinet on 10th February 2022 for approval at 
Budget Council on 23rd February 2022. 
 
Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 - the proposed Capital Programme 
for 2022/23 will be brought forward for consultation with Corporate Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee on 16th November 2021. Consultation will also be 
undertaken with Township Committees. Following consultation the Capital 
Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 will be recommended by Cabinet on 10th 
February 2022 for approval at Budget Council on 23rd February 2022. 
 

Page 194



7.5 Consultation on the Saving Proposals is to be undertaken with the, 
Stakeholder Groups, staff and Service Users as appropriate. Consultation 
will commence on 24th November 2021 and conclude on 7th January 2022. 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 
 
8.   

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith 
samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk 
01706 924198 

 
  

Page 195

mailto:samantha.smith@rochdale.gov.uk


Budget Timetable 2022/23      Appendix 1 

Date  Meeting/Event Detail 

2021     
November Cabinet Cabinet 23 November  
 Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 8 December 
    1. Discretionary Fees & Charges for Consultation 
    2. Revenue Budget 2022/23 to 2024/25 & MTFS Update 

3. Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 for 
Consultation 
4. Savings Programme 2022/23 for Consultation 

November Savings Programme 
Consultation starts 

24 November 

December Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 8 December 
 Cabinet  Cabinet 14 December 
  Council Council 15 December 
      
    1. Council Tax and Business Rates bases 2022/23 

December Announcement Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement 

2022     

January Savings Programme 
Consultation ends 7 January 

January/ February Announcement Final Local Government Finance Settlement 

Corporate O&S Corporate O&S 8 February 
Cabinet Cabinet 10 February 
Budget Council Budget Council 23 February (Alternative 2 March) 
    
  1. Treasury Management Strategy 
  2. Medium Term Financial Strategy 
  3. Local Government Act 2003 Report 
  4. Revenue Budget and Council Tax 
  5. Capital Investment & Disposal Strategy 
  6. Savings Programme post consultation 
  7. Capital Programme post consultation 

February/March 

  8. Discretionary Fees & Charges post consultation 

Page 196



1 

Report to Cabinet 

 

Date of Meeting 23rd November 2021 

Portfolio Cabinet Member for Finance and 
Corporate and Corporate 

Report Author Julie Murphy 
 

Public/Private Document Public 

 

Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 

 
Executive Summary 

 

1.1 To outline changes to the Council’s Capital Programme 2021/22, as described 
in section 4.1.  The 2021/22 programme has been increased to £107.3m. The 
base budget of £57.2m agreed at Budget Council March 2021 has been 
increased by £94.7m of budget rephased from previous years, £11.7m of 
capital budget changes, and reduced by £56.3m of budget that has been 
reviewed and rephased into future years. 

1.2. To outline the Council’s proposed Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27, as 
a basis for consultation. 

1.3 To outline Members’ of the risks of borrowing to finance the Capital Programme 
and its long term impacts on the longer term financial sustainability of the 
Council and Treasury Management Strategy (TMS), as discussed in section 
4.3. 

1.4 Some of the assumed external funding included in the programme is still subject 
to clarification from Government and other sources and in some cases may 
involve bids for funds. It is therefore recommended that all approvals are 
subject to confirmation of funding allocations. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 197

Agenda Item 11



2 

Recommendations 

 

2.1 Cabinet consider and approve the proposed changes to the Capital Programme 
2021/22. 

2.2 Cabinet consider and approve the Capital Programme 2022/23, and provisional 
programmes for 2023/24 to 2026/27, as a basis for consultation, subject to 
confirmation of grant funding allocations, as detailed in Appendix 1. 

2.3 Cabinet to consider and approve the proposal to delegate approval to spend 
of the £6m Investment scheme (held for urgent capital spend) to the Chief 
Finance Officer in consultation with the Portfolio Holder for Finance. 

   
Reason for Recommendation 

 

3.1 Cabinet members are required to recommend a balanced 2022/23 Revenue 
Budget to Budget Council, and provisional budgets for 2023/24 to 2024/25.  

3.2 The Council is required to set a balanced budget for 2022/23 by 11th March 
2022.  

3.3 The Capital Programme is a key element of the budget setting process. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
 
4.1 Capital Programme Review 2021/22 

4.1.1 As reported to Cabinet 27th July, a review of the current Capital Programme 
was in progress. 

4.1.2 Due to the ongoing pressures being placed on the Council, a review of the 
Capital programme has been undertaken to reduce the future debt repayment 
burden on the Council as part of the Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 
and to understand spend in the current year and the impact on the Council’s 
cash flow. 

4.1.3 The objective of the review of the 2021/22 capital budgets across the Council 
was to consider whether schemes could be re-prioritised, rephased into future 
years or reduced, which can reduce the forecast revenue cost.  

4.1.4 The outcome of the review was to realise a revenue saving of £0.5m per annum 
through reduction in prudential borrowing repayments over the next three 
financial years (2022/23 – 2024/25). This being in addition to the reductions 
included in the current MTFS. 

Page 198



3 

4.1.5 The Capital Programme budget for 2021/22 as approved at Quarter 1 Finance 
Update Report was £107.3m. This being £57.2m approved as the new 
programme at March Budget Council, £94.7m rephased from 2020/21 into 
2021/22, £11.7m of capital budget changes, and reduced by £56.3m of budget 
that has been reviewed and rephased into future years. 

4.1.6 An updated position is detailed in Table 1 

Table 1 Updated Capital Programme 2021/22 to 2023/24 

 2021/22 
£’000s 

2022/23 
£’000s 

2023/24 
£’000s 

Budget Council March 2021 57,186 32,468 46,760 
Rephasing Brought Forward from 
previous years 

94,703 20,850 12,355 

Capital Budget Changes 11,697 (831)  
Rephasing requested Quarter 1 (56,258) 51,258 5,000 
Budget as at end of June 2021 107,328 103,745 64,115 

 

4.1.7 As part of the Quarter 2 Finance Update Report additional rephasing from the 
2021/22 programme has been identified and agreed with Directorates, this 
being £18.5m as detailed in appendix 2. 

4.1.8 Any rephasing from Quarter 3 will be detailed in the final report to be approved 
at Budget Council.  Following this underspend at the year-end will be carried 
forward and added to the opening budget total.  

4.2       Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 
 

4.2.1 The Capital Investment and Disposal Strategy including the 2022/23 – 2026/27 
Capital programme will be presented to Cabinet in February and Council on 
23rd February 2022. 

4.2.2 The strategy is a requirement from Chartered Institute of Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) for all local authorities to demonstrate a high level long 
term view of capital expenditure, financing and treasury management activity 
to contribute to the provision of services, an overview of risk in capital items 
and the implications of capital expenditure on the future financial sustainability. 

4.2.3 To address the CIPFA requirements, the Strategy will address longer term 
aspirations for the borough with capital requirements and detail the short to 
medium term capital spend in a five year programme. 

 
4.2.4    The programme aims to: 

 Deliver investment in the Borough to support the Borough wide priorities, 
including economic benefit and gross value added to the Borough; 

 Deliver investment in Service Provision to deliver future savings; 
 Maintain and enhance the Council’s assets; 
 Meet Statutory provision; 

Page 199



4 

 Provide value for Money. 
 
 
4.2.5 The Capital Programme continues to align with the Council’s priorities: 

 Place Plan – aligning capital investment to support the borough’s economic 
growth potential and continue to regenerate our town centres. 

 Corporate Plan – ensuring the borough maintains its high standard of quality 
building and public space. 

 Asset Strategy – aiming to hold fewer but more efficient assets, realising 
maximum value from the estate whilst safeguarding its staff, customers and 
other building users. 

 
4.2.6 Additional Capital Schemes identified as part of the 2022/23 Capital Programme 

are summarised in table 3 below and table 4 provides details of the funding 
source for each project. Full details of each scheme are within Appendix 3. 

 

Page 200



5 

Table 3 Additional Capital Schemes 
 

Directorate Scheme 22/23 
£’000 

23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

Economy Rochdale Flood Innovation Programme 2,708 957 876 815 717 
Economy Industrial Units – Capital Programme 1,703 1,047 812 - - 

Economy Town Hall - Drainage - - - - - 

Economy Towns Fund – New Homes Central Rochdale 1,000 853 - - - 

Economy Towns Fund – Heritage Skills Studio - 180 137 - - 

Economy Towns Fund – St Mary’s Gate - 2,035 - - - 

Economy Towns Fund – Strategic Gateway Sites 396 61 - - - 
Economy Towns Fund – AMPI 4,915 6,388 3,697 - - 

Economy Towns Fund – Kingsway 500 - - - - 

Economy Towns Fund – Neighbourhoods 1,200 1,200 - - - 

Economy Rochdale Town Centre Slopes Restoration 1,000 1,000 - - - 
Neighbourhoods Highways Steady State Funding 3,190 3,190 3,190 3,190 3,190 

Neighbourhoods GM ONE Network 665 395    

Neighbourhoods Additional ICT Infrastructure Refresh 330     

Neighbourhoods Highway Fees 100 100 100 100 100 

Resources Investment Fund 2,000 2,000 - 2,000 - 

Total Cost  19,707 19,406 8,812 6,105 4,007 

P
age 201



6 

Table 4 Funding Source for additional Capital Schemes 
 
Scheme Funding Source 22/23 

£’000 
23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

Industrial Units – Capital Programme Prudential Borrowing 1,703 1,047 812 - - 
Rochdale Town Centre Slopes Restoration Prudential Borrowing 1,000 1,000 - - - 
Investment Fund Prudential Borrowing 2,000 2,000 - 2,000  
Highways Steady State Funding Prudential Borrowing 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 
GM ONE Network Prudential Borrowing 665 395 - - - 
Additional ICT Infrastructure Refresh Prudential Borrowing 330 - - - - 
Total Prudential Borrowing 8,549 7,293 3,663 4,851 2,851 
Rochdale Flood Innovation Programme Grant 2,708 957 876 815 717 
Towns Fund – New Homes Central Rochdale Grant 1,000 853 - - - 
Towns Fund – Heritage Skills Studio Grant - 180 137 - - 
Towns Fund – St Mary’s Gate Grant - 2,035 - - - 
Towns Fund – Strategic Gateway Sites Grant 396 61 - - - 
Towns Fund – AMPI Grant 5,059 6,441 3,712 - - 
Towns Fund – Kingsway Grant 500 - - - - 
Towns Fund – Neighbourhoods Grant 1,200 1,200 - - - 
Highways Steady State Funding Grant 339 339 339 339 339 
Total Grant 11,058 12,013 5,049 1,154 1,056 
Traffic Calming – Council Motion Capital Receipts 100 100 100 100 100 
Total Capital Receipts 100 - - - - 

Overall Total  19,707 19,406 8,812 6,105 4,007 

P
age 202



7 

4.2.7 As part of the Capital bids process the following schemes have identified that 
external funding may be available and, therefore would reduce the need to 
borrow for these schemes. 

 
 Highways Steady State Funding – The City Region Sustainable Transport 

Settlement (CRSTS) has the potential to offer £1m of carriageway 
improvement schemes for Rochdale in 2022/23 which would be reduce the 
borrowing need for that year to £2.19m. 

 Rochdale Town Centre slops restoration – Due to the historic nature of the 
works a National Heritage Lottery Fund (NLHF) application can be 
submitted. Early consultation with the NLHF are being arranged. Also, as a 
large part of the work is drainage a contribution from the Environment 
Agency (EA) is also being explored. These contributions would reduce the 
borrowing requirement for the year the funding is secured. 

 
4.2.8 Along with the Council’s current priorities, the proposed Capital Programme has 

been developed for 2022/23 to 2026/27, taking into consideration the available 
resources. 

 
4.2.9 The approach for setting the 2022/23 capital budget has followed the steps 

below: 
 Initial budget as provisionally approved at Budget Council on 3rd March 

2021. 
 Review of current capital programme as described at 4.1. 
 Consideration of new schemes in the current financial climate. 
 Review sessions with the Cabinet Member for Finance and Corporate and 

Assistant Portfolio Holder for Finance and Corporate, Director of Economy 
and the Assistant Directors within the Neighbourhoods Directorate, followed 
by approval to progress the proposed programme by the Council’s 
Leadership Team. 

 
4.2.10 Appendix 1 details the proposed Capital Programme for 2022/23 and 

provisional Capital Programmes for 2023/24 to 2026/27 including the rephasing 
detailed in section 4.1.  Appendix 2 detailed the rephasing of schemes as 
approved in the Quarter 1 Finance Update, plus those rephased at Quarter 2. 
 

4.2.11 Table 5 shows the total proposed Capital expenditure for 2022/23 to 2026/27 
summarised by Directorate and the funding source. With Table 6 summarising 
the establishment of the programme from Council in March. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 203



8 

Table 5 Summary of Capital Programme and funding source 
 
Directorate 22/23 

£’000 
23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

Adult Care 3,987 2,987 2,987 2,987 2,987 
Children’s Services 30,197 12,453 7,453 7,453 7,453 
Economy 81,705 47,568 28,522 815 717 
Neighbourhoods 33,218 18,612 13,948 14,954 14,496 
Public Health 4,006 - 576 100 - 
Resources 2,000 2,000 - 2,000 - 
Total Requirement 155,113 83,620 53,486 28,309 25,653 
Funding Source      
Government Grants 47,242 27,453 15,489 11,594 11,496 
Other Grants 12,972 - - - - 
Contributions 11,756 2,714 2,714 2,714 2,714 
Prudential Borrowing 35,519 31,498 14,848 12,590 10,032 
Prudential Borrowing (Invest to 
Save) 

43,089 21,700 20,180 1,156 1,156 

General Capital Receipts 4,080 100 100 100 100 
Revenue Contribution to Capital 
Outlay (RCCO) 

455 155 155 155 155 

Total Funding 155,113 83,620 53,486 28,309 25,653 
 
Table 6 Buildup of Capital Programme 
 
 22/23 

£’000 
23/24 
£’000 

24/25 
£’000 

25/26 
£’000 

26/27 
£’000 

Programme Budget Council 
March 2021 

32,468 46,760 45,021 22,500 - 

Programme extension to 26/27 - - - - 20,722 
New Schemes 19,707 19,406 8,812 6,105 4,007 
Rephasing 102,938 17,454 (347) (296) 924 
Proposed Programme 155,113 83,620 53,486 28,309 25,653 

 

4.2.12 The Capital schemes listed in appendix 1 are categorised as follows: 
 Annual Allocation – These schemes receive annual allocations either as a 

result of external funding, or because the capital investment is essential for 
the Council to maintain current service delivery or to meet statutory 
responsibilities. 

 Scheme started in previous years – These schemes are multi-year schemes 
that commenced prior to 2022/23. 

 New Bid – These are new schemes or schemes requiring additional funding 
for the 2022/23 capital programme or future years. 

 
4.2.13 The 2022/23 Capital Programme includes Schemes totaling £35.5m to be 

 funded from Prudential Borrowing, £8.5m of which are new additions to the 
  programme as detailed in Table 4. The annual revenue cost of funding the new   
 £35.5m of borrowing is approximately £2.99m per annum. 

 
4.2.14 A small number of the new capital schemes have ongoing revenue running   

Page 204



9 

costs totaling £0.331m. 
 
4.2.15  Investment Fund scheme, totaling £6m over 5 years is a new scheme 

proposed to allow funding of schemes already in the 5 year capital programme 
to be brought forward to 2022/23. In addition the allocation of capital funds to 
urgent scheme requests during the financial year e.g. sink holes in the roads. 
Cabinet are asked to consider delegating the approval of the allocation of £6m 
Investment Fund scheme to the Chief Finance Officer in consultation with the 
Portfolio Holder of Finance to enable schemes to be progressed as early as 
possible. 

 
4.3     Prudential Borrowing 
 
4.3.1 Table 5 highlights the funding streams for the programme, the majority are 

funded from prudential borrowing including Invest to Save Schemes (£78.6m).  
The borrowing classed as Invest to Save are included within the MTFS and 
longer term financial sustainability calculations as having income / budget 
reductions to offset the borrowing costs. The repayment of the main borrowing 
is added to the annual budget requirements. If invest to save schemes do not 
achieve the offset, the prudential borrowing costs are added to the budget 
requirement in the MTFS. 

4.3.2 Any borrowing which the Council undertakes is governed by the Treasury 
Management Strategy (TMS), which sets out an Authorised Limit and 

4.3.3 Operational Boundary to place a ceiling on overall borrowing. However, it 
should be noted that, these limits are calculated based upon the value of the 
approved capital programme, therefore if the level of the Capital Programme 
increases the upper value to which the Council can borrow increases in relation.  
In light of proposed investments / increasing capital expenditure detailed in this 
report, the Council needs to consider additional limits for the level of borrowing 
it feels is acceptable, such as the percentage of available resources that are 
committed to debt repayment and therefore are not available for the delivery of 
services. This debt exposure limit would have to include schemes classified as 
invest to save which in theory have the ability to repay their own debt charges 
as mentioned above, as this allows us to understand the worst case scenario if 
the schemes do not achieve. 

4.3.4 The operational boundary is set at £540m and the authorised limit for borrowing 
at £716m in the TMS for 2021/22.  The operational boundary is lower than the 
authorised limit to allow for unforeseen borrowing.  The current level of 
borrowing is £290m which is significantly lower than the operational limit.  As 
stated above though the limits increase as the programme increases. 

4.3.5 An alternative threshold for the operational boundary / borrowing limit could be 
calculated as a percentage of net revenue expenditure.  This ratio is shown with 
the TMS as the affordability indicator and is calculated net of invest to save 
schemes.  The indicator for 2021/22 is 9.07%.  If invest to save schemes are 

Page 205



10 

included as per the current programme and revenue budget the indicator 
increases to 11.28%.   

4.3.6 There is no external guidance on what the affordability indicator should be and 
CIFPA as the professional body have been questioned as to if there should be 
a range in which the affordability indicator should sit for a local authority i.e. 10 
– 15% but this has not been confirmed and remains with each individual 
authority to decide. 

4.3.7 The risks of committing to high levels of borrowing for the Council include:- 

 Having long term commitments to repay which reduce the level of funds to 
deliver services 

 Changing interest rates 
 Need to refinance in future years 

4.4 Alternatives Considered 

4.4.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced budget. The budget setting 
process is complex and must be undertaken in a planned way. It is equally 
important that assumptions used in the preparation of the budget are agreed, 
reasonable and consistently applied by all services. 

4.4.2 A number of alternative elements of the Capital Programme were considered 
in the development of the programme, the one which is presented is of the most 
strategic/community value and is aligned with the Council’s priorities and 
therefore forms the basis for consultation, on the understanding that any 
alternatives offered during that process will be considered. 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Costs and Budget Summary 

5.1.1 As the cost of the proposed Capital programme is greater than the capital 
receipts and external funding available, borrowing is required to fund the 
difference. This has an impact on the Council’s Revenue budget. This is 
included within the budget estimates and the gap in the Revenue Budget 
2022/23 to 2024/25 Cabinet papers. 

5.1.2 Borrowing requires repayment of both the principle sum borrowed and 
associated interest over a given number of years. The total budgeted cost of 
borrowing for 2022/23 is £22.4m, increasing to £24.9m in 2023/24. 

5.1.3 The Capital budget is funded from a number of sources: borrowing, capital 
receipts, revenue contribution to capital outlay and external 
funding/contributions. Borrowing has an implication for the Council’s revenue 
budget as the Council has to make provision to repay the cost of borrowing. 

Page 206



11 

5.1.4 The Council is able to borrow resources for capital schemes. The revenue 
implications of this option are that for every £1m of capital expenditure there is 
revenue costs to repay borrowing. Table 7 below provides details of the 
revenue costs to repay borrowing over different time scales.  

Years Annual Costs 
£’000 

6 203 
8 161 

11 127 
20 86 
40 61 

 
 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 Risk Implications  

6.1.1 There are a number of areas of the Council’s Capital Programme where risks 
to the projections contained in this report have been identified. The most 
significant of these are detailed below. 

6.1.2 By committing to capital spend funded via Prudential Borrowing the Local 
Authority is committing to the long term revenue costs of interest and capital 
repayments, the funding for which must be reflected in the revenue budget and 
MTFS. 

6.1.3 The forecast cost implications are based on the current estimated PWLB 
borrowing rates, however these are subject to change and may increase which 
would lead to additional revenue costs. 

 
6.1.4 The Invest to Save Schemes included in the Programme assume that the cost 

of borrowing will be covered by income generation or savings, however this is 
not guaranteed and needs to be monitored carefully. 

 
6.1.5 Externally funded schemes cannot start until confirmation of the required 

funding has been received. This is a particular risk where the scheme is reliant 
on external funding with the provisional budget being based on forecast income. 
Should the level of income not be received, the level of expenditure would need 
to be considered to allow the scheme to progress with a reduced budget. 

 
6.1.6 Ongoing impact of the Covid-19 pandemic – the budget assumptions for both 

Capital and Revenue budgets will be kept under review as more information 
becomes available on the ongoing impact of the pandemic on Council services. 

 

Page 207



12 

6.1.7 Health and Safety – the Capital Programme aims to mitigate any risks 
surrounding health and safety by ensuring Council assets are in a good state 
of repair. 

 
6.1.8 Climate Emergency and Sustainability – within the Capital Programme there 

are a number of schemes dedicated to Climate Emergency and Sustainability. 
 Climate Emergency – Carbon Neutral 
 GM Air Quality Monitoring 

6.2 Legal Implications 

6.2.1 The Council is legally obliged to set a balanced Revenue Budget. The revenue 
impact of the Capital Programme is included within the overall Revenue Budget 
for 2022/23 to 2024/25. 

 

Consultation 

 
7.1 The proposed Capital Programme for 2022/23 will be brought forward for 

consultation with Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 8th December 
2021. Consultation will also be undertaken with Township Committees. 
Following consultation the Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27 will be 
recommended by Cabinet on 10th February 2022 for approval at Budget Council 
on 23rd February 2022. 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8. Individual bid requests Reports Floor 2, Number 1 Riverside 

Email on request 

 

For Further Information Contact: Samantha Smith, Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk  

Tel : 01706 924198 

 

Page 208

mailto:Samantha.Smith@rochdale.gov.uk


DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Adult Care Disabled Facilities Grant The legislative framework governing DFGs is provided by the 'Housing 

Grants, Construction and Regeneration Act 1996'. Since 1990, local 

authorities have been under a statutory duty to provide grant aid to 

disabled people for a range of adaptations in their homes.

External Grant / Contribution 3,987        2,987        2,987        2,987        2,987        

3,987        2,987        2,987        2,987        2,987        TOTAL ADULT CARE

TOTAL (£000)

P
age 209



DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Children's Services Devolved Formula Capital Schools will develop and commission individual schemes to improve condition and suitability 

within their buildings with guidance and approval from the Council.

Academy conversions may reduce the Department for Education allocation in  future years.

External Grant / Contribution 445             445             445           445           445           

Children's Services New Place Planning Provision of additional school places to meet statutory duty through a programme of works 

combining internal remodelling, new build or demountable classroom units. 

Future years funding allocations determined by the Department for Education. Estimated figures 

and may change.

External Grant / Contribution 24,878        10,200        5,200        5,200        5,200        

Children's Services Schools Capital Condition 

Programme

Development of a programme of works to resolve major condition and improvement issues in 

school buildings in line with the Local Authority's Asset Management Strategy and Local Policy 

Statement.

Academy conversions may reduce the Department for Education allocation in future years.

External Grant / Contribution 3,684          1,808          1,808        1,808        1,808        

Children's Services Special Provision Capital Fund The special provision fund is to support local authorities to make capital investments in 

provision for pupils with special educational needs and disabilities. To be invested in new places 

and improvements to facilities for pupils with education, health and care (EHC) plans in 

mainstream and special schools, nurseries, colleges and other provision.

External Grant / Contribution 593             -              -            -            -            

Children's Services Early Years Capital Grant Provision of free early years education targeted at 2 year old children from lower income 

households.

External Grant / Contribution 19                

Children's Services High Needs Provision Capital 

Allocation

The High Needs Provision Capital Allocations (HNPCA) to support local authorities to 

deliver new places and improve existing provision for children and young people with 

Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND), particularly those with more complex needs, 

and for those pupils that require 

alternative provision, which we collectively refer to as ‘high needs’ provision.

External Grant / Contribution 578             

30,197        12,453        7,453        7,453        7,453        

TOTAL (£000)

TOTAL CHILDREN'S SERVICES

P
age 210



DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING SOURCE 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Economy Rochdale & Littleborough Flood Relief Scheme The River Roch catchment is the main river network in Rochdale Borough 

and is vulnerable to extensive flood risks affecting communities, 

businesses, town centres and infrastructure including power, rail and 

roads. The Environment Agency have identified the River Roch catchment 

as one of their regional priorities for their capital investment programme 

and propose a series of flood storage areas and improved defences to 

reduce the risk of serious flooding for over 1000 homes and businesses.

Prudential Borrowing 1,336 4,500 -             -             -             

Economy Milnrow town centre/Butterworth Hall Brook flood risk 

management

Working with the Environment Agency and United Utilities to identify and 

develop a Milnrow Drainage Strategy with solutions to reduce flood risk 

from surface water in Milnrow town centre and from Butterworth Hall 

Brook which affects property between Water Street and Dale Street. 

Proposals for Butterworth Hall Brook will include a future proposal for 

Flood Defence Grant in Aid working with the Environment Agency.

Prudential Borrowing 100            -             -             -             -             

Invest to Save 1,925        -             -             -             -             

External Grant / Contribution 2,000        -             -             -             -             

Economy Rail Corridor Strategy To support the delivery of physical regeneration projects around the 

Borough's 5 existing railway stations such as new housing and commercial 

space, park and ride, highway and public realm work as well as support 

feasibility work to develop a Masterplan and new station at Slattocks.  

Prudential Borrowing 1,000        -             2,000        -             -             

Economy Drake Street - Phases II & III This project aims to work with businesses and property owners to 

restructure the mix of uses, improve infrastructure and connectivity, 

increase footfall and promote independent retail and increased town 

centre living in the area.

Prudential Borrowing 200

Invest to Save 25,482 12,089 -             -             -             

External Grant / Contribution 12,972 -             -             -             -             

Economy Rochdale Town Hall restoration (phase 2) Town Hall (phase 2) is the part National Lottery Heritage Fund (NLHF) - an 

£8.95m funded project to restore the building. There is now an additional 

requirement needed to support the following:

- top up budget due to previous expenditure used for essential 

maintenance and improvements 

- NLHF round 1 approval was predicated upon RBC underwriting £3m of 

external funding yet to be secured. 

- cover for potential inflationary costs

- additional RDA Project Management, due diligence costs, and fees for 

specialist advice 

Prudential Borrowing 3,500 4,647 -             

Economy Rochdale Town Hall Square - phase 2 Further works within Rochdale Town Hall Square Prudential Borrowing 2,200 4,700

Economy Stakehill Industrial Estate This funding is to support the ongoing work for the proposed Stakehill 

Business Improvement District (BID). This would be as match funding for 

implementation of physical schemes as determined by the BID Steering 

Group.  

Prudential Borrowing 20 -             -             -             -             

Economy East Lancashire Railway Project is to support ELR extension into Castleton to connect direct rail 

access to mainline giving accessibility to visitors from across northern 

England together with investment at Heywood station.  The ELR mainline 

project will be a landmark heritage attraction for the Borough with 

significant physical and economic benefits for regeneration of Castleton 

District centre.

Prudential Borrowing 300 -             -             -             -             

Economy Northern Gateway - Feasibility Budget required for feasibility work to develop the Northern Gateway 

proposals further.

Prudential Borrowing 109

Economy Upperbanks The Upperbanks scheme is a key regeneration priority for the Council and 

is an important component of the on-going regeneration of Rochdale 

town centre. The development will provide two new apartment blocks 

providing 242 high quality apartments for rent, together with a 146 bed 

Hampton by Hilton hotel. 

TOTAL (£000)

Economy Solar Farm To provide match funding for an externally funded project to construct an 

approved solar farm with associated infrastructure on Council owned land 

P
age 211



Economy Rochdale Town Centre 3 year strategy Funding will support the delivery of interventions identified in the strategy 

including physical projects (property improvements & public realm 

works), economic initiatives to complement the current business rates 

reduction scheme, the development of strategies and interventions for 

upper Yorkshire Street and Water Street, and promoting development 

opportunities.

Prudential Borrowing 350 1,000

Economy Link Road Phase 2 South Heywood Area Wide Improvement Programme proposals for a new 

link road and network improvement from the M62 junction 19 through 

Heywood to Pilsworth, which will create the opportunity for delivering 

investment in housing and employment growth. £3m budget is match 

funding re a bid to the National Productivity Investment Fund.

Capital Receipts 2,421 -             -             -             -             

Economy Town Centre East Feasibility This scheme will support capital investment in the Rochdale Riverside 

(Phase1) retail and leisure scheme

Prudential Borrowing 335 -             -             -             -             

Economy Property Growth Fund Acquisition and development of property with the primary aims of 

strategic regeneration, business growth, job creation and enhancing social 

or economic value, with secondary aims of portfolio diversification and 

the achievement of a financial return in order to cover the costs of 

investment and provide for whole-life asset maintenance costs and future 

fluctuations in property investment income

Invest to Save 12,518 7,911 20,000 -             -             

Economy Asset Development Fund To create jobs and build the local economy by buying 

properties/developing properties.

Capital Receipts 1,515

Economy Rochdale Flood innovation programme The project will deliver a neighbourhood flood and climate resilience project 

focused on Littleborough and Wardleworth. It will deliver complementary 

activities to the Environment Agency Flood Alleviation Project for the River Roch 

through reducing and improving management of residual flood risks from fluvial 

and surface water sources to homes, businesses and community assets. The 

project is funded as part of a national programme of 25 projects included in the 

Environment Agency/Defra Flood and Coastal Resilience and Innovation 

Programme. 

External Grant / Contribution 2,708 957 876 815 717

Economy Industrial Units - Capital Programme To carry out urgent works across the Council’s industrial estates (118 units across 

10 estates) to bring the units to a compliant and lettable standard. 
Prudential Borrowing 1,703 1,047 812 -             -             

Economy Towns Fund - New Homes Central Rochdale Land acquisition and remediation prior to new house building by RBH & private 

developers

External Grant / Contribution
1,000        853            -             

-             -             

Economy Towns Fund - Heritage Skills Studio Development of training facility as part of the Town Hall restoration External Grant / Contribution -             180            137            -             -             

Economy Towns Fund - ST Mary's Gate

A Highway improvement scheme which addresses the lack of available surface 

crossing points across St Mary’s Gate which is a dual carriageway road around the 

Town Centre. The scheme is centred on providing sustainable accessibility to the 

Town Centre from the residential areas on the outskirts of the Town Centre as well 

as Rochdale Infirmary by promoting vastly improved walking and cycling facilities

External Grant / Contribution

-             2,035        -             

-             -             

Economy Towns Fund - Strategic Gateway Sites Land remediation of CPO’d sites prior to new housing  External Grant / Contribution 396            61              -             -             -             

Economy Towns Fund - AMPI New Training and research facility to be located at Kingsway Business park External Grant / Contribution 4,915        6,388        3,697        -             -             

Economy Towns Fund - Kingsway Delivery of the units will complement the adjacent Logic at Kingsway scheme, 

completed in 2019, which delivered small units within Kingsway Business Park as 

well as strengthening the offering of the strategic employment site itself. The 420 

acre Kingsway Business Park is the key employment site for the Borough and 

neighbouring areas. With 70% of the workforce living within Rochdale and 

generating a GVA of over £30m per annum, the Business Park is key to unlocking 

the full potential of Rochdale

External Grant / Contribution

500            -             -             

-             -             

Economy Towns Fund - Neighbourhoods New Homes on former Central Retail park External Grant / Contribution 1,200        1,200        -             -             -             

Economy Rochdale Town Centre Slopes Restoration The Slopes between the Town Hall and the Parish Church form the core to the 

historic town centre. These Slopes have been neglected and vandalised for 

decades and are now in a state of extreme disrepair. Slopes will be improved, 

restored and made safe.

Prudential Borrowing

1,000        1,000        -             

-             -             

81,705      47,568      28,522      815            717            TOTAL ECONOMY

P
age 212



DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Neighbourhoods Replacement Parks/Street Machinery The programme is a rolling replacement scheme for replacement of the Council's 550 plus pieces of 

machinery. The programme aims to replace assets when they have exceeded the most cost-effective 

period of operation.

Prudential Borrowing 120 120 120 120 120

Neighbourhoods Rights Of Way The programme is a rolling scheme for carrying out the statutory function of maintaining the 

Council's Rights of Way network. 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 

Outlay

80 80 80 80 80

Neighbourhoods Upgrade Play Equipment To maintain within legislative requirements and guidelines the current level of Fixed Play provision 

across the borough.

Revenue Contribution to Capital 

Outlay

75 75 75 75 75

Prudential Borrowing 2,946 22 392 472 964

Capital Receipts 44

Invest to Save 170 1,700 180 1,156 1,156

Neighbourhoods Waste Bin Replacement Programme Scheme is to replace wheelie bins which are no longer fit for purpose, and increased demand for 

new bins as they were first introduced in 1991 and have an estimated  life of 10 years.  The scheme 

may also increase recycling rates which in turn would reduces the cost of waste disposal.

Prudential Borrowing 293 298 303 303 303

Neighbourhoods New Cemetery Sites Toilet provision in Denehurst Park and to cover the cost of replacing the cremators at Rochdale 

Cemetery. 

Prudential Borrowing 833 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Section 106 To facilitate the completion of the Hollin, Alkrington, Balderstone Park, Stansfield and Robinson's 

Common play schemes

External Grant / Contribution 42 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Highways Investment Continuing investment in Rochdale’s Highways Infrastructure, across roads and footpaths. Prudential Borrowing 1,320 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Local Transport Plan To continue the aspirations of the Rochdale Highways Capital Programme and be more effective in 

identifying and responding to the Local Transport Plan shared priorities of Safety, Air Quality, 

Congestion and Accessibility. 

External Grant / Contribution 2,714 2,714 2,714 2,714 2,714

Neighbourhoods Compulsory Purchase Order Programme Acquisition of private land and buildings where current owner fails to bring asset into use either 

blighting the area or preventing further economic/physical development. Compulsory Purchase 

Order powers will be used but an offer must first be made to purchase the asset through 

negotiation. Budget is required to fund the purchase price or compensation, staffing costs, legal and 

valuation fees (external and internal). Subsequent disposal of some assets will offset some of the 

costs.  

Prudential Borrowing 2,030 2,419 1,000 1,000 1,000

Neighbourhoods Delivering High Value Housing The programme aims to deliver over 1,000 new higher value homes in the borough over a ten year 

period, through proactive site assembly and promotion of development opportunities, using council 

and privately owned land. The aim is to facilitate the development of more higher value housing in 

order to attract and retain economically active households. This will generate Council Tax, section 

106 and New Homes Bonus revenue to support local services, as well as attracting more disposal 

income to the borough, retaining local spend and boosting place-based regeneration. 

Prudential Borrowing 1,150 1,705 -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Housing Standards Fund Scheme proposes to improve private sector dwellings & environments. Interventions include

-emergency repairs to owner-occupied properties

-works in default to private rented properties

-corrective works to houses in multiple occupation

-tenancy/rent bonds for residents desperate to access decent accommodation unable to access 

social housing

- bring empty properties and vacant land back into use

- tackle fuel poverty and energy efficiency issues in the private housing stock   

Prudential Borrowing 800 800 800 800 800

Neighbourhoods Customer Transformation Programme It has been agreed to progress the Council’s “Customer Transformation Programme” as a delivery 

mechanism bringing together all customer related transformation including redesign of systems 

under one programme of work, realising financial and non financial benefits. A phased approach is 

being proposed. Phase1 - detail analysis over 6 months, identify options & develop a detail business 

case with precise costs and benefits. Phase 2 - implementation phase funded via capital

Prudential Borrowing 199 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme To refresh, on a rolling programme the ICT estate. To remove the need for individual Services & 

Directorates to hold funds related to ICT equipment. Preventing purchasing of non-strategic & 

inappropriate ICT.  To control and make the spend on ICT equipment the most efficient and cost 

effective by maintaining a relatively small annual amount as opposed to large investments every 7/8 

years

Prudential Borrowing 874 444 444 444 444

TOTAL (£000)

Neighbourhoods Vehicle Replacement Programme To replace existing vehicles at the end of their optimum asset life.  Remove vehicles from the 

programme due to changes in requirements and add new requirements into acquisition and 

replacement schedule.

Partially Invest to Save scheme relating to decision to purchase fleet vehicles rather than hire.  

P
age 213



Neighbourhoods ICT Programmes (Staff) To deliver the Council's ICT projects utilising existing ICT staff, to reduce the Capital required each 

year. The programmes deliver a variety of objectives for each business area and are assessed against 

business cases to check that they are in line with corporate objectives

Prudential Borrowing 500 500 500 500 500

Neighbourhoods Service Desk System Replacement ICT Services use Microsoft Service Manager to log and manage ICT issues and service requests. This 

system will soon become unsupported by Microsoft and requires replacement. The current system 

is ineffective and there is the opportunity to improve performance through a new system which 

would provide features such as an online customer portal and automation of internal processes. The 

Members Enquiries system is also managed from this system and also encounters similar problems.

Prudential Borrowing 100 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Office365 Significant programme of work which will impact every part of the organisation and its 

partners/agencies/suppliers in migrating the Council from the old existing Microsoft solution to the 

new required solution which will ensure Council Services have the necessary business tools to 

perform duties and functions within a secure and up-to-date IT infrastructure.

Prudential Borrowing 225 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Asset Management Group To adequately maintain the property portfolio and ensure that the Council comply to any statutory, 

and Health & Safety regulations. The scheme also aims to reduce the maintenance backlog and 

improve the reduced property holding to accommodation standards. 

Prudential Borrowing 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750 1,750

Neighbourhoods Link4Life - Whole Life Costing To adequately maintain the Link4Life property portfolio and to ensure that the Council, as landlord, 

complies with any statutory and health & safety regulations.

Prudential Borrowing 800 800 800 800 800

Neighbourhoods Burglary Reduction Scheme Implement alleygating schemes and gating orders on alleys to reduce the number of burglaries and 

improve neighbourhood safety.

Prudential Borrowing 100 100 100 100 100

Neighbourhoods Climate Emergency - Carbon Neutral The Council has declared a climate emergency and will work towards becoming carbon neutral by 

2038.  This investment of £5M over the next five years is a clear statement of intent that the Council 

takes this matter seriously and is prepared to invest in driving initiatives across the areas of energy, 

travel and transport, homes, workplaces and public buildings, consumption and production of 

resources  and our natural environment.

Prudential Borrowing 1,519 1,000 1,000 950             -              

Neighbourhoods Number One Riverside revolving doors Replace existing revolving doors at Number One Riverside to increase access and reduce 

breakdowns. Create single point of entry for all users of the building reducing inequality and 

enhancing inclusivity. 

Prudential Borrowing 120

The South Heywood Junction 19 scheme comprises two main elements. These are;

a)      the construction of a 2.2km Link Road from J19 of the M62 to Pilsworth Road to improve 

access to the existing South Heywood Employment Area, and 
b)      the associated development of up to 1,000 new homes, approximately 1.45 million sq ft of 

employment space, a new primary school and village centre retail. 
Planning and Licensing Committee were minded to approve the planning application in March 2018, 

subject to the completion of necessary legal documents.   

Neighbourhoods Bowlee Free School Funding of the proposed Free School is provided via a fixed budget based on pupil numbers, 12% of 

the budget is allocated to external works; this does not include highway accessibility. It is the 

responsibility of the Local Authority to provide a site with sufficient accessibility. In addition to direct 

vehicular access from Heywood Old Road, cycle / pedestrian routes from the adjacent Langley estate 

directly to the Free School site are required to support this development at the planning application 

stage.

Prudential Borrowing 600

Neighbourhoods CCTV Upgrade Essential improvements to the boroughs CCTV monitoring service to move the monitoring centre 

and necessary improvements to the camera infrastructure to maintain an effective community 

safety provision. 

Prudential Borrowing 159 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Townships Capital Programme An annual allocation of Capital Funds allocated on a pro rata basis and agreed by each of the 5 

Township Committees

Prudential Borrowing 400 400 400 400 400

Prudential Borrowing 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851

External Grant / Contribution 339 339 339 339 339

Neighbourhoods Highways Fleet - In-house Service The purchase of plant & equipment  (eg gully cleaners, gritters & low loaders etc) necessary to 

undertake the in house delivery of reactive highway maintenance commencing April 2022. 

Revenue Contribution to Capital 

Outlay

300 -              -              -              -              

Neighbourhoods Highways Fees To investigae and develop proposals linked to the Traffic Calming motion including professional fees Capital Receipts 100             100             100             100             100             

Neighbourhoods GM ONE Network Following on from GM Full Fibre project where new fibre optic cabling is laid across GM, GMCA are 

taking a collective approach to procuring and running their WAN services through building own 

platform

Prudential Borrowing 665             395             -              -              -              

33,218       18,612       13,948       14,954       14,496       TOTAL NEIGHBOURHOODS

Neighbourhoods Highways Steady State Fund To maintain the current condition, a certain amount of funding is required each year to achieve 

“steady state”. Steady state is where the network is maintained at its current level and the amount 

of highway maintenance balances the annual level deterioration

Neighbourhoods Junction 19 External Grant / Contribution 9,000

P
age 214



DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Public Health Link4Life Capital projects Alterations to building configurations and associated equipment at 

Rochdale Leisure Centre and Heywood Sports Village. 

Hollingworth Lake developments.

Prudential Borrowing 2,995        -         -         -         -         

Public Health Link4Life equipment On-going update and replacement of leisure centre equipment across 

the borough. 

Prudential Borrowing 1,011        -         576        100        -         

4,006        -         576        100        -         

TOTAL (£000)

TOTAL PUBLIC HEALTH

P
age 215



DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DESCRIPTION FUNDING SOURCE 2022/23 2023/24 2024/25 2025/26 2026/27

Resources Investment Fund To allow funding of Capital Schemes to be brought forward into the 

2022/23 programme and allocation of capital funds to urgent scheme 

requests during the financial year e.g. sink holes in the roads. Approval 

for spend to be delegated to the Chief Finance Officer, and Portfolio 

holder.

Prudential Borrowing 2,000        2,000        -         2,000     -         

2,000        2,000        -         2,000     

TOTAL (£000)

TOTAL RESOURCES

P
age 216



                 Appendix 2 
Capital rephasing 2021/22 
 

Scheme 21/22 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 21/22 
Revised 
Budget 

 22/23 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 22/23 
Revised 
Budget 

Disabled Facilities Grant 3,829 (1,000) 2,829  2,633 1,000 3,633 
New Place Planning 27,833 (20,000) 7,833  5,200 15,000 20,200 
School’s Capital Condition Programme 5,321 (500) 4,821  1,808 500 2,308 
Special Provision Capital Fund 593 (593) -  - 593 593 
River Roch Flood Storage 1,096 (86) 1,010  1,250 86 1,336 
Stakehill Industrial Estate 46 (20) 26  - 20 20 
Asset Development Fund 5,288 (3,720) 1,568  - 3,720 3,720 
Property Growth Fund 23,610 (19,795) 3,815  20,000 19,795 39,795 
Milnrow TC Butterworth Hall Flood Risk 
Management 

100 (100) -  - 100 100 

East Lancashire Railway 326 (226) 100  - 226 226 
Heywood South/Junction 19 2,721 (2,421) 300  - 2,421 2,421 
Rail Corridor Strategy 4,111 (1,000) 3,111  - 1,000 1,000 
Drake Street Phase 2 1,055 (100) 955  100 100 200 
Rochdale Town Centre 3 Year Strategy 702 (350) 352  - 350 350 
Office 365 450 (225) 225  - 225 225 
New Cemetery Sites 1,640 (800) 840  - 800 800 
Section 106 – Environmental Management 1,846 (42) 1,804  - 42 42 
Vehicle Replacement Programme 2,261 (1,019) 1,242  1,839 1,019 2,858 
Service Desk Replacement 110 (50) 60  - 50 50 
Climate Emergency 1,019 (519) 500  1,000 519 1,519 
Customer Transformation Programme 929 (129) 800  - 800 800 
CCTV Upgrade 522 (192) 330  - 192 192 
Link4Life Capital Project 4,733 (3,036) 1,697  1,770 3,036 4,806 
Total Quarter 1 90,534 (56,258) 34,276  35,650 51,258 86,908 

 

P
age 217



Scheme 21/22 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 21/22 
Revised 
Budget 

 22/23 
Current 
Budget 

Rephasing 22/23 
Revised 
Budget 

Early Years Capital Grant 19 (19) -  - 19 19 
New Place Planning 8,798 (5,268) 3,530  20,200 5,268 25,468 
Schools Capital Condition Programme 4,860 (1,376) 3,484  2,308 1,376 3,684 
High Needs Provision Capital Allocations 1,157 (578) 579  - 578 578 
East Lancashire Railway 100 (74) 26  226 74 300 
Northern Gateway 359 (109) 250  - 109 109 
ICT Infrastructure Refresh Programme 566 (100) 466  444 100 544 
Vehicle Replacement Programme 1,242 (337) 905  2,858 337 3,195 
Number one Riverside revolving doors 120 (120) -  - 120 120 
Junction 19 23,791 (9,000) 14,791  - 9,000 9,000 
Compulsory Purchase Order Programme 1,628 (600) 1,028  1,430 600 2,030 
Accelerated Housing 1,561 (500) 1,061  650 500 1,150 
Customer Transformation Programme 800 (70) 730  129 70 199 
Bowlee Free School 1,280 (600) 680  - 600 600 
Town Centre Schemes  184 184  - - - 
Property Growth Fund  76 76  - - - 
Total Quarter 2 46,281 (18,491) 27,790  28,245 18,491 46,736 

P
age 218



APPENDIX 3 - NEW CAPITAL SCHEMES

DIRECTORATE SCHEME NAME SCHEME DETAIL FUNDING SOURCE

2022/23

£'000

2023/24

£'000

2024/25

£'000

2025/26

£'000

2026/27

£'000

Total Prudential 

Borrowing

£'000

Total 

Revenue 

Costs

£'000

Economy Rochdale Flood innovation programme

The project will deliver a neighbourhood flood and climate resilience project focused on 

Littleborough and Wardleworth. It will deliver complementary activities to the 

Environment Agency Flood Alleviation Project for the River Roch through reducing and 

improving management of residual flood risks from fluvial and surface water sources to 

homes, businesses and community assets. The project is funded as part of a national 

programme of 25 projects included in the Environment Agency/Defra Flood and Coastal 

Resilience and Innovation Programme. 

External Grant / Contribution 2,708 957 876 815 717

-                      -            

Economy Industrial Units - Capital Programme To carry out urgent works across the Council’s industrial estates (118 units across 10 

estates) to bring the units to a compliant and lettable standard. 
Prudential Borrowing 1,703 1,047 812 -            -            

218 TBC

Economy Towns Fund - New Homes Central Rochdale Land acquisition and remediation prior to new house building by RBH & private 

developers

External Grant / Contribution
1,000        853            -            

-            -            
-                      -            

Economy Towns Fund - Heritage Skills Studio Development of training facility as part of the Town Hall restoration External Grant / Contribution -            180            137            -            -            -                      35

Economy Towns Fund - ST Mary's Gate A Highway improvement scheme which addresses the lack of available surface crossing 

points across St Mary’s Gate which is a dual carriageway road around the Town Centre. 

The scheme is centred on providing sustainable accessibility to the Town Centre from 

the residential areas on the outskirts of the Town Centre as well as Rochdale Infirmary 

by promoting vastly improved walking and cycling facilities

External Grant / Contribution

-            2,035        -            

-            -            

-                      126

Economy Towns Fund - Strategic Gateway Sites Land remediation of CPO’d sites prior to new housing  External Grant / Contribution 396            61              -            -            -            -                      51

Economy Towns Fund - AMPI New Training and research facility to be located at Kingsway Business park External Grant / Contribution 4,915        6,388        3,697        -            -            -                      -            

Economy Towns Fund - Kingsway

Delivery of the units will complement the adjacent Logic at Kingsway scheme, completed 

in 2019, which delivered small units within Kingsway Business Park as well as 

strengthening the offering of the strategic employment site itself. The 420 acre Kingsway 

Business Park is the key employment site for the Borough and neighbouring areas. With 

70% of the workforce living within Rochdale and generating a GVA of over £30m per 

annum, the Business Park is key to unlocking the full potential of Rochdale

External Grant / Contribution

500            -            -            

-            -            

-                      -            

Economy Towns Fund - Neighbourhoods New Homes on former Central Retail park External Grant / Contribution 1,200        1,200        -            -            -            -                      -            

Economy Rochdale Town Centre Slopes Restoration

The Slopes between the Town Hall and the Parish Church form the core to the historic 

town centre. These Slopes have been neglected and vandalised for decades and are now 

in a state of extreme disrepair. Slopes will be improved, restored and made safe.

Prudential Borrowing

1,000        1,000        -            

-            -            

123 65

Prudential Borrowing 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 2,851 874 -            

External Grant / Contribution 339 339 339 339 339 -                      -            

Neighbourhoods GM ONE Network Following on from GM Full Fibre project where new fibre optic cabling is laid 

across GM, GMCA are taking a collective approach to procuring and running 

their WAN services through building own platform

Prudential Borrowing 665 395 -            -            -            89                       54             

Neighbourhoods Additional ICT Infrastructure Refresh To refresh, on a rolling programme the ICT estate. To remove the need for 

individual Services & Directorates to hold funds related to ICT equipment. 

Preventing purchasing of non-strategic & inappropriate ICT.  To control and 

make the spend on ICT equipment the most efficient and cost effective by 

maintaining a relatively small annual amount as opposed to large investments 

every 7/8 years

Prudential Borrowing 330 -            -            -            -            20                       -            

Neighbourhoods Highway Fees To investigae and develop proposals linked to the Traffic Calming motion 

including professional fees

Capital receipts 100            100            100            100            100            -                      TBC

Resources Investment Fund To allow funding of Capital Schemes to be brought forward into the 2022/23 

programme and allocation of capital funds to urgent scheme requests during 

the financial year e.g. sink holes in the roads. Approval for spend to be 

delegated to the Chief Finance Officer, Leader and Portfolio holder.

Prudential Borrowing 2,000        2,000        -            2,000        -            368 -            

19,707      19,406      8,812        6,105        4,007        1,692                 331           TOTAL NEW CAPITAL SCHEMES

Neighbourhoods Highways Steady State Fund To maintain the current condition, a certain amount of funding is required each 

year to achieve “steady state”. Steady state is where the network is maintained 

at its current level and the amount of highway maintenance balances the annual 

level deterioration

P
age 219



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 23rd November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children’s Services and 
Education 

Report Author Fay Davies 

 Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025 
 

 
Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 

The new Edgar Wood Academy has opened for 2021 year 7 intake in 
Middleton. The second new mainstream Secondary school for Rochdale 
borough, which will be run by the Star Academies trust, is expected to open 
in 2023 in Littleborough although timelines will not be set until planning 
permission is approved. The new Secondary SEN school, which will be run 
by the New Bridge Trust, is now scheduled to be open in 2023. 
 
This report covers details of the new school and capacity of school places in 
the secondary school sector. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
2.3 
 

To note the delivery timescales and spaces in the three new schools; The 
Edgar Wood Academy in Middleton, the Littleborough Star Leadership 
Academy and the Heywood SEN school. 
 
To note that current pupil forecasts, and timelines on the new schools, 
indicate the council’s ability to meet its statutory duty. This is dependent on 
current timelines indicated by the Department for Education’s Capital and 
Free School teams working on the new schools. 
 
To note on-going inflow of pupils, that has increased since the start of the 
easing of the pandemic lockdown, are causing significant challenges to 
Secondary schools that are at or close to capacity. 
 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 

The council has a statutory duty to offer every pupil living in the borough, who 
applies, a Secondary school place. Where the council offers a school place 

Page 220

Agenda Item 12



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

that is over the statutory “safe walking distance” for the age of that child the 
council is required to provide free school transport. Because bus transport in 
the area is provided through Transport for Greater Manchester, any child 
offered a school place, which is over the statutory distance criteria, is offered 
a free bus pass that is provided from council funds. The council receives no 
central government funding for school bus transport. 
 
The council does receive Basic Need funding to provide additional school 
places for both permanent and temporary school building expansions and 
bulge classes. The allocation of Basic Need funding from central government 
is reported annually to the council Cabinet and the report this year was 
approved on 31st March 2021. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1  
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Contingency plans for Secondary school intake were last reported to Cabinet 
on 29th September 2020. For 2019 and 2020 intakes additional needed 
capacity was delivered by existing schools taking bulge classes, which were 
funded through Basic Need where capital works were required. 
 
For 2021 intake the severe Secondary school place shortage was local to the 
Middleton area and some surplus was forecast for Rochdale central schools. 
The difficulty in travelling times from Middleton to Rochdale centre meant that 
offering surplus places in Rochdale centre to families in Middleton was not 
deemed a viable option. Consequently council officers worked closely with 
the Altus Trust and the Department for Education to produce plans and 
contingencies to deliver the needed places in a temporary location. Additional 
bulge places were also offered at four existing schools. 
 
In September 2021 the Edgar Wood Academy opened with 4 forms of entry, 
120 pupil, capacity at a temporary site at Hopwood Hall College Campus in 
Middleton. The Permanent site is due to open at a site close to Bowlee on 
Heywood Old Road, Middleton, for September 2022. 
 
In September 2021 Wardle Academy also had a major building extension to 
provide 100 additional places; 50 for 2021 and 50 for 2022 intakes.  
 
Heywood and Middleton 
 
Because of the usual travel of pupils between Heywood and Middleton these 
areas are considered together. Available places and forecasts for pupils 
numbers are shown in figure 1 showing the expectation currently that schools 
in the Heywood and Middleton area will be at capacity despite the opening of 
the Edgar Wood Academy. 
 

Page 221



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 

 
Figure 1: Forecast for Places and expected pupils in the combined Heywood and Middleton area 
 
Admission numbers for the next intake year are shown in the table below. 
School Pupil Admission Number for 2022 
Newhouse Academy 210 
Holy Family RC & CE College 150 
Middleton Technology School 270 
Cardinal Langley RC High School 210 
St. Anne's Academy 180 
Edgar Wood Academy 180 
Total 1200 

Table 1 Places at Heywood and Middleton schools for 2022 
 
Pennine and Rochdale 
 
There has been a shortage of places in the popular Pennine Secondary 
schools for some time. It is expected that additional capacity created at 
Wardle Academy for 2021 and 2022 intakes will be filled. In the combined 
Pennine and Rochdale areas there is, on average, a 9% drop in pupils 
attending Rochdale LA maintained schools between year 6 and year 7. This 
is predominantly pupils choosing to travel to private, independent, grammar 
schools, or schools in other local authority areas. This drop in pupils does 
change year to year between 8% and 11% and therefore out of borough 
factors can cause inaccuracy in the forecast.  
 

Page 222



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 
 

 
Figure 2: Secondary Intake forecast for Pennine and Rochdale 
 
The forecast shows insufficient places available in existing schools if the new 
Littleborough Star Academy does not open for 2023, but the new school, on 
current forecasts, should be able to accommodate the forecasted number of 
pupils from 2023/24 to 2026/27. 
 
School Pupil Admission Number for 2022 
Hollingworth Academy 270 
Wardle Academy 290 
St.Cuthbert's RC High 240 
Kingsway Park High 270 
Matthew Moss High 240 
Oulder Hill School 300 
Falinge Park High School 270 
Total 1880 

Table 2: Places at Pennine and Rochdale schools for 2022 
 
Other considerations 
 
In-year applications for places either after the start of year 7 or in higher year 
groups have been rising for some years in both the Primary sector and 
Secondary Sector. 
 

Page 223



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 
 
4.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.17 
 
 
 
4.18 
 
 
 
 
4.19 
 
 
 
4.20 
 
 
 

 
 
In total in the 2020/21 academic year almost 300 additional pupils were placed 
in Rochdale schools after the start to term. This does cause significant 
difficulties, as those additional pupils mostly arrive into the same few schools 
that carry spaces at the start of term. 
  
Many of our Secondary schools are now at capacity in some or all year 
groups. Last year Secondary schools, accepted on-roll after the October 
school census, an additional 88 secondary pupils (net). While this is 
something the borough has seen before at Primary level, it has never 
happened previously at Secondary. This includes 26 pupils arriving after the 
start of their final year of school (year 11).  
 
As detailed above Rochdale sees a net loss of children at Secondary 
transition and this has varied year to year depending on factors outside the 
borough. In 2019 the popular Oldham Crompton House school completed a 
major extension and increased its intake by 50%. Next year (2022) a new 
school will open in Oldham offering additional places.  
 
Heywood SEN School 
 
On the 29th October 2019 Cabinet approved the release of the site at 
Heywood Sports Village for use for the new SEN school being delivered by 
the Department for Education. 
 
The New Bridge Trust, who run special and autism specialist schools in 
Oldham were awarded the contract to run the new school and Rochdale RANs 
service are now working with the trust to integrate the New Bridge offer into 
the suit of services provided within Rochdale. 
 
Timescales on the delivery of the new SEN school currently indicate planning 
permission will be sought before the end of 2021, with the new school opening 
for September 2023. 
 

Page 224



 
 
4.21 
 
 
 

The New Bridge Trust have indicated that once the school opens a school 
naming competition will be run and the young people attending the school will 
be asked to choose the new school name. 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity. 
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met 
from the Dedicated Schools Grant.   
 
Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need 
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum 
 
Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged 
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places 
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have 
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short 
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable 
longer term. 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 
 

The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the 
Council Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every 
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the 
predicted need.   
 
Provision of sufficient Secondary school places, within the new school 
buildings that are being delivered through the centrally managed Free school 
programme, are not under control of the local authority, but because the 
statutory duty to provide places resides with the local authority then 
consequently the local authority needs to be ready to work with local partners 
to meet the needs of its residents if required. 
 
The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section 
above. 

  
Consultation 

 

Page 225



7.1 
 
 
7.2 

In order to open the new Littleborough school the Star Academies trust need 
to run a statutory consultation to seek stakeholder views. 
 
Any additional places created through building works are required to go 
through the statutory planning consultation process. 

 
Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 
8.   

 

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies, , 
fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

Page 226



 

Report to Cabinet 
 

Date of Meeting 23rd November 2021 
Portfolio Cabinet Member for 

Children’s Services and 
Education 

Report Author Fay Davies 

 Public/Private Document Public 
 

 

Need for Primary School Places 2022-25 
 

Executive Summary 
 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 

Nationwide there was a notable drop in applications for Primary school for the 
September 2021 intake. Birth rate data from 2016/17 indicated that Rochdale 
should have a peak in births for this intake, similar to that seen for the 2017/18 
reception year intake. However, along with national trends, early indications 
are that Reception intakes have decreased and they are forecasted to 
continue to do so for the next few years. It is thought that school starts have 
been affected by both the pandemic (by stopping families from moving) and 
Brexit. 
 
Inflows of pupils arriving into the borough after the start of Reception intake, 
and in higher year groups, have been higher than ever since January 2021, 
leading to significant pressures in older primary school year groups. These 
‘in-year’ school applications plateaued towards the end of the 2019/20 due to 
the pandemic, but have bounced back up to be above previous levels. 

 
Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
2.3 
 
 
 
2.4 
 

That Cabinet approve the opening of consultations for the provision of two 
new schools to be provided via the Free School Presumption route for 
Heywood South and Rochdale South. Details of the Free School Presumption 
are set out at section 4.17 onwards and detailed in the link at section 8 below. 
 
Approve the bulge class at Hollin Primary School in Middleton for 2022 and 
2023 school intakes as required.  
 
Approve consultation with Middleton stakeholders to seek further temporary 
capacity for 2023/24 with the expectation of expansion of the Primary school 
estate through the Prescribed Alterations procedure (see link in section 8). 
 
Note that falling birth rates nationally and in some areas within the borough 
(Rochdale NW) may require removal of some Primary school capacity. Any 

Page 227

Agenda Item 13



 consultation or decisions on this will be put before Cabinet for approval at a 
later date. 

 
Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
 
 
3.5 

The council has a statutory duty to provide education and school places to all 
school aged children living in the borough and consequently has a duty to 
plan adequately for predicted pupil numbers. 
 
Under the Education Act 1996, section 14(1) the Local Authority has a duty to 
secure sufficient school places and is also the strategic commissioner for new 
school places in its area. 
 
 
A local authority shall exercise their functions under this legislation to 
contribute towards the spiritual, moral, mental and physical development of 
the community by securing that efficient primary education, and secondary 
education and, in the case of a local authority in England, further education, 
are available to meet the needs of the population of their area. 
 
 
Current housing development plans along with possible housing allocations 
defined in the Places For Everyone, PFE (currently still under consultation) 
dictate that pupil numbers in Rochdale may continue to grow in some localities 
and plans must be put in place to create the needed school capacity.  
 
Drops in applications for Reception intake following national trends have 
started to affect forecasts for some area, Rochdale NW in particular. 

 
Key Points for Consideration 

 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
 
 

Heywood 
Heywood appears to have suffered a drop in applications along with national 
trends. It is not obvious whether this is temporary or more permanent issue. 
New housing completions in Heywood have decreased recently but 1200 new 
houses coming forward at the junction 19 ‘South Heywood’ development will 
require a new school to be delivered through the Free School Presumption 
route. The estimated new pupils from this number of houses is 300. Timing of 
the new school will be crucial to maintain sufficient places as the housing 
comes forward in south Heywood. A consultation process on starting the 
Presumption process needs to be run to help inform the required school 
specification document, this is not the formal statutory consultation required 
to be undertaken under section 10 of the Academies Act 2010.  
 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Reception 
Places 
Needed  

53 spare 35 spare 67 spare 78 spare  

Page 228



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
4.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Plans Discontinue 
bulge class at 
Harwood Park 

 Consideration must be taken on how much spare 
capacity is too much. Monitoring of the rate of 
building and pupils from the South Heywood 
development will inform any decision to reduce 
spare school capacity. 

Future 
Issues   

New housing coming forward in South Heywood 
will require a new 1 form entry school. 

 
In-year new arrivals for Key Stage 2 have been an issue and Woodland 
Primary created an additional year 4 class in 2020. 
 
Middleton 
Forecasts show that in Middleton additional places are needed from 2022/23 
to 2024/25. Middleton has high levels of in-flow and significant shortages of 
places are expected without additional capacity. During the 2020/21 academic 
year 34 additional pupils arrived on-roll in key stage 1 classes after the start 
of the school year just in Middleton. 
 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Reception 
Places 
Needed 

10 places needed 51 places needed 5 place spare 40 spare 

Plans Provide a second and third year of 
temporary bulge classes at Hollin Primary    

Future Issues  Permanent expansion of school may be needed in central 
Middleton. 

 
In September 2018 and 2019 Reception year started with 62 and 85 spare 
places respectively. This amount of spare capacity caused significant issues 
with school financing locally. There are now 28 spare places in the 2018 intake 
and 55 spare places in the 2019 intake. It is important that sufficient classes 
are created at key stage 1 as class size legislation means that there is a limit 
to the number of places that can be offered in each class. Forecasts of in-year 
growth show that the 2019 intake, mentioned above, will have insufficient 
places by 2024/25 (in what will be year 5), with the 2018 intake having 
insufficient places in the 2023/24 year 5 class. The 2020 intake will have 
insufficient places by the start of the 2022/23 academic year. The table below 
shows almost all year groups in Middleton will have insufficient places going 
forward. 
 
MIDDLETON 
FORECAST 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Year 1 places 705 675 675 675 
Expected pupils 689 716 758 700 
     
Year 2 places 675 705 675 675 
Expected pupils 688 711 739 782 
     
Year 3 places 675 675 705 675 
Expected pupils 650 715 739 768 
     
Year 4 places 705 675 675 705 
Expected pupils 695 664 730 754 
     

Page 229



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.8 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.9 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year 5 places 675 705 675 675 
Expected pupils 675 709 677 744 
     
Year 6 places 720 675 705 675 
Expected pupils 699 686 720 689 

 
Pennine 
For the 2021 Reception intake for north Pennine the underlying birth rate was 
high, but schools appear to have under-recruited considerably. This could be 
due to national issues mentioned previously, or local issues. Local issues 
include the rebuilding programme at Littleborough Primary school and the 
continued lack of Secondary school places. Historically north Pennine is a net 
importer of children, with more children arriving in Reception than are born 
locally. There is an expectation that, when the Littleborough Primary re-build 
project is complete, and the new Secondary school is open, that families will 
have confidence to apply for school places in this area again. 
 

  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Extra 
Reception 
Places Needed 

58 spare 59 spare 62 spare  69 spare 

Plans Spare capacity will be kept under review, but temporary issues are 
thought to be impacting current applications and applications for the 
2022/23 year will be monitored closely. 

Pe
nn

in
es

 N
 

  

Future Issues Littleborough Primary new build school and the new Secondary 
school, due to be opened in 2023/24, will impact on the desirability of 
places in this area. New housing is also coming forward. 

Extra 
Reception 
Places Needed 

11 spare 34 spare 24 spare 29 spare 

Pe
nn

in
es

 S
 

Plans/ Future 
issues 

 
Plans will remain under review 

 
Rochdale 
In the NE/NW area the combined excess of places is a concern, however 
applications from families new to Rochdale are an issue. New applications for 
places ‘in-year’ tend to be in the Rochdale NE and central areas and numbers 
of new applications for school places through the in-year process were larger 
last year than any year previously despite the ongoing pandemic (figure 1a 
and 1b below). 
 

Page 230



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.12 
 
 
 
 
4.13 
 
 

 
Figure 1a: The last 4 years of data on annual rates of applications for new school places from families new to the 
borough.  
 

 
Figure 1b: The last 4 years of data on annual rates of applications for new school places from families new to the UK. 
 

  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Extra 
Recepti
on 
Places 
Needed 

8 spare (NE) 
59 spare (NW) 

 53 spare (NE) 
47 spare (NW) 

27 spare (NE) 
58 spare (NW) 

39 spare (NE) 
72 spare (NW) 

N
W

  a
nd

 N
E 

R
oc

hd
al

e 
 

Plans/ 
Future 
Issues 

NE area: Spare capacity will be reviewed, however high in-year 
admissions in NE Rochdale mean that spare capacity needed to 
accommodate in year moves. 
NW area: Spare capacity in Rochdale NW is too high 

 
In year applications in the Rochdale NE area are forecast to show schools 
filling to capacity (see table below). Some of these children will be offered 
places in the Rochdale NW area as travel to school distance will be within the 
statutory distance.  
 
ROCHDALE NE 
FORECAST  2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 

Page 231



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.14 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.15 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.16 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Year 1 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 431 437 391 418 
     
Year 2 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 423 445 450 403 
     
Year 3 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 403 433 455 461 
     
Year 4 places 429 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 422 405 436 458 
     
Year 5 places 459 429 429 429 
Expected pupils 444 431 414 445 
     
Year 6 places 429 459 429 429 
Expected pupils 431 456 443 426 

 
In the south and central areas of Rochdale, underlying birth rates show a small 
peak for 2023/24 before declining in 2025/26. In-flows of children into the 
central area continue to be challenging, with schools being asked to take 
additional children in higher year classes. Housing developments in the south 
of the area have also impacted on the sufficiency of places. Timing of new 
housing developments and creation of sufficient places is going to be an issue 
going forward in the SW area and current forecasts of spare capacity will need 
to be reviewed. Housing plans under the Places for Everyone indicate an 
additional 1680 houses may come forward over the next 15 years. A new 
school will be needed depending on the speed of arrival of new housing and 
a consultation on this will need to be run. 
 

 2022-23 2023-24 2024-25 2025-26 
Extra 
Recepti
on 
Places 
Needed 

33 spare (C) 
42 spare (SW) 

22 spare (C) 
23 spare (SW) 

32 spare (C) 
36 spare (SW) 

48 spare (C) 
42 spare (SW) 

Plans Spare capacity in the central zone will be kept under review but large 
numbers of in-year applications requires sufficient capacity 

C
 a

nd
 S

W
 R

oc
hd

al
e 

 

Future 
Issues 

 Additional housing developments in the south means a new school will be 
needed in the area in the long term. A new school will need to be created 
through the Presumption route. 

 
 
Summary 

I. Start consultation on Presumption route for Heywood and Rochdale 
SW new schools. 

 
II. Extra capacity is needed in Middleton and the bulge class at Hollin 

will be continued and more capacity sought for 2023 which may 
involve school expansion. 

 
III. Investigate options for removing capacity in NW Rochdale if and 

when required. 

Page 232



4.17 
 
 
 
 
 
4.18 
 
 
 
4.19 
 
 
 
 
 
4.20 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.21 

 
Free School Presumption 
The Education Act 2011 changed the arrangements for establishing new 
schools and introduced section 6A (the ‘free school presumption’) of the 
Education and Inspections Act 2006 which requires that, where a local 
authority identifies the need for a new school in its area, it must seek proposals 
to establish an academy (free school) (See link in Section 8 below). 
 
The presumption process requires local authorities to seek proposals to 
establish a free school where they have identified the need for a new school 
in their area. 
 
Section 19 of the guidance, The free school presumption Departmental advice 
for local authorities and new school proposers, states “If a local authority is 
running a presumption competition, it can withdraw from the process if it 
determines that the need for a new school will be met by other means, or that 
the need for a new school no longer exists”. 
 
Under the presumption route the local authority is responsible for providing 
the site for the new school and for delivering the capital programme for 
building the new school. The local authority is also responsible for meeting 
the associated capital and pre/post-opening revenue costs. Basic need capital 
funding is provided so that local authorities can provide the places that they 
need, including through new presumption schools. 
 
The decision on all new free school proposals lies with the Secretary of State. 

  

 
 
4.22  
 
 
 

 
Alternatives Considered 
Alternatives are constantly under review and any impacts of the current 
pandemic on house building rates or timing of new developments will have 
knock on effects on school capacity.  
 

 
Costs and Budget Summary 

 

Page 233



5.1 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
 
 
 
5.5 

The costs associated with co-ordinating admission arrangements are met 
from the Dedicated Schools Grant.   
 
Where applicable, schools offering additional pupil places to meet the LA’s 
statutory need may also be eligible for additional revenue funding from the 
Dedicated Schools Grant. The policy and funding available for basic need 
growth has to be agreed with Schools Forum. 
 
Schools are funded based on the number of pupils. Whilst is it acknowledged 
that a school will have some vacant places, a high number of vacant places 
in a single year group created if pupils do not materialise as forecast will have 
an adverse effect on a school’s funding. This can be managed in the short 
term through the application of the Growth Fund policy but it is not sustainable 
longer term. 
 
The local authority is required to pay all costs associated with setting up 
schools through the Free School Presumption route. Approval for costs 
associated with providing any new schools via this route, both capital and 
revenue costs, will be sought following consultation with stakeholders when a 
suggested opening date is agreed. 
 
In relation to the Free School Presumption route, the DfE state in their 
guidance “Local authorities are able to opt out of the scheme at any point 
without financial penalty – and, in fact, we would expect them to do so if, for 
example, a free school is approved in the current [central government funded] 
application wave that removes the need for an additional whole school.” 
 
 

 
Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
6.3 

The application of pupil place planning arrangements contributes to the Council 
Business Plan in ensuring an effective allocation process for school 
admissions. The council has a statutory duty to offer a school place to every 
child living in the borough and must manage the schools estate to meet the 
predicted need.   
 
For any new school needed the Council does not have under its direct control 
the legal mechanisms to create new schools and must, under the Academies 
Act 2010 and Education Act 2011, seek Department for Education approved 
academy trust providers to provide the schools. Guidance from the DfE, for - 
delivery of a school, using the Presumption will be followed when appropriate. 
 
The financial risks are covered in the Costs and Budget Summary section 
above. 

  
Consultation 

 

Page 234



7.1 
 
 
7.2 

Consultation on opening of new schools through the Free School 
Presumption route as detailed above. 
 
Any plans requiring Prescribed Alterations to schools will follow the statutory 
process including consultation. 

 
Background Papers  

 
8
. 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/844346/Free_school_presumption_051119.pdf 
 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/
attachment_data/file/756572/Maintained_schools_prescribed_alterations_gui
dance.pdf 
 

 

 

For Further Information Contact: Fay Davies 
Fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk  

Page 235

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/844346/Free_school_presumption_051119.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/844346/Free_school_presumption_051119.pdf
mailto:Fay.davies@rochdale.gov.uk


Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2022-25 
 
Heywood 
Until 2019/20 the number of reception pupils arriving in Reception classes had been 
significantly higher than the number being born in the area (figure 1). In September 
2020 pupil numbers started dropping and September 2021 numbers look to have 
dropped again. This reflects the significant drops found in other local authorities in 
both Greater Manchester and nation-wide. In Heywood it may also be linked to a 
decrease in new house completions. Current forecasts show a peak for 2023/24 with 
intakes decreasing following birth rates through to 2025/26. 
 

 
Figure 1: Heywood Reception intake forecast 
 
The predicted spare capacity in Reception class is expected to grow to 2025/26 
(figure 1 & figure 2). Previous bulge classes created at Harwood Park Primary 
School will be removed. 
 

 
Figure 2: Predicted Reception Places and Expected Pupils for Heywood 
 

Page 236



The number of Reception class places currently available in Heywood schools in 
September 2021 is set out in the table 1: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Heap Bridge 25 St Joseph's RC  60 Hopwood  60 
Our Lady & St 
Paul's RC 30 Harwood Park 90 St Michael's 

CE VA 30 

St Margaret's 
CE VA 30 St Luke's CE VC 60   

Woodland   90 All Souls CE VC 30   
Table 1: Number of Reception places available Heywood 
 
Middleton 
 
Middleton reception pupil numbers are due to peak again in 2023/24 and numbers of 
pupils coming from new housing developments are increasing in the area. Figure 3 
also shows school census intake numbers and on roll numbers at the end of the 
academic year. 
 

 
Figure 3: Middleton Reception Intake forecast data 
 
There is a predicted shortage of Reception capacity from 2022/23 to 2024/25, and a 
continuation of the bulge class in Hollin Primary is needed. Further additional 
capacity for 2023/24 will also be needed with a permanent expansion possibly 
needed at a Middleton school.(figure 3). 

Page 237



 
Figure 4: Reception Places and Expected Pupil numbers for Middleton 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Middleton schools in 
September 2021 is set out in the table 2: 
 
School Places School Places School Places 
St John 
Fisher RC 30 Middleton Parish 

CE VA 60 St Peter's RC 30 

Hollin 60 Parkfield 30 Alkrington 60 

Boarshaw 60 Elm Wood 60 St Thomas More 
RC 45 

Bowlee Park 120 Little Heaton CE 
VC 30 St Michael's CE 

VA 30 

St Mary's RC 60 St Gabriel's CE VC 30   
Table 2: Reception Places available Middleton 
 
Pennine 
 
The applications to schools in north Pennines have dropped significantly (figure 5). It 
is believed this is due to local factors; including a temporary drop in the number of 
new house completions, the rebuilding of Littleborough Primary and the delay in the 
new Secondary school. The current spare capacity will be kept under review.  
 
Schools in south Pennines have in the past seen intakes closer to the underlying 
birth rates and there the current capacity is sufficient to meet the underlying birth 
rates (figure 6). Capacity will be kept under review. 

Page 238



 
Figure 5: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines North 

 
Figure 6: Reception Intake forecast for Pennines South 
 

Page 239



 
Figure 7: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines North 

 
Figure 8: Places and Expected Pupils Pennines South 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Pennine schools in 
September 2021 is set out in the following table: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Stansfield Hall 
CE VC 20 St Andrew's 

CE VC 60 Moorhouse 30 

Littleborough 60 Smithy Bridge 60 Crossgates 45 
Holy Trinity CE 
VA 30 Hamer 45 Milnrow Parish CE 

VA 30 

St Mary's RC 30 Kentmere 
Academy 45 Newhey 45 

St James' CE  F 30 Alice Ingham 
RC 24 St Thomas' CE 

VA 21 

Table 3: Pennines Schools Places 
  

Page 240



 
Rochdale 
 
Rochdale Township includes almost half of children educated in Rochdale Borough. 
For school place planning purposes this has been split up into four areas as shown 
in figure 9 below. Data is shown for two zones; North West and North East Rochdale 
combined and Central and South West Rochdale combined. 

 
Figure 9: Rochdale Borough Primary Planning Areas 
 

Page 241



 
Figure 10: Forecast for North East and North West areas of Rochdale 
Township. 
 
A peak in the combined area of Rochdale NW and NE Reception classes intakes 
due to birth rates occurred for 2020 intake and the current forecast shows similar 
levels of need for 2022/23, before dropping for 2023/24. Underlying birth rates in NE 
Rochdale indicate that current cohorts are due to peak again in 2024/25. In the NW 
Rochdale area births numbers have dropped from 322 for 2019/20 intake and will 
reach 284 for 2025/26 intake. This suggests a current level of spare capacity in NW 
Rochdale that maybe unsustainable. Any reduction in PAN will undergo a full 
consultation process as required. 
 

 
Figure 11: Spaces and Expected pupils in North-east Rochdale 

Page 242



 
Figure 12: Spaces and expected pupils North-west Rochdale 
 
The birth rate in the SW and Central Rochdale area has zigzagged for several years 
and pupil numbers have not followed this trend. There is currently sufficient capacity 
predicted over the combined area although, as shown in Figure 13, the number on-
roll in Reception class increased by 33 pupils during last year in the area due to the 
very high rates of in-year applications. 
 

 
Figure 13: Reception Forecast for Rochdale Central and South-West areas. 
 
Rochdale Central and SW Reception classes are forecasted to have spare capacity 
for the next 4 years (figure 13 & figure 14). Spare capacity needs to be maintained 
because of in year applications centrally and new housing coming forward in the SW 
area. 

Page 243



 
Figure 14: spaces and Expected pupils in the Central Rochdale area 

 
Figure 15: Spaces and Expected pupils in the South-west Rochdale area 
 
The number of Reception class places currently available in Rochdale Township 
schools in September 2021 is set out in the following table: 
School Places School Places School Places 
Healey F 30 Whittaker Moss 60 Marland Hill 60 
Shawclough 60 St Vincent's RC 60 Brimrod 30 
All Saints CE 
VA 30 Bamford 

Academy 60 Ashfield Valley 30 

Greenbank 60 Belfield    60 St Mary's CE VC 30 
St Patrick's 
RC 45 Sacred Heart 

RC  30 Sandbrook 90 

Heybrook 90 Broadfield 60 Holy Family RC  30 
Meanwood 60 St John's RC  30 St Edward's CE 

VC 52 

Norden 60 Deeplish 
Academy 60 Castleton 60 

Spotland 60 St Peter's CE 
VC 60 St Gabriel's RC   30 

Caldershaw 30 Lowerplace 90 St John'sCE  
T'ham 15 

Page 244



Table 4: Places in Rochdale Township in September 2018 
 

Page 245



Document is Restricted

Page 246

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 256

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 261

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025
	Append. 1 for Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025
	1. Foreword
	2.   Introduction
	Publication of this Policy
	Description of the Area

	2.	General principles
	Other regulatory regimes
	Responsible Authorities
	Public Health and Gambling related Harm
	Determining whether a person is an interested part in relation to a premises licence,   or an application for or in respect of a premises licence
	Exchange of information between the licensing authority and the Gambling Commission (s29 and s30 of GA2005), and the exchange of information between the licensing authority and other persons listed in Schedule 6 of the Act
	Functions of the licensing authority under Part 15 of the GA2005 with respect to the inspection of premises and the power under s346 of the Act to institute criminal proceedings in respect of the offences specified in that section
	Commenting on a licence application
	Factors that will not be relevant
	Split Premises
	Premises “ready for gambling”
	Applications and plans
	Tracks

	3.	Determining Premises Licences
	How the Licensing Authority decides whether to grant or refuse an application
	How the licensing committee decides what conditions to apply to premises licences
	Determining whether to review a licence

	4.	Relevant factors when considering applications and reviews
	Location of the premises
	Local risk assessments
	Local Area Profile
	How the premises will operate consistent with the licensing objectives
	Preventing gambling from being a source of crime or disorder, being associated with crime or disorder or being used to support crime:
	Ensuring that gambling is conducted in a fair and open way
	Protecting children and other vulnerable persons from being harmed or exploited by gambling
	Expectations of operators: Staffing provision
	Expectations of operators: Data gathering and sharing
	Expectation of applicants: Staff Training and Knowledge
	Expectation of applicants: Gaming machines / layouts

	5.	Premises-specific considerations
	Adult Gaming Centres
	Casinos
	Bingo premises
	Electronic bingo gaming machines
	Gaming machines at bingo premises
	'Entertainment’ Bingo
	Betting Premises
	(Licensed) Family Entertainment Centres
	Occasional use notices

	6.	Permits and other permissions
	Alcohol Licensed Premises Gaming Machine Permits
	Prize Gaming Machine Permits
	Unlicensed FECs (uFEC)
	Small Society Lotteries

	Appendix D - Glossary

	Append. 2 for Gambling Licensing Policy Statement 2022-2025

	7 Greater Manchester VSCE Accord
	Annex 1 - GM VCSE Accord draft 31.08.21 v5.0 FINAL
	Annex 2 - GM VCSE Accord Annex 31.08.21 v5.0 FINAL

	8 Finance Update Report Quarter 2 - 2021/22
	4.	Revenue Budget 2021/22
	4.2	Health & Social Care Pool Budget
	4.3	Budget Pressures
	4.4	Savings
	4.5	Transformation Fund
	4.6	Capital Budget 2021/22
	4.6.1	Capital Budget Changes

	9 Discretionary Fees & Charges 2022/23 for Consultation
	Appendix 1 DFC 2223

	10 Revenue Budget Update 2022/23 to 2024/25 and Medium Term Financial Strategy
	11 Capital Programme 2022/23 to 2026/27
	Appendix 1 - Capital Programme
	Appendix 2 - Capital Rephasing
	Appendix 3 - New Capital Schemes

	12 Secondary School Places 2022 - 2025
	13 Need for Primary School Places 2022-25
	Append. 1 for Need for Primary School Places 2022-25
	Appendix 1: The Need for Primary School Places 2022-25


	16 Disabled Facilities Grants and Adaptations Provision
	17 Savings Proposals 2022-23
	Appendix 1 - Council Savings Proposals 2021-22 Cabinet


